
  

 

 Joanne Roney OBE 
Chief Executive 
Telephone: 0161 234 3006 
j.roney@manchester.gov.uk 
PO Box 532, Town Hall 
Extension, Manchester 
M60 2LA 

 
Tuesday, 27 September 2022 

 
Dear Councillor / Honorary Alderman, 
 
Meeting of the Council – Wednesday, 5th October, 2022 
 
You are summoned to attend a meeting of the Council which will be held at 10.00 am on 
Wednesday, 5th October, 2022, in The Council Chamber, Level 2, Town Hall Extension. 
  
1.   The Lord Mayor's Announcements and Special Business 

(including the submission of any urgent business) 
                Manchester Older People's Board – retirement of Board 

Members 
                Presentation of Manchester as a Living Wage City 
 

 

 
2.   Interests 

To allow members an opportunity to declare any personal, 
prejudicial or disclosable pecuniary interest they might have in 
any items which appear on this agenda; and record any items 
from which they are precluded from voting as a result of Council 
Tax or Council rent arrears. Members with a personal interest 
should declare that at the start of the item under consideration. If 
members also have a prejudicial or disclosable pecuniary interest 
they must withdraw from the meeting during the consideration of 
the item 
  
 

 

 
3.   Minutes 

To submit for approval the minutes of the meeting held on 13 July 
2022. 
 

13 - 23 

 
4.   Notice of Motion - National Housing Crisis 

The worst cost of living crisis since the 1950s is coinciding with a 
national housing crisis. The result of this will be an increasing 
number of our residents deprived of one of the most fundamental 
pillars to a healthy and happy life – a secure, stable, and 
affordable home.  
  
Homeownership is in decline following a period of rising house 
prices that has made buying a home unaffordable for too many. 
This combined with a drastic depletion in social housing stock has 
forced an increasing number of residents into the private rented 
sector and at the mercy of rising rents and under-regulated 

 

Public Document Pack



Council 
 

 

tenancies. Worse still, many are left without a permanent 
residence at all, as levels of homelessness remain high.  
  
Whilst this Council has welcomed the Manchester Housing 
Strategy it is now calling for the acceleration of its delivery to 
increase the provision of affordable, secure, high-quality and 
energy-efficient housing across the city to tackle the root of the 
housing crisis locally.  
  
However, in the face of a worsening national economic crisis, 
urgent action is needed to protect our residents, especially those 
in the most precarious living circumstances, from its severest 
impacts.  
  
To support residents through the immediate and acute period of 
the cost-of-living crisis, this Council calls upon Government to: 
  
                Increase Local Housing Allowance rates in line with rising 

private market rents - making these more affordable and 
reducing the proportion of income spent on rent at a time 
when household budgets are increasingly squeezed 

                Introduce rent reforms and a potential temporary cap to 
protect private tenants from further rental increases at a time 
of crisis  

                Legislate a no winter evictions guarantee to protect private 
tenants from homelessness through the most challenging 
period of the cost-of-living crisis  

                Reform Right to Buy - safeguarding remaining social 
housing stock for our most vulnerable residents, but also 
increasing affordable housing targets and expanding 
pathways to homeownership so that the right to own your 
own home can still be a realistic goal for all residents 

                Prioritise the passing of the Renters’ Reform Bill that seeks 
to improve standards and regulations across the private 
rented sector to better protect tenants. 

  
Proposed by Councillor Moran, seconded by Councillor 
Lynch and supported by Councillors Baker-Smith, Rahman, 
Richards, T Robinson, Russell and White. 
  

5.   Notice of Motion - Support Fair Votes Now 
This Council notes that the Labour Party in government 
successfully implemented Proportional Representation (PR) for 
several elections, introducing PR into devolved government for 
Scotland and Wales, in the London Assembly and the 
Supplementary vote for the Mayoral elections. The introduction of 
PR for local elections in Scotland has led to an increase in 
turnout, which was 44.8% at the last elections, held in 2022.  
  
In contrast turnout in Manchester in 2022 was 24.08%, meaning 
over 75% of eligible voters stayed away.  

 



Council 
 

 

  
With the Welsh Senedd reviewing legislation on Single 
Transferable Vote for local councils, England looks likely to be the 
only part of the UK without any form of PR at local level.  
  
Earlier in 2022, Labour Mayor for Greater Manchester Andy 
Burnham voiced public support for a Proportional Representation 
system for general elections, writing “First-past-the-post, 
combined with the whip system, takes the votes of millions and 
turns them into inordinate power for a small Whitehall elite.” 
  
Earlier in 2022, Prospect and the University and College Union 
(UCU) also voted to embrace more proportional general elections. 
  
The list of trade unions who back some kind of electoral reform is 
long and growing: Unison, Unite the Union, Public and 
Commercial Services Union (PCS), Prospect, University and 
College Union (UCU), Fire Brigades Union (FBU), Musicians’ 
Union (MU), Associated Society of Locomotive Engineers and 
Firemen (ASLEF), Transport Salaried Staffs’ Association (TSSA), 
Bakers, Food and Allied Workers Union (BFAWU), Napo 
(Probation and family court staff).  
  
In addition, the Communication Workers Union (CWU) recently 
unanimously passed a motion calling First Past the Post 
“undemocratic”. The union will now establish a national policy 
forum to discuss the merits of PR. As the Labour for a New 
Democracy coalition has said ”more and more trade unions can 
see that First Past the Post is bad for workers and bad for the 
UK”.  
  
According to polling, the vast majority of Labour members, and of 
voters in the United Kingdom, support the use of proportional 
representation for elections in the United Kingdom. At the most 
recent (prior to 2022) Labour Party conference, the vast majority 
of Constituency Labour Party (CLP) delegates supported 
proportional representation.  
  
The Liberal Democrats have a long standing policy of supporting 
Proportional Representation. The Green Party of England and 
Wales has also long supported a move to Proportional 
Representation. There is therefore unity in the political parties 
represented at Full Council in support of Proportional 
Representation.  
  
The last Labour Government put together the Jenkins 
Commission, which recommended the adoption of the AV+ voting 
system. 
  
The Conservative Government has also been waging a war 
against PR, stripping supplementary voting away from Mayoral 
elections.  



Council 
 

 

  
The UK’s First Past the Post voting system curtails voter choice 
and leaves millions unrepresented by those elected. 
  
This Council also notes that at the local elections in May 2022 in 
Manchester, Labour gained 93.75% of council seats, despite only 
16.4% of the electorate (those eligible to vote) voting Labour. 
Manchester Liberal Democrats won only 1 council seat (3.1%) to 
represent 12.64% of the votes cast. Manchester Greens also won 
only 1 council seat (3.1%) to represent 11.47% of the votes cast. 
  
This Council believes:  
  
                That it is essential that faith is restored in our democracy by 

introducing voting systems that fairly represent the 
electorate’s political views at both local and national level. 
First Past the Post produces binary politics, but no party has 
the monopoly of wisdom. We need an inclusive politics 
where the best ideas serve communities in Manchester.  

  
                A system of Proportional Representation in which seats 

match votes and all votes count equally would help to 
rebuild trust by ensuring that all political views are 
represented in Parliament and at local councils in proportion 
to their level of public support. The systems of Proportional 
Representation that maintain a constituency link are best, 
since they mean voters will still have local representatives. 
Single Transferable Vote and AV+ both fulfil these criteria. 

  
Council therefore resolves to request the Leader of the Council 
to:- 
  
                Make representations to Manchester’s MPs asking them to 

support a form of Proportional Representation for electing 
local councils and for general elections, and the return of 
Supplementary Vote for Mayoral elections.  

  
                Oppose this Conservative Government’s efforts to remove 

existing PR systems, and to write a letter to the Prime 
Minister Liz Truss condemning the removal of the 
supplementary vote from elections for Mayor.” 

  
Proposed by Councillor Good, seconded by Councillor 
Johnson and supported by Councillors Bayunu, Leech and 
Nunney. 
  

6.   Notice of Motion - Manchester Windrush and Deportations 
Manchester City Council notes that: 
  
The 2014 Immigration Act has had a huge negative effect on the 

 



Council 
 

 

Windrush Generation and their descendants in Manchester. 
  
People have been affected by the Windrush scandal even if they 
had legal status, such as those who came to Britain from 
Commonwealth countries before 1973 and their descendants. 
  
They and their descendants have been subjected to cruel and 
inhuman treatment including deportation, loss of employment, 
housing and services including the denial of prompt medical 
treatment. 
  
Lord Kerslake, the former head of the Civil Service, told BBC’s 
Newsnight that some in government had warned that the way the 
2014 Act worked was ‘almost reminiscent of Nazi Germany’. 
  
Manchester City Council believes that: 
  
Home Office officials have frequently used the Hostile 
Environment legislation to deprive migrants of their right to live 
and work in the UK even if they have legal status. 
  
The Windrush Compensation Scheme has not been effective 
enough in compensating all victims for their losses and is being 
unreasonably slow to pay out. 
  
Many of the current problems have their roots in the racist 1971 
Immigration Act which ended the right of people from the British 
Commonwealth to obtain UK citizenship unless they had a parent 
or grandparent with UK citizenship. This ensured that many white 
people in the Commonwealth could come to the UK but denied 
the same rights to most black people from the same countries. 
The right of abode should be restored to the Windrush 
Generation who lived in the UK and their descendants. 
  
The use of the UK Borders Act 2007 to automatically deport 
people who have been sentenced to twelve months or more is 
racist, as it disproportionately impacts black immigrants (who 
routinely suffer longer sentences than white people committing 
the same offences ), and has led to people being deported to 
countries they left as children and where they have no 
connections, often leaving behind their families. 
  
The Nationalities and Borders Bill creates a second-tier category 
of British citizenship as Clause 10 of the bill allows the Home 
Secretary to strip a naturalised Brit of their citizenship without any 
notice at all and without providing any rationale for the decision. 
  
There is need of a lead member who can focus on understanding 
the legislation and through direct contact with individuals and 
community organisations how it impacts on our residents. A 
Windrush Lead can also inform and support the work of the 
Executive Member for Vibrant Neighbourhoods, who has begun 



Council 
 

 

to reach out to the communities impacted, but whose wide 
ranging portfolio prevents her from the time required to make this 
work a priority. Especially during the looming Cost of Living Crisis 
foisted on our residents by the same evil Tory government who 
also created the Windrush Scandal that we wish to ameliorate. 
  
Manchester City Council therefore resolves: 
  
1.         To campaign for a Windrush Act which: 
  

           Places a duty on public bodies to reduce race 
disparities for outcomes in their work as exposed by 
the Government’s Race Disparity Audit 

           Establishes a commonwealth community cohesion 
fund for the development of projects in the UK and the 
Commonwealth to tackle disparities and rebuild social 
and economic ties of communities damaged by the 
Windrush scandal 

  
2.         To campaign for legislation ending the Hostile Environment 
  
3.         To campaign for a judge-led independent Public Inquiry into 

the circumstances which led to the treatment of the 
Windrush Generation 

  
4.         To campaign against the deportations resulting from racist 

immigration legislation  
  
5.         To raise our awareness of the impact of the new 

Nationalities and Borders bill on our communities, with a 
special emphasis on the impact on our diverse Muslim 
communities. 

  
6.         To appoint a Windrush Lead on the council who will  
  

           advocate for families impacted by Windrush and 
current legislation 

           ensure that the resolution from this motion are 
implemented   

           provide a first point of support for Manchester victims 
of the Windrush scandal and the Nationalities and 
Borders bill 

           Support a network of legal, social and voluntary sector 
organisations to provide an effective service for 
Manchester people affected by the Windrush Scandal 
and the Nationalities and Borders bill. To include, for 
example  
o      The ground breaking work of Anthony Brown, 

Windrush Defender 
o      The advice work being done by Greater 

Manchester Immigration Aid Unit 



Council 
 

 

o      The Greater Manchester Law Centre working in 
partnership with the Greater Manchester Tenants 
Union and GMIAU 

  
Proposed by Councillor Bayunu, seconded by Councillor 
Good and supported by Councillors Johnson, Leech and 
Nunney. 
  

7.   Notice of Motion - Cost of Living Crisis 
This Council notes: 
  
The UK is entering a recession, with inflation at over 10%, a 40 
year high, interest rates increasing and the cost-of-living spiralling 
  
Despite rising costs, the real value of pay fell by 3% up to August 
2022 
  
Gas has increased 114% and electricity up 85% since April 2022 
  
On 24th September the Conservative Government set out a mini-
budget that removed the cap on bankers' bonuses and scrapped 
the highest rate of tax for people earning over £150,000. Basic 
rate of income tax was reduced from 20% to 19% 
  
This means someone earning £25,000 will only get £125 more 
annually but someone earning £500,000 will gain an extra 
£17,500 a year 
  
This Council Further notes: 
  
In the 2022/23 Council Budget, Manchester City Council 
prioritised tackling Anti-Poverty by committing over £34 Million to 
working with residents, community groups and charities on anti-
poverty measures 
  
Manchester City Council already has an Anti-Poverty Strategy, 
and has developed new plans for a more inclusive economy and 
an action plan to tackle inequalities 
  
In Manchester plans have been moving at pace over the summer 
to make sure Manchester City Council has a clear Cost-of-Living 
Action Plan for this winter to support Mancunians during this crisis 
  
Manchester City Council will launch its Community Response 
Hub on 3rd October to provide one point of contact for all of those 
who need it  
  
This Council Resolves: 
  
                To do everything it can this winter to support those most in 

need in this city and in doing so recommends that the 
Executive launch a Manchester Cost-of-Living Action Plan – 

 



Council 
 

 

 a support package of over £8m to help Mancunians. 
  
                To organise a Cost-of-Living Summit with partners across 

the city to ensure every organisation in the city is doing all 
they can to support Mancunians and to encourage local 
partnerships to bring together communities. 

  
                To call on the Government to declare a Cost-of-Living 

emergency and provide COVID style support to residents 
and businesses urgently. 

  
                That Manchester will continue to support children on Free 

School Meals during the holidays this winter and to call on 
the government to make this permanent. 

  
                To call on the Executive to endorse an expansion of the 

Local Welfare Fund this winter to provide emergency 
hardship support and continue the city’s emergency food 
response. 

  
                To continue to work towards achieving a city where 

everyone gets a fair wage through becoming a Living Wage 
Place. 

  
                To call on the Government to increase the National 

Minimum Wage to match the Real Living Wage, and 
increase Universal Credit and all other benefits in line with 
inflation. 

  
Proposed by Councillor Craig, seconded by Councillor 
Karney and supported by Councillors Akbar, Bridges, 
Lanchbury, Rahman, Rawlins, Reeves and T Robinson. 
  
  

8.   Notice of Motion - Supporting Our Children and protecting 
Care Leavers 
Every elected member and employee of this Council – along with 
our partner agencies- is a corporate parent to the children in our 
care. 
  
We are all responsible for providing the best possible care, 
safeguarding and outcomes for the children who are looked after 
by us. 
  
Our young people in care or who have left care have the right to 
expect everything from a corporate parent that would be expected 
from a responsible and good parent. This includes how families 
continue their support, care, and ambition for their children after 
they leave home and gain independence 
  
As an adult how many times in life do you stop and think, “where 

 



Council 
 

 

do I go from there.” Imagine what that must like for a young 
person 
  
On their own with no one to help or advise.   Just think about for it 
a minute. 
  
We have already made really important steps to support our 
cared for and care experienced children better:- 
  
                We made all our care leavers exempt from Council Tax up 

to the age of 25. 
                We gave our Care Leavers Band 1 priority on our housing 

register. 
                We provide specialist support to any Care Leavers facing 

homelessness without the use of B&B. 
                We guarantee Care Leavers first access to our 

apprenticeships. 
                We brought our Leaving Care service back in house and 

invested in a new home for the service- with trainer flats and 
emergency accommodation on site. 

                We increased “Staying Put” so that young people can stay 
with foster carers and invested alongside our housing 
partners to provide move on accommodation for young 
people who need independence. 

  
However, we cannot be complacent, and we know that we can 
always do more. 
  
We are determined that every decision made in this Council and 
every policy set here considers the impact on young people in 
care and those who have experienced the care system. 
  
This motion proposes including “young people in care” and “care 
experienced young people” as an additional characteristic in all of 
our Equality Impact Assessments. This will give them a formal 
recognition and make sure that all decisions that are made and 
policies that are set consider their specific needs and the impact 
on them. 
  
This will have a real tangible impact on people who have 
experienced care. We want to make it easier for young people to 
gain employment at the Council and to develop into senior roles – 
with guaranteed interview schemes, mentoring and support and 
reasonable adjustments made to support employees with care 
experience. 
  
We also want to see our procurement and commissioning of our 
services to consider the impact on young people with care 
experience, in the same way as other protected and additional 
characteristics are and make extra effort to ensure that they can 
access all of our services. 



Council 
 

 

  
The Government commissioned an independent national review 
of children’s social care, and one recommendation was to look at 
making care experience an additional characteristic. Given the 
paralysis in Government across departments, we cannot afford to 
wait for the Government to respond. We will take immediate steps 
here in Manchester – as we have done before- to be the best 
corporate parents we can be. 
  
We have a commitment to our young people. Too ease them into 
independence. To allow them to build a prosperous, healthy, and 
happy future. 
  
These proposals will ensure our young people have the tools to 
do just that. 
  
This Council therefore request that the City Solicitor examine the 
inclusion of “young people in care” / “care experienced young 
people” as an additional characteristic in the Council's Equality 
Impact Assessments. 
  
Proposed by Councillor Sadler, seconded by Councillor 
Bridges and supported by Councillors Cooley, Hughes, 
Lanchbury, Lovecy, Reeves, Reid and T Robinson. 
  

9.   Proceedings of the Executive 
To submit the minutes of the Executive on 22 July 2022 and 14 
September 2022, and in particular to consider: 
  
Exe/22/61        Capital Update Report  
  
To recommend that the Council approve the following changes to 
Manchester City Council’s capital programme: 
 
 
                Neighbourhoods – Manchester Aquatic Centre. A capital 

budget virement of £2.930m is requested, funded by 
borrowing via the Inflation Budget and a further capital 
budget increase of £0.070m, funded by borrowing. 

                Neighbourhoods – Indoor Leisure – Abraham Moss. A 
capital budget virement of £1.4m is requested, funded by 
borrowing via the Inflation Budget. 

                Growth and Development – Hammerstone Road Depot. A 
capital budget virement of £2.320m is requested, funded by 
borrowing via the Inflation Budget and a further capital 
budget increase of £4.280m, funded by borrowing. 

  
Exe/22/74        Capital Programme Update  
  
To recommend that Council approve the following changes to 
Manchester City Council’s capital programme:- 
  

25 - 54 



Council 
 

 

                ICT - Future Council Infrastructure Implementation – Hybrid 
Cloud Programme. A capital budget virement of £0.618m 
funded by Borrowing via the ICT Investment budget. A 
capital budget decrease of £2.661m is also requested and 
approval of a corresponding transfer of £2.661m to the 
revenue budget, funded by Capital Fund. 

                Public Sector Housing – Woodward Court external 
concrete repairs and Enveloping. A capital budget increase 
of £3.005m, funded by RCCO – HRA. 

                Public Sector Housing – Fire Risk Assessment Additional 
Work. A capital budget increase of £4.885m funded from by 
RCCO from the HRA. 

  
  

10.   Questions to Executive Members and Others under 
Procedural Rule 23 
To receive answers to any questions that councillors have raised 
in accordance with Procedural Rule 23. 
  
 

 

 
11.   Scrutiny Committees 

To note the minutes of the following scrutiny committees: 
  
Communities & Equalities – 19 July & 6 September 2022 
Resources & Governance – 19 July & 6 September 2022 
Health – 20 July & 7 September 2022 
Children & Young People – 20 July & 7 September 2022 
Environment & Climate Change – 21 July & 8 September 2022 
Economy – 21 July & 8 September 2022 
  
  
 

55 - 147 

 
12.   Proceedings of Committees 

To submit for approval the minutes of the following meetings and 
consider recommendations made by the committee: 
  
Audit – 26 July 2022 
Constitutional & Nomination – 5 October 2022 (to be tabled) 
Licensing & Appeals - 26 September 2022 (to follow) 
Planning & Highways – 28 July, 1 and 22 September 2022 (to 
follow) 

149 - 166 

 
 

Yours faithfully, 

 
Joanne Roney OBE 
Chief Executive 



Council 
 

 

Information about the Council  
 
The Council is composed of 96 councillors with one third elected three years in four. 
Councillors are democratically accountable to residents of their ward. Their overriding duty 
is to the whole community, but they have a special duty to their constituents, including 
those who did not vote for them. 
 
Six individuals with previous long service as councillors of the city have been appointed 
Honorary Aldermen of the City of Manchester and are entitled to attend every Council 
meeting. They do not however have a vote. 
 
All councillors meet together as the Council under the chairship of the Lord Mayor of 
Manchester. There are seven meetings of the Council in each municipal year and they are 
open to the public. Here councillors decide the Council’s overall strategic policies and set 
the budget each year. 
 
Agenda, reports and minutes of all Council meetings can be found on the Council’s 
website www.manchester.gov.uk 
 
Members of the Council 
Councillors:- 
 
Ludford (Chair), Y Dar (Deputy Chair), Abdullatif, Akbar, Azra Ali, Ahmed Ali, Nasrin Ali, 
Shaukat Ali, Alijah, Amin, Andrews, Appleby, Baker-Smith, Bano, Bayunu, Bell, Benham, 
Bridges, Butt, Chambers, Chohan, Collins, Connolly, Cooley, Craig, Curley, M Dar, 
Davies, Doswell, Douglas, Evans, Flanagan, Foley, Gartside, Good, Green, Grimshaw, 
Hacking, Hassan, Hewitson, Hilal, Hitchen, Holt, Hughes, Hussain, Igbon, Ilyas, Iqbal, 
Jeavons, Johns, Johnson, T Judge, Kamal, Karney, Kirkpatrick, Lanchbury, Leech, 
J Lovecy, Lynch, Lyons, McHale, Midgley, Moran, Newman, Noor, Nunney, Ogunbambo, 
B Priest, H Priest, Rahman, Raikes, Rawlins, Rawson, Razaq, Reeves, Reid, Riasat, 
Richards, I Robinson, T Robinson, Rowles, Russell, Sadler, M Sharif Mahamed, Sheikh, 
Shilton Godwin, Simcock, Stanton, Stogia, Taylor, Wheeler, Whiston, White, Wills, Wilson 
and Wright 
 
Honorary Aldermen of the City of Manchester –  
Hugh Barrett, Andrew Fender, Audrey Jones JP, Paul Murphy OBE, Nilofar Siddiqi and 
Keith Whitmore. 
 
 
 
Further Information 
For help, advice and information about this meeting please contact the meeting Clerk: 
 Andrew Woods 
 Tel: 0161 234 3011 
 Email: andrew.woods@manchester.gov.uk 
 
This agenda was issued on Tuesday, 27 September 2022 by the Governance and 
Scrutiny Support Unit, Manchester City Council, Level 2, Town Hall Extension (Library 
Walk Elevation), Manchester M60 2LA 

http://www.manchester.gov.uk/


Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Council  13 July 2022 

Council 
 
Minutes of the meeting held on Wednesday, 13 July 2022 
 
Present: 
 
The Right Worshipful, the Lord Mayor Councillor Ludford – in the Chair 
 
Councillors:  
Y Dar, Abdullatif, Akbar, Azra Ali, Ahmed Ali, Nasrin Ali, Shaukat Ali, Alijah, Andrews, 
Appleby, Baker-Smith, Bano, Bayunu, Bell, Benham, Bridges, Butt, Chambers, 
Chohan, Collins, Connolly, Craig, Curley, M Dar, Davies, Doswell, Evans, Flanagan, 
Foley, Gartside, Good, Green, Grimshaw, Hacking, Hassan, Hewitson, Hilal, Hitchen, 
Hughes, Hussain, Igbon, Ilyas, Iqbal, Johns, Johnson, T Judge, Kamal, Karney, 
Kirkpatrick, Lanchbury, Leech, J Lovecy, Lynch, Lyons, McHale, Midgley, Moran, 
Newman, Noor, Nunney, Ogunbambo, B Priest, H Priest, Rahman, Rawlins, Rawson, 
Razaq, Reeves, Reid, Riasat, Richards, I Robinson, T Robinson, Rowles, Russell, 
Sadler, Sheikh, Shilton Godwin, Simcock, Stanton, Stogia, Taylor, White, Wills, 
Wilson and Wright 
 
CC/20/50. The Lord Mayor's Announcements and Special Business - 

Anniversary of Srebrenica genocide  
 
The Lord Mayor invited those present at the meeting to observe a minute’s silence in 
memory of the lives lost in the Srebrenica genocide which took place in July 1995. 
 
CC/20/51. The Lord Mayor's Announcements and Special Business - Queen's 

Birthday Honours List and award of the Queens award for 
Voluntary Service  

 
The Lord Mayor informed the Council that he had written to the following award 
recipients, who are either Mancunians or live or work in the city to congratulate them 
on the honour they have received:- 
 
Officer of the Order of the British Empire 
 
• Lora Fachie 
• Neil Fachie  
• Corinne Hall  
• Dave Moutrey  
• Mike Summerbee 
• Dr Rupert Whitaker  
 
Member of the Order of the British Empire  
 
• Rebecca Friel  
• Gary Hall  
• Elizabeth Owolabi, and; 
• Angela Usher  

Page 13

Item 3



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Council  13 July 2022 

 
British Empire Medal 
 
• Michelle McHale  
 
Queen's Award for Voluntary Service 
 
• Dimobi Children Disability Trust 
 
CC/20/52. The Lord Mayor's Announcements and Special Business - 

Flooding in Bangladesh  
 
The Lord Mayor reported on the recent flooding in Bangladesh caused by the 
monsoon and heavy downpours resulting in massive devastation in the entire 
country.  On behalf of Council, the Lord Mayor offered her sympathy, thoughts and 
prayers to the families here in UK and in Bangladesh who had been directly affected 
by the flood 
 
CC/20/53. The Lord Mayor's Announcements and Urgent Business  
 
The Lord Mayor informed the Council that she had agreed to the submission of the 
minutes of the Constitutional and Nomination Committee held on 13 July 2022. 
 
CC/20/54. Minutes  
 
The Minutes of the meeting held on 18 May 2022 were approved as a correct record 
and signed by the Lord Mayor. 
 
CC/20/55. Appointment of Executive Members and their Portfolios  
 
Decision 
 
The Council note the appointments of Deputy Leaders and Executive Members. 
 
CC/20/56. Notice of Motion - Active Travel to School  
 
Councillor Benham submitted the following motion, which was seconded by 
Councillor Stogia:- 
 
Walking and wheeling to school can help children and parents have a healthy and 
active lifestyle, as well as supporting their independence, development and essential 
road safety awareness. Each morning and afternoon the streets around our schools 
are dangerous, congested places where many parents and carers – fearful of the 
dangers of traffic – drop off their kids by car. 
  
Over the last 10 years, the percentage of trips to school by car in the North west 
increased from 35% in 2012 to 56% in 2020, and walking decreased from 47% to 
30%. Almost a quarter (23%) of cars on the road at peak times (08:35hrs) are taking 
children to school. 250 million car journeys in Greater Manchester are less than 1KM, 

Page 14

Item 3



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Council  13 July 2022 

the equivalent of a fifteen-twenty minute walk or five-ten minute cycle ride. Many of 
these journeys are for the school run. Department for Transport  - National Survey.   
  
Reducing traffic immediately outside the school gates will improve air quality, 
reducing the harmful effects of PM2.5 and NOx on the health of children and adults.  
  
This council notes our existing commitment to improve air quality across the city and 
to work with schools to improve walking, cycling and wheeling and anti-idling 
initiatives. To further encourage more active travel to school. We will: 
  
• Require every ward to make two commitments within their Climate Change Plan 

to improve and support active, sustainable travel to school. 
• Increase participation in every ward in the ‘Living Streets WOW’ walking to 

school scheme, ModeshiftSTARS and Sustrans Big Walk and Wheel. 
• Develop a good practice school streets toolkit that enables schools to facilitate a 

safer school streets project.  
• Actively promote World Car Free Day on 22 September 2022 and to encourage 

active travel to school initiatives on this day, to include all forms of walking, 
cycling, scooting and wheeling.  

• Call on the government to recognise the importance of behaviour change 
interventions to reduce air pollution around schools and, to invest in enabling 
communities and residents to understand the impacts of their actions on air 
quality and what they can do to reduce it. 

 
Councillor Bayunu submitted the following amendment to the motion which was 
seconded by Councillor Johnson:- 
 
Walking and wheeling to school can help children and parents have a healthy and 
active lifestyle, as well as supporting their independence, development and essential 
road safety awareness. Each morning and afternoon the streets around our schools 
are dangerous, congested places where many parents and carers – fearful of the 
dangers of traffic – drop off their kids by car. 
  
Over the last 10 years, the percentage of trips to school by car in the North west 
increased from 35% in 2012 to 56% in 2020, and walking decreased from 47% to 
30%. Almost a quarter (23%) of cars on the road at peak times (08:35hrs) are taking 
children to school. 250 million car journeys in Greater Manchester are less than 1KM, 
the equivalent of a fifteen-twenty minute walk or five-ten minute cycle ride. Many of 
these journeys are for the school run. Department for Transport – National Survey.   
  
Reducing traffic immediately outside the school gates will improve air quality, 
reducing the harmful effects of PM2.5 and NOx on the health of children and adults.  
  
This council notes our existing commitment to improve air quality across the city and 
to work with schools to improve walking, cycling and wheeling and anti-idling 
initiatives. To further encourage more active travel to school. We will: 
  
• Carry out a full review of the existing infrastructure that supports parents and 

schools’ ability to engage in active travel to school measures. 

Page 15

Item 3



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Council  13 July 2022 

• Conduct an audit of current provision from both Manchester and Greater 
Manchester, to check that our residents are accessing these and uncover any 
barriers. 

• Ensure that this motion is actioned alongside other motions passed by this 
council in the last 18 months, including ‘Road Safety and Children’ which was 
passed in March of this year. 

• Use the findings from the audit of provision, the review of infrastructure and the 
implementation of motions as above to ensure that we are improving in line with 
our ambitions for a safer and greener city. 

• Raise the profile of active travel to school on the council's website. Making it 
more prominent and easy to find - Front page One click access. 

• Review and increase access to resources for families to get help to fund active 
travel. 

• Make some immediate adjustment to current provision. 
• For example, In the face of the cost of living crisis, widen the eligibility criteria 

for funding for families for bicycles. 
https://www.manchester.gov.uk/info/100005/schools_and_education/7050/apply
_for_a_secondary_school_cycle_voucher   

• Ensure all actions identified are linked to the provision for safe walking and 
cycling routes around and to schools. 

• Encourage greater cross ward collaboration on initiatives and sharing of 
knowledge and experience between councillors and political parties. 

• Set up an Active Travel to School Councillors Forum that could lead on the 
review of current resources, how well they are being accessed by our resident’s 
city wide, and advocate for the actions in this motion to be implemented. The 
Forum will include representation from all Scrutiny Committees and be city wide 
and cross party.  

 
Additionally, we will: 
 
• Require every ward to make two commitments within their Climate Change Plan 

to improve and support active, sustainable travel to school. 
• Increase participation in every ward in the ‘Living Streets WOW’ walking to 

school scheme, ModeshiftSTARS and Sustrans Big Walk and Wheel. 
• Develop a good practice school streets toolkit that enables schools to facilitate a 

safer school streets project.  
• Actively promote World Car Free Day on 22 September 2022 and to encourage 

active travel to school initiatives on this day, to include all forms of walking, 
cycling, scooting and wheeling.  

• Call on the government to recognise the importance of behaviour change 
interventions to reduce air pollution around schools and, to invest in enabling 
communities and residents to understand the impacts of their actions on air 
quality and what they can do to reduce it.   

 
On the amendment being put to the vote, the Lord mayor declared it carried and 
subsequently, the amendment became the substantive motion. 
 
On the substantive motion being put to the vote, the Lord Mayor declared it caried 
unanimously. 

Page 16

Item 3

https://www.manchester.gov.uk/info/100005/schools_and_education/7050/apply_for_a_secondary_school_cycle_voucher
https://www.manchester.gov.uk/info/100005/schools_and_education/7050/apply_for_a_secondary_school_cycle_voucher


Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Council  13 July 2022 

 
Decision 
 
This Council will:- 
 
• Carry out a full review of the existing infrastructure that supports parents and 

schools’ ability to engage in active travel to school measures. 
• Conduct an audit of current provision from both Manchester and Greater 

Manchester, to check that our residents are accessing these and uncover any 
barriers. 

• Ensure that this motion is actioned alongside other motions passed by this 
council in the last 18 months, including ‘Road Safety and Children’ which was 
passed in March of this year. 

• Use the findings from the audit of provision, the review of infrastructure and the 
implementation of motions as above to ensure that we are improving in line with 
our ambitions for a safer and greener city. 

• Raise the profile of active travel to school on the council's website. Making it 
more prominent and easy to find - Front page One click access. 

• Review and increase access to resources for families to get help to fund active 
travel. 

• Make some immediate adjustment to current provision. 
• For example, In the face of the cost of living crisis, widen the eligibility criteria 

for funding for families for bicycles. 
https://www.manchester.gov.uk/info/100005/schools_and_education/7050/apply
_for_a_secondary_school_cycle_voucher   

• Ensure all actions identified are linked to the provision for safe walking and 
cycling routes around and to schools. 

• Encourage greater cross ward collaboration on initiatives and sharing of 
knowledge and experience between councillors and political parties. 

• Set up an Active Travel to School Councillors Forum that could lead on the 
review of current resources, how well they are being accessed by our resident’s 
city wide, and advocate for the actions in this motion to be implemented. The 
Forum will include representation from all Scrutiny Committees and be city wide 
and cross party.  

 
Additionally, we will: 
 
• Require every ward to make two commitments within their Climate Change Plan 

to improve and support active, sustainable travel to school. 
• Increase participation in every ward in the ‘Living Streets WOW’ walking to 

school scheme, ModeshiftSTARS and Sustrans Big Walk and Wheel. 
• Develop a good practice school streets toolkit that enables schools to facilitate a 

safer school streets project.  
• Actively promote World Car Free Day on 22 September 2022 and to encourage 

active travel to school initiatives on this day, to include all forms of walking, 
cycling, scooting and wheeling.  

• Call on the government to recognise the importance of behaviour change 
interventions to reduce air pollution around schools and, to invest in enabling 

Page 17

Item 3

https://www.manchester.gov.uk/info/100005/schools_and_education/7050/apply_for_a_secondary_school_cycle_voucher
https://www.manchester.gov.uk/info/100005/schools_and_education/7050/apply_for_a_secondary_school_cycle_voucher


Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Council  13 July 2022 

communities and residents to understand the impacts of their actions on air 
quality and what they can do to reduce it.   

 
CC/20/57. Proceedings of the Executive  
 
The proceedings of the Executive on 1 June 2022 and 29 June 2022 were submitted. 
The Council was asked to give particular consideration to the following 
recommendations: 
 
Exe/22/45 Capital Programme Update 
 
To recommend that Council approve the following changes to Manchester City 
Council’s capital programme: 
 
• Neighbourhoods - Hough End Masterplan. A capital budget increase of 

£11.905m, funded by £4m Grant, £5.499m by borrowing on an invest to save 
basis funded by joint funds held by Manchester City Council and Sport England, 
£1.832m by borrowing on an invest to save basis and £0.574m borrowing. 

 
Exe/22/50 Capital Programme Outturn 2021/22 
 
To recommend that Council approve: 
 
• The proposed virements over £0.5m within the capital programme (Appendix C 

of the report considered).  
• The following changes to Manchester City Council’s capital programme 

•  Public Sector Housing – Northwards Housing Capital Programme 2022/23. 
A capital budget increase of £2.475m in 2022/23, £21.047m in 2023/24 
and £7.599m in 2024/25 is requested, funded by an RCCO from the HRA. 

•  Corporate Programme – Elizabeth Tower GP surgery. A capital budget 
increase of £2.6m in 2022/23, funded by RCCO from Integration Reserve. 

 
In relation to Exe/22/45, Councillor Nunney objected to the proposed capital budget 
increase, stating that whilst he and his fellow Green Party members did not object to 
the proposed extension of existing buildings, with the provision of much needed new 
changing facilities, but they did not support the development of new 3g pitches with 
associated floodlights and fencing and believed that overall, the proposal would not 
contribute to a zero carbon city.  Councillor Leech also objected to the proposed 
capital budget increase, for associated reasons around achieving a zero carbon city 
and the development of additional 3g pitches. 
 
Decisions 
 
(1) To receive the minutes of the Executive held on 1 June 2022 and 29 June 2022. 
 
(2) To approve the following changes to the Council’s capital programme: 
 

• Hough End Masterplan. A capital budget increase of £11.905m, funded 
by £4m Grant, £5.499m by borrowing on an invest to save basis funded 
by joint funds held by Manchester City Council and Sport England, 

Page 18

Item 3



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Council  13 July 2022 

£1.832m by borrowing on an invest to save basis and £0.574m 
borrowing; 

• Public Sector Housing – Northwards Housing Capital Programme 
2022/23. A capital budget increase of £2.475m in 2022/23, £21.047m in 
2023/24 and £7.599m in 2024/25 is requested, funded by an RCCO from 
the HRA; and 

• Corporate Programme – Elizabeth Tower GP surgery. A capital budget 
increase of £2.6m in 2022/23, funded by RCCO from Integration 
Reserve. 

 
(3) To approve the virements over £0.5m between capital schemes to maximise 

use of funding resources available to the City Council (as set out in the 
appendix to the 29 June 2022 minutes). 

 
(The Lord Mayor adjourned the meeting for five minutes following consideration of 
this item due to a disturbance in the pubic gallery) 
 
CC/20/58. Questions to Executive Members and Others under Procedural 

Rule 23  
 
Councillor Igbon responded to a question from Councillor Wright regarding the to 
balance the need to cut grass in parks, children's play areas and sports fields, with 
the need to maintain and increase Biodiversity and cease the use of glysophates. 
 
Councillor Akbar responded to a question from Councillor Leech regarding the what 
percentage of the £150 Council Tax energy rebate payments had been collected at 
post offices, and how many telephone enquiries have been made by residents raising 
concerns about accessing the payments. 
 
Councillor White responded to a question from Councillor Leech regarding how many 
of affordable and social homes did he expect to be built by developers as part of their 
affordable housing obligations and the Council’s ambition to deliver 10,000 affordable 
home I the next decade. 
 
Councillor Rahman responded to a question from Councillor Leech regarding the due 
diligence carried out when companies or organisations leased Council land or office 
space, to ensure that its use was in line with the values of the Council. 
 
Councillor Igbon responded to a question from Councillor Leech regarding what 
action was being taking to ensure that residents in flats with communal bins, were not 
incurring additional costs for waste and recycling. 
 
Councillor Rawlins responded to a question from Councillor Leech regarding how 
many times had she advised her Executive Member colleagues to reject approval to 
an increase in capital spending because of its failure to make a contribution towards 
Manchester being a zero-carbon city. 
 
Councillor Igbon responded to a question from Councillor Good regarding when the 
people of Ancoats and New Islington would have access to a new park or open green 
space on the former Central Retail Park site. 

Page 19

Item 3



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Council  13 July 2022 

 
Councillor White responded to a question from Councillor Good regarding alternative 
funding sources that had been considered for the Grey Mare Lane regeneration. 
 
Councillor Igbon responded to a question from Councillor Good regarding what 
proportion of total street cleaning in any given week, month and year that Manchester 
City Council inspected was done. 
 
Councillor Rahman responded to a question from Councillor Good regarding the 
number of  CCTV cameras operated by Manchester City Council, that were non-
functional or in a state of disrepair. 
 
Councillor Rawlins responded to a question from Councillor Good regarding the 
Council's policy on issuing of parking tickets on unadopted roads that fell within 
Council parking zone boundaries 
 
Councillor Rawlins responded to a question from Councillor Good regarding the 
Council's minimum requirement for considering installing road safety measures on 
any given residential street. 
 
Councillor White responded to a question from Councillor Good regarding why so 
many local members objected to planning applications in their own ward 
 
Councillor Igbon responded to a question from Councillor Good regarding What the 
Council’s progress on creating 6 new parks for Beswick had been following the 
promise in May 2021 of more parks for Beswick. 
 
Councillor Rawlins responded to a question from Councillor Johnson regarding how 
many of the 200 new bins across Manchester would be allocated to Woodhouse 
Park. 
 
Councillor Rawlins responded to a question from Councillor Johnson regarding the 
disparity in funding made available for different Resident Parking Zones. 
 
Councillor Craig responded to a question from Councillor Johnson regarding the 
ability to access the Council’ policy on consultations via Council’s website. 
 
Councillor White responded to a question from Councillor Stogia regarding the 
Council’s commitment to deliver the UK’s first LGBTQ+ Extra Care facility. 
 
Councillor Rawlins responded to a question from Councillor Sheikh regarding how 
was the council tackling irresponsible pavement parking across the city. 
 
Councillor T Robinson responded to a question from Councillor Hussian regarding 
the efforts to reduce inequalities in Ethnic minority communities who were hardest hit 
by the pandemic and where health inequalities continued to persist. 
 
CC/20/59. Scrutiny Committees  
 
The minutes of the following Scrutiny Committee meetings were submitted: 

Page 20

Item 3



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Council  13 July 2022 

 
Communities and Equalities – 24 May and 21 June 2022  
Resources and Governance – 24 May and 21 June 2022 
Health – 25 May and 22 June 2022 
Children and Young People – 25 May and 22 June 2022  
Environment and Climate Change – 26 May and 23 June 2022 
Economy – 26 May and 23 June 2022 
 
Decision 
 
To receive those minutes submitted. 
 
CC/20/60. Proceedings of Committees  
 
The minutes of the following meetings were submitted: 
 
• Audit Committee – 12 April & 14 June 2022 
• Constitutional and Nomination Committee – 13 July 2022 

The Council was asked to give particular consideration to the following 
recommendations from the minutes: 

 
CN/22/13 Appointments to Council Committee’s and GMCA Outside 
Bodies 

 
(1) To recommend the Council to make the following changes in appointments 

to Committees of the Council. 
 

Committee Member to be added Member to be removed 
Economy Scrutiny Cllr Shilton Godwin  
Planning Committee Cllr Hewitson Cllr Hitchen 
Health Scrutiny  Cllr Bayunu Cllr Johnson 

Cllr Wheeler 
Children & Young 
People Scrutiny 

Cllr Johnson Cllr Good 

Constitution & 
Nomination 
Committee 

Cllr Johnson Cllr Leech 

Health and 
Wellbeing Board 

 Dr Tracey Vell 
Dr Ruth Bromley 

Licensing Committee Cllr Hilal  
Licensing and 
Appeals Committee 

Cllr Hilal  

 
(2) To recommend the Council approve the appointment of Councillor 

Lanchbury as Chair of the Audit Committee. 
 

(3) To recommend the Council approve amendments to the GMCA Bodies as 
follows: 

 

Page 21

Item 3



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Council  13 July 2022 

GMCA Body 
 

Current Appointed 
Rep 

Proposed Appointed 
Rep 

GMCA Executive 
Board 

Cllr Rahman 
(Substitute) 

Cllr Midgley (Substitute) 
 

GM Waste & 
Recycling Committee 
 

Cllr Rawlins Cllr Igbon 

GM Works and Skills 
Executive 
 

Cllr White Cllr Hacking 

 
(4) To approve the appointment of substitutes to GMCA Bodies as follows: 

 
GMCA Body Current Appointed 

Rep 
Proposed Substitute 
Rep 

Integrated Care 
Partnership 
(formerly Health & 
Social Care 
Partnership Board) 
 

Cllr Craig Cllr T Robinson 
(Substitute) 

GM Culture and 
Social Impact Fund 
Cttee 
 

Cllr Whiston Cllr Flanagan 
(Substitute) 

GM Health Scrutiny 
Committee 
 

Cllr Butt Cllr Green 
(Substitute) 

 
CN/22/14 Terms of Office of the Independent Members of the 
Standards Committee and the Independent Persons 

 
To recommend that Council agree to extend the terms of office of Nicolé 
Jackson and Geoff Linnell (the two independent co-opted members of the 
Standards Committee) and Alan Eastwood and Sarah Beswick (the Council’s 
two Independent Persons) for a further four-year term. 

 
• Health & Wellbeing Board – 23 March and 6 July 2022  
• Licensing & Appeals – 6 June 2022 
• Planning & Highways – 31 May and 30 June 2022 
• Standards – 16 June 2022 
 
Decisions 
 
(1) To receive those minutes submitted. 
 
(2) To approve the changes in appointments to Committees of the Council, as 

detailed above. 
 

Page 22

Item 3



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Council  13 July 2022 

(3) To approve the appointment of Councillor Lanchbury as Chair of the Audit 
Committee 

 
(4) To approve the recommendation of the Constitutional and Nomination 

Committee regarding the extending the Terms of Office of the Independent 
Members of the Standards Committee and the Independent Persons. 

 
CC/20/61. Key Decisions Report  
 
The Council considered the report of the City Solicitor on key decisions that have 
been taken in accordance with the urgency provisions in the Council’s Constitution. 
 
Decision  
 
To note the report. 
 
 
 

Page 23

Item 3



This page is intentionally left blank



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Executive  22 July 2022 

 

Executive 
 

Minutes of the meeting held on Friday, 22 July 2022 
 
 
Present: Councillor Craig (Chair) 
 
Councillors: Akbar, Bridges, Hacking, Midgley, Rahman, Rawlins, T Robinson and  
White 
 
Also present as Members of the Standing Consultative Panel:  
Councillors: Douglas, Foley, Johnson, Leech, Lynch and Stanton 
 
Apologies: Councillor Igbon, Ahmed Ali, Butt and Collins 
 
Also present: Councillors:    
 
Exe/22/58 Minutes  
 
Decision 

  
The Executive approved as a correct record the minutes of the meeting on 29 June 
2022. 
 
Exe/22/59 Our Manchester Progress Update  
 
The Executive considered a report of the Chief Executive which provided an update 
on key areas of progress against the Our Manchester Strategy – Forward to 2025 
which reset Manchester’s priorities for the next five years to ensure the Council could 
still achieve the city’s ambition set out in the Our Manchester Strategy 2016 – 2025. 
  
The Leader placed on record her thanks to all Council staff, partners and residents of 
the city who worked with the Council in recognition of the Council wining the LGC 
Council of the year Award 2022.   
  
The Executive Member for Early Years, Children and Young People reported on the 
planned opening of a new High School, to be run by Dixons Academies Trust and 
serving the community in and around Newall Green and Wythenshawe in September 
2023.  The new co-educational free school – to be known as Dixons Newall Green – 
would open to pupils in Year 7 from next September on the site of the former Newall 
Green High School.  He also reported on a programme of events that took place 11-
16 July to celebrate and promote the importance of a child’s early life.  Free activities 
and events took place in cultural and leisure venues across the city, as well as Sure 
Start centres, for 0-2 year olds and their families with information and advice 
provided. In addition, the Executive Member reported on the Bee Green Summit, for 
school and college leaders who wanted to cut carbon emissions in their institutions 
which attracted more than 100 delegates representing 80 educational settings. 
 

Councillor Leech queried what the cost had been to the Council’s Education Services 

Page 25

Item 9



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Executive  22 July 2022 

 

for the closure of the former Newall Green High School.  He asked if a progress 
report could be provided to a future meeting on the impact of the Bee Green Summit. 
  
The Executive Member for Environment and Transport reported on the proposals that 
had been put forward for Deansgate, which would keep in place measures to reduce 
the amount of vehicular traffic using Deansgate.  The proposals for Deansgate aimed 
to maintain a balance between the space already given over to cyclist and 
pedestrians and the infrastructure still required for public transport and taxis. 
  
Councillor Leech asked if there was any empirical evidence of what had happened to 
the traffic that was no longer travelling along Deansgate and what potential impact 
these proposals would have on Clean Air Plans. 
  
The Deputy Executive Member for Skills, Employment and Leisure reported on the 
success of the city, as one of nine host cities of the UEFA Women’s European 
Championships. From 6 July to 31 July, Piccadilly Gardens was hosting a fan festival, 
welcoming fans from competing nations, showing games on a big screen, offering 
food and drink and a range of events and activities including football taster sessions.  
The fan zone had welcomed fans from a variety of European countries – all of whom 
had played group games in Greater Manchester. 
  
The Executive Member for Healthy Manchester and Adult Social Care reported that 
Manchester’s Health and Wellbeing board had given its support to a Greater 
Manchester Integrated Care Partnership project on smoke free outdoor spaces.  The 
partnership would begin public consultation on 8 August 2022 and as part of this 
consideration would be given to a number of potential pilot sites in the city centre.  
The project was intended to complement work currently being undertaken on 
Manchester’s Outdoor Spaces Strategy and wider health campaigns to encourage 
people to stop smoking. 
  
Councillor Leech commented that he hoped this pilot would not impact on smokers 
behaviour with a rise in people smoking at home amongst family members and 
sought clarity around the enforcement of smoking in open public spaces. 
  
Decision 

  
The Executive notes the report. 
  
Exe/22/60 Revenue Budget Monitoring  
 
The Executive considered a report of the Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer, 
which outlined the projected outturn position for 2021/22, based on expenditure and 
income activity as at the end of May 2022 and future projections. 
  
The Executive Member for Finance and Resources advised that the current budget 
monitoring forecast was estimating an overspend of £4.523m for 2022/23, based on 
activity to date and projected trends in income and expenditure, and includes the 
financial implications of COVID-19, government funding confirmed to date and other 
changes. 
  

Page 26

Item 9



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Executive  22 July 2022 

 

The overspend predominately related to a corporate £1.6m pressure on inflation 
requirements, a £3.7m shortfall in income in the Neighbourhoods directorate, driven 
by income shortfalls in off street parking and Christmas market revenue, offset by a 
£0.744m underspend in Children’s Services  
  
In relation to the delivery of the £7.837m of savings identified as part of the budget 
process, £3.390m were on track for delivery and £4.447m of these were risk rated 
amber in terms of the likelihood of delivery. 
  
The report set out the following virements that had been proposed as well as COVID 
19 related and non- COVID-19 related grants received:- 
  
Virements 

  

•                £2.6m budget for the Children’s Legal Service transferred from  Children 
Services to Corporate Core to reflect the ongoing restructure of Children’s legal 
service and its alignment to the Council's Legal Services; 

•                Within Adult Social Care, long term care budgets had been reset aligned to 
clients in receipt of care as at 31st March. At the same time, income budgets 
had also been updated to reflect the level of income being received. 

  
COVID 19 related Grants 

  

•                COVID Local Support Grant –  £6.453m added to the budget since the budget 
was set to provide  support to households who would otherwise struggle to 
meet essential living or housing costs in exceptional cases of genuine 
emergency. 

  
Non COVID 19 related Grants 

  

•                Local authority domestic abuse duty - £1.657m; 

•                Council Tax Energy Rebate Core scheme - £32.488m; 

•                Council Tax Energy Rebate Discretionary scheme - £1.626m; 

•                Council Tax Energy Rebate New Burdens initial payment - £295k; 

•                TfGM Active Travel Complimentary Measures Revenue Fund (School streets) - 
£50k; 

•                Establishing Welcome Points for Ukranian Refugees - £140k; 

•                Rough Sleeper initiative £2.963m; and 

•                Homes for Ukraine - £1.743m. 
  
Inflation budgets for pay and non pay costs were being held corporately. The 2021/22 
pay award had been agreed and paid right at the end of the financial year and after 
the budget for 2022/23 was set. The £4.549m cost, which included the National 
Insurance increase, had been allocated to Directorate budgets. 
  
In addition, approval was also sought on the following use of reserves:- 
  

• Development of burial land (Bereavement Services) - £58k; 

Page 27

Item 9



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Executive  22 July 2022 

 

• Review of City Centre Controlled Parking Zone and on street tariffs (Parking 
Reserve) - £100k; and 

• Domestic Abuse New Burdens ‘safe accommodation’ funding underspend - 
£0.866m 

  
The Executive Member for Finance and Resources advised that it was very early in 
the financial year and vigilance was needed given there were significant uncertainties 
and risks to the position as cost of living pressures could increase. 
  
Councillor Leech sought clarity on what proportion of the projected overspend was 
directly or indirectly as a result of inflation; whether there would be any additional 
costs associated with TRO’s arising from the review of City Centre Controlled Parking 
Zone; was the collection rate for Council Tax achieved and was there a reason for 
the increased number of voids within the HRA. 
  
The Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer commented that almost all of the 
projected overspend was attributable to inflationary pressures and it was unlikely that 
there would be any further government support to address this.  In terms of a review 
of City Centre Controlled Parking Zone and on street tariffs, there were still changes 
in modal shifts from covid impacting on parking revenue alongside cost of living 
pressures and at present it was just a feasibility study.  The Council Tax collection 
rates were forecasted at 96.5% which was monitored closely across the year.  In 
terms of Voids, these were high at the point Northwards transferred back into the 
Council but the Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer was confident that this 
alongside the increase in overheads would be addressed. 
  
Decisions 

  
The Executive:- 
  
(1)      Note the outturn position which is showing a £4.523m overspend. 
  
(2)      Approve budget virements to be reflected in the budget 
  
(3)      Approve additional COVID-19 grants to be reflected in the budget. 
  
(4)      Approve the use of unbudgeted external grant funding (non COVID-19). 
  
(5)      Approve the use of budgets to be allocated. 
  
(6)      Approve the use of reserves 

  
 
Exe/22/61 Capital Update Report  
 
The Executive considered a report of the Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer, 
which informed Members of requests to increase the capital programme, sought 
approval for those schemes that could be approved under authority delegated to the 
Executive and asked the Executive to recommend to Council proposals that required 
specific Council approval. 

Page 28

Item 9



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Executive  22 July 2022 

 

  
The proposals which required Council approval were those which were funded by the 
use of reserves above a cumulative total of £2 million, where the use of borrowing 
was required or a virement exceeded £0.5m. These included the following proposed 
changes:- 
  

• Neighbourhoods – Manchester Aquatic Centre.  A capital budget virement of 
£0.996m in 2023/24, £1.934m in 2024/25, funded by borrowing via the Inflation 
Budget and a capital budget increase of £0.070m in 2025/, funded by 
borrowing, for the rephasing of refurbishment works following the successful 
application to host the World Para Swimming Championships in 2023. 

 

• Neighbourhoods – Indoor Leisure (Abraham Moss).  A capital budget virement 
of £0.980m in 2022/23 and £0.420m in 2023/24, funded by borrowing via the 
Inflation Budget to account for additional inflation costs in labour and materials 
incurred by the main contractor procuring the construction packages in line with 
the procurement programme following a delay in the project. 

 

• Growth and Development – Hammerstone Road Depot.  A capital budget 
virement of £2.267m in 2023/24 and £0.053m in 2024/25, funded by borrowing 
via the Inflation Budget and a capital budget increase of £4.280m in 2024/25, 
funded by borrowing for increased works required alongside inflationary 
pressures. 

  
The proposals which did not require Council approval and only required Executive 
approval were those which were funded by the use of external resources, use of 
capital receipts, use of reserves below £10.0m, where the proposal could be funded 
from existing revenue budgets or where the use of borrowing on a spend to save 
basis is required.  The following proposals required Executive approval for changes 
to the City Council’s capital programme:- 
  

• Private Sector Housing – Housing Affordability Fund (HAF).  A capital budget 
increase of £9.111m, funded by £1.997m External Contribution – S106 and   

£7.114m Capital Receipts to help continue to deliver further homes for families 
and individuals living in temporary accommodation. 

 

• Growth and Development - Essential Remediation Works at the City Art Gallery 
and Queens Park Conservation Studios.  A capital budget increase of £4.5m in 
2022/23 funded by Capital Receipts and a capital budget virement of £1.950m 
funded from the Asset Management Programme (AMP) budget to  progress 
feasibility works and to develop a composite programme of works. 

 

• ICT - Resident and Business Digital Experience (RBDxP).  A capital budget 
decrease of £0.651m and corresponding transfer of £0.651m to the revenue 
budget, funded by Capital Fund to progress the RBDxP project which would  
transform the way the Council interacted with residents, businesses, and 
partners whilst improving efficiency. 

 

Page 29

Item 9



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Executive  22 July 2022 

 

• ICT - Legal Services Case Management Replacement.  A capital budget 
decrease of £0.450m and approval of a corresponding transfer of £0.450m to 
the revenue budget, funded by Capital Fund to progress the scheme. 

 

• Public Sector Housing – Silk Street.  A capital budget increase of £0.109m in 
2022/23, £0.238m in 2023/24 and £0.153m in 2024/25, funded by HRA Reserve 
due to increased cost pressures to labour rates, mechanical and electrical 
works and superstructure work packages. 

 

• Growth and Development – House of Sport.  A capital budget reduction of 
£1.256m funded by borrowing on an invest to save basis. A funding switch of 
£0.183m External contribution, £0.533m Invest to Save (Waterfall Fund) and 
£1.990m Capital from a virement from Asset Management Programme (AMP) 
offsetting £2.706m of Borrowing on an invest to save basis due to changes to 
the scope changes of the project a consequence of the scheme being reduced 
in scale in response to the impact of the Covid-19 Pandemic on new ways of 
working. 

  
The report highlighted that if the recommendations in the report were approved the 
General Fund capital budget would increase by £14.114m across financial years 
which would also result in an increase in the prudential indicator for Capital 
Expenditure in corresponding years.  
  
Approval had also been given for the following capital budget virements:- 
  

• £0.526m to be allocated for SEND Expansions – Birches, Lancs & Rodney 
House from Unallocated Education Basic Need budget. This project would 
deliver 44 additional school places across the three locations. 

 

• An allocation from Education Basic Need funding of £2.4m for Manchester 
Enterprise Academy – September 2022 Bulge Class. This project would create 
an additional 60 bulge class places at Manchester Enterprise Academy to meet 
demand for year 7 pupils in September 2022. 

 

• £0.109m for urgent repairs to the heating system at St. John’s Primary School 
funded from grant funding within the Schools Maintenance budget. 

 

• £0.214m from the unallocated Schools Maintenance budget has been approved 
for urgent repairs to the hall/dining room roof at Broad Oak Primary School. 

 

The report also provided an update on the Levelling Up Fund bid as part of the wider 
strategic regeneration programme for Wythenshawe Town Centre, and update on the 
progress of Phase 1 development for This City at Rodney Street (Ancoats and 
Beswick Ward) and an update on the applicable interest rates now payable in relation 
to a number of historic mortgages, provided for specific regeneration schemes in the 
north of the city due to them having reached the end of the intended term 

  
Councillor Leech sought clarification on the proposed length of time to recover the 
cost of the Hammerstone Road depot refurbishment through savings and was there 

Page 30

Item 9



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Executive  22 July 2022 

 

any concerns about the potential of being able to meet all the costs over and above 
the grants that could become available in relation to the Levelling Up bid. 
  
The Executive Member for Housing and Development explained that the proposed 
redevelopment for Wythenshawe was not solely dependent on the Levelling Up bid 
and that this would only help accelerate the wider master plan for Wythenshawe, 
which would be delivered with funding from a number of investors.  In addition the 
Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer, in her capacity as the Council’s Section 
151 officer was confident that the that the Council had sufficient budget to deliver the 
scheme and that any costs over and above the grant funding could be met by the 
Council.  The Chief Executive added that if the bid was successful, a request for 
funding would be submitted to the Council’s capital approval process and would be 
reported to the Executive for approval. 
  
Decisions 

  
The Executive:- 
  
(1)      Recommend that Council approve the following changes to Manchester City 

Council’s capital programme: 
  

• Neighbourhoods – Manchester Aquatic Centre. A capital budget 
virement of £2.930m, funded by borrowing via the Inflation Budget and a 
further capital budget increase of £0.070m, funded by borrowing. 

 

• Neighbourhoods – Indoor Leisure – Abraham Moss. A capital budget 
virement of £1.4m, funded by borrowing via the Inflation Budget 

 

• Growth and Development – Hammerstone Road Depot. A capital 
budget virement of £2.320m, funded by borrowing via the Inflation 
Budget and a further capital budget increase of £4.280m, funded by 
borrowing. 

 

(2)      Under powers delegated to the Executive, to approve the following changes to 
the Council’s capital programme: 
  

• Private Sector Housing – Housing Affordability Fund (HAF). A capital 
budget increase of £9.111m, funded by £1.997 External Contribution – 
S106 and £7.114m Capital Receipts. 

 

• Growth and Development - Essential Remediation Works at the City Art 
Gallery and Queens Park Conservation Studios. A capital budget 
increase of £4.5m, funded by Capital Receipts, and a capital budget 
virement of £1.950m funded from the Asset Management Programme 
(AMP) budget. 

 

• ICT - Resident and Business Digital Experience (RBDxP). A capital 
budget decrease of £0.651m and approval of a corresponding transfer 
of £0.651m to the revenue budget, funded by Capital Fund.  

 

Page 31

Item 9



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Executive  22 July 2022 

 

• ICT – Legal Services Case Management Replacement. A capital budget 
decrease of £0.450m and approval of a corresponding transfer of 
£0.450m to the revenue budget, funded by Capital Fund. 

 

• Public Sector Housing – Silk Street. A capital budget increase of 
£0.500m, funded by HRA Reserve. 

 

• Growth and Development – House of Sport. A capital budget reduction 
of £1.256m funded by borrowing on an invest to save basis. A funding 
switch with £0.183m External contribution, £0.533m Invest to Save 
(Waterfall Fund) and £1.990m Capital receipts from a virement from 
Asset Management Programme (AMP) offsetting £2.706m of Borrowing 
on an invest to save basis. 

  
(3)      Note the virements in the programme of £3.249m as a result of virements from 

approved budgets. 
  
(4)      Note the assurances the Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer will be 

required to provide as part of the proposed Levelling Up Fund bid. 
  
(5)      Note the update on This City, and the use of the existing revenue budget to 

continue to develop proposals for a second site 

  
(6)      Note the change to the applicable mortgage rate. 
  
Exe/22/62 GM Clean Air Plan review  
 
The Executive considered a report of the Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer 
and City Solicitor, which provided an update on progress made on the Greater 
Manchester Clean Air Plan (GM CAP) policy review prior to its formal submission to 
government. 
  
Government had issued directions to local authorities in the UK, including those in 
Greater Manchester, to take action to address illegal exceedances of Nitrogen 
Dioxide (NO2) in the shortest possible time and, initially in the case of GM, by 2024 
at the latest.  In late 2021 GM authorities commissioned an independent review of 
emerging global supply chain issues and the impact this could have on the cost and 
availability of vehicles, particularly vans. 
  
The review illustrated that the previous agreed plan would cause businesses and 
residents financial hardship and the Government agreed with Greater Manchester’s 
assessment that the plan was no longer likely to achieve compliance in 2024 due to 
the impact of the pandemic and the supply chain issues for compliant vehicles.  
Subsequently the Government revoked the direction requiring the implementation of 
a category C charging Clean Air Zone to enable a review of existing measures, in 
order to determine if any changes should be made and to submit that review to the 
Secretary of State. 
  

Page 32

Item 9



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Executive  22 July 2022 

 

Any new plan would still need to be deliverable and reduce NO2 concentrations to 
below legal limits in the shortest possible time and by 2026 at the latest, in a way that 
recognises the cost-of-living crisis and post pandemic economic conditions.  
  
The Leader advised that the proposed new plan would use the £120 million of Clean 
Air funding that the Government had awarded to Greater Manchester to deliver an 
investment led approach to invest in vehicle upgrades, rather than imposing daily 
charges.  An investment-led approach would be combined with all the wider 
measures that GM was implementing and aimed to reduce NO2 emissions to within 
legal limits, in the shortest possible time and at the latest by 2026. Unlike the 
previous charging-led scheme defined by Government guidance, the investment-led 
scheme would seek to factor in the cost-of-living crisis, it would actively consider the 
impacts of the pandemic and wider global economic instability on supply chains, and 
crucially considered the significant beneficial effects that the delivery of electric bus 
could have along key routes 

  
Subject to any comments of Greater Manchester local authorities, the next Air Quality 
Administration Committee would confirm the final submission and notify the Secretary 
of State of the change in status.  By applying a Participatory Policy Development 
process, Greater Manchester would develop, assess and agree a package of 
measures forming a proposed new GM CAP.   This package of measures would be 
consulted upon in early 2023.  Greater Manchester would review the responses to 
the consultation and make any adaptations to the proposals as necessary. It was 
anticipated that a decision could be made to proceed with the new GM CAP 
thereafter. 
  
Councillor Leech sought clarity on what the number of NO2 exceedances was based 
on and whether the Council was going to receive the necessary funding to enable the 
conversion of other forms of transport, such as HGV’s coaches, hackney carriages 
and private hire vehicles in order to meet the targets that have been set. 
  
Councillor Johnson sought assurance around the ability to deliver the CAP vehicle 
and other investment measures and cluster measures. 
  
Decisions 

  
The Executive:- 
  
(1)      Note the 'Case for a new Greater Manchester Clean Air Plan’ document 

attached as Appendix 1 and associated appendices 2 to 6 has been submitted 
to the Secretary of State as a draft document subject to any comments from 
Manchester City Council ahead of the next Air Quality Administration 
Committee. 

  
(2)      Note that Cllr Tracey Rawlins as the Manchester City Council appointed 

representative on the Air Quality Administration Committee will represent 
Manchester City Council’s comments; 

  

Page 33

Item 9



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Executive  22 July 2022 

 

(3)      Note the initial screening undertaken to assess which protected characteristics 
are likely to be impacted by the new GM Clean Air Plan, and in scope for the 
Equalities Impact Assessment; 

  
(4)      Note the updated Do Minimum position for 2023 and 2025 and the forecasted 

points of exceedance in GM in 2023 and 2025; and 

  
(5)      Note the participatory policy development approach and the next steps for the 

GM CAP. 
  
(6)      Note the new ‘ask’ from Government to remove out-of-area operation by private 

hire drivers/vehicles to support the new GM Clean Air Plan; 
  
(7)      Note feedback from early engagement activity with vehicle owner representative 

groups; 
  
(8)      Note the NO2 monitoring results and the exceedances of the annual mean 

across sites set up for GM CAP purposes between 2018 and 2021. 
  
 
Exe/22/63 Manchester Housing Strategy 2022-32  
 
The Executive considered a report of the Interim Director of Housing and Residential 
Growth, which provided an update on the new Manchester Housing Strategy (2022 – 
2032). 
  
The new strategy had been developed against the backdrop of a growing residential 
and employment offer which had attracted people into the city from both the UK and 
overseas and resulted in a huge increase in the city’s population with exceptionally 
high associated demand for housing.  The strategy set out a long-term vision which 
considered how best to deliver the city’s housing priorities and objectives, building on 
progress already made, whilst tackling head on the scale and complexity of the 
challenges ahead. The priorities for the new Housing Strategy had been agreed as 
follows:- 
  

• Increase affordable housing supply & build more new homes for all residents 

• Work to end homelessness and ensure housing is affordable & accessible to all 

• Address inequalities and create neighbourhoods & homes where people want to 
live 

• Address the sustainability & zero carbon challenges in new and existing 
housing stock 

  
The Strategy had been drafted based on the findings of the extensive engagement 
activity, which captured the views and opinions of key stakeholders in relation to both 
the housing challenges and opportunities facing the city. This process had been used 
to establish the above key priority themes and agree practical ambitions to respond 
to these challenges. 
  
Once the Housing Strategy had been finalised, a delivery plan would be developed. 
The actions detailed in the delivery plan would set out a clear blueprint for how the 

Page 34

Item 9



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Executive  22 July 2022 

 

Council would realise this strategy’s vision and fulfil the commitments that had been 
made. The delivery plan would be reviewed on an ongoing basis and refreshed as 
per the workstreams that sit under it. 
  
Councillor Johnson sought clarity on how the monitoring of outcomes would be 
achieved and noted that the equality impact assessment did not identify any potential 
risks of the strategy. 
  
Councillor Leech sought clarity on the number of affordable homes that the strategy 
would deliver and on what basis was this figure determined. 
  
Councillor Akbar welcomed the positive difference the strategy would make to 
residents of Manchester, including the tackling of rogue landlords. 
  
Decisions 

  
The Executive agrees to adopt the Manchester Housing Strategy (2022-2032). 
 
Exe/22/64 HS2 Update and Petition  
 
The Executive considered a report of the Strategic Director (Growth and 
Development), which detailed the current progress of the High Speed (Crewe – 
Manchester) Bill (known as ‘HS2 Phase 2b’) in Parliament and outlined the key 
issues which the Council intended to petition against. 
  
The House of Commons passed the Second Reading of the Bill on 20 June, meaning 
the Select Committee stage (i.e., petitioning stage) of the parliamentary process had 
now formally commenced, with a deadline for any petitions to be returned by no later 
than 5pm on 4 August 2022. 
  
Manchester was continuing to work closely with Greater Manchester (GM) Partners 
in preparing their respective petitions, as well as with neighbouring authorities, such 
as Cheshire East on issues of joint concern. The Council’s petition would be aligned 
with those of other GM partners, whilst emphasising and highlighting issues of 
particular concern for the city. 
  
A number of the key areas that the Council would be petitioning on included:- 
  

• The proposals for a surface terminus station at Manchester Piccadilly; 

• The lack of a commitment to commitment to remove Gateway House on Station 
Approach; 

• The lack of consideration of local transport and environment, zero carbon and 
clean air policies in relation to a proposed gyratory junction layout at Pin Mill 
Brow; 

• The proposals for two multi storey car parks with a total capacity of 
approximately 2,000 parking spaces situated on the proposed Boulevard 
included in the Piccadilly SRF; 

• The relocation of the current ramp used by Network Rail to access the viaduct 
at Piccadilly Station for maintenance and catering; 

Page 35

Item 9



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Executive  22 July 2022 

 

• The proposed new sub surface Metrolink Piccadilly stop did not fully integrate 
Metrolink with the high-speed and classic rail services or provide adequate 
future-proofing; 

• The proposed passive provision for NPR connections to Leeds in the Ardwick 
area; 

• Issues with the Manchester Tunnel ventilation shafts and south tunnel portal; 
and 

• The need for improved Integration of HS2 and Metrolink with Manchester 
Airport. 

  
The Council would complete the petition and submit it to the House of Commons by 
the deadline of 4 August 2022 and would also review the first Additional Provision to 
identify whether it should also submit a petition on that. Following submission, the 
Council would prepare to appear before the Select Committee to represent and 
protect the interests of the Council, its residents, communities and businesses, and 
ensure the best scheme for the city, the North of England and the UK. 
  
Councillor Stanton endorsed the petition being out forward to ensure HS2 fully 
mitigated any loss of the flood basin capacity in West Didsbury for the best protection 
of residents and businesses in the area. 
  
Councillor Johnson supported the reasons for the Council petitioning the Bill, 
recognising the plans for Piccadilly station did not future proof the station and the 
need for improved integration with Manchester Airport. 
  
Councillor Leech commented on the large number of vehicle movements that would 
come as part of the construction works and the need to address these as part of the 
petition. 
  
Decisions 

  
The Executive:- 
  
(1)      Note the current progress of the High Speed (Crewe - Manchester) hybrid Bill 

(“the Bill”), as introduced into 24th January 2022 session of Parliament, as 
detailed in this report. 

  
(2)      Note the proposed key contents of the City Council’s petition against aspects of 

the Bill, set out in this report. 
  
(3)      Note that the Department for Transport is bringing forward ‘Additional Provisions’ 

to amend the Bill, and that it may be necessary for the Council to petition 
against the Additional Provisions in addition to petitioning against the Bill. 

  
(4)      Note the delegated authority approved by Council on 4 March 2022 to the 

Strategic Director – Growth & Development, in consultation with the Leader and 
City Solicitor, to take all the steps required for the Council to submit any petition 
(including petitions against Additional Provisions) and thereafter to maintain and 
if considered appropriate authorise the withdrawal of any petition points that 

Page 36

Item 9



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Executive  22 July 2022 

 

have been resolved  in respect of the Bill, and to negotiate and/or seek 
assurances / undertaking/agreements to aspects of the Bill. 

  
(5)      Note that the full petition will be provided to Members following its submission to 

House of Commons on 4 August 2022. 
  
Exe/22/65 Community Development in Manchester  
 
The Executive considered a report of the Director of Public Health, which set out the 
context and rationale for the proposal to bring back into Council control the provision 
of the community development service to be delivered by the Neighbourhoods 
Directorate. 
  
Community development brought people in a community together to take action on 
what was important to them.  Good quality community development formed the basis 
of the “communities and power” theme of Manchester’s Building Back Fairer action 
plan and would also be critical to the success of the entire plan.  This would be 
achieved by helping communities to organise, and to identify the issues they wanted 
to address or the opportunities they wanted to explore. The intention was that 
community groups would be supported to use their skills and experiences and make 
the most of local assets to bring about positive changes and improve community life. 
  
The Council currently had a contract with Greater Manchester Mental Health 
(GMMH) Foundation Trust, to deliver the Buzz neighbourhood health and wellbeing 
service (the service has two elements - community development and knowledge and 
information). The contract with GMMH was scheduled to expire on 31 December 
2022. 
  
Although a lot of good work is already happening, many of our current approaches, 
while well intentioned, still focus on providing some form of service to a community, 
providing them with information/signposting, or supporting a community to set up a 
service based on a need we have identified. More could be done to focus on equity, 
strengthening the focus on what is important to communities and enabling them to 
take action, and facilitating this way of working across all the social determinants of 
health. 
  
The ‘new’ community development approach would sit within the Council’s 
Neighbourhoods Directorate and link with current activities to enable and embed a 
resource that released the capacity of the whole system to deliver the Building Back 
Fairer action plan. This proposal sought to strengthen and add value to the work 
already happening to support a community development approach that was 
appropriate for Manchester and build capacity to deliver the action plan with local 
communities. It built on the knowledge and experience of the Buzz Neighbourhood 
Health and Wellbeing Service, whilst recognizing the civic leadership role of the 
Council and the new place-based leadership arrangements under the Integrated 
Care System. 
  
A ‘task and finish’ group had been established to support the design and 
implementation of the new approach.  All relevant stakeholders, including key staff 
from Population Health, the Neighbourhoods Directorate, Performance Research and 

Page 37

Item 9



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Executive  22 July 2022 

 

Intelligence, the Manchester Local Care Organisation, Human Resources and Legal 
Services, VCSE sector and Buzz staff would be consulted, and formal processes 
undertaken. The Senior Responsible Officers would be the Assistant Director of 
Population Health and the Head of Neighbourhoods. 
  
Decisions 

  
The Executive:- 
  
(1)      Approve the proposal that the delivery of a Community Development service will 

be provided by the Council’s Neighbourhoods Directorate when the current 
contract with GMMH for the Buzz Health and Wellbeing service ends on 31 
December 2022. 

  
(2)      Agree that the current funding for the community development element of the 

Buzz service (£1 million in total, including staffing costs of £850k) will fund the 
community development service in the MCC Neighbourhoods Directorate. 

  
(3)      Agree that GMMH staff currently delivering the Buzz Neighbourhood Health and 

Wellbeing (community development) function, who are eligible for TUPE, will 
transfer from GMMH to the MCC Neighbourhoods Directorate to form part of the 
new community development service, from 1 January 2023. 

  
Exe/22/66 Disposal of Land at Greenwood Road and Gladeside Road, 

Woodhouse Park  
 
The Executive considered a report of the Strategic Director (Growth and 
Development), which sought approval to grant a new, overriding development lease 
to Wythenshawe Community Housing Group of land at Greenwood Road and 
Gladeside Road, Woodhouse Park, Wythenshawe, to facilitate the delivery of a social 
tenure housing scheme supported by Homes England funding. 
  
The development would comprise of a new residential scheme of 40 apartments all of 
which were to be a social rent tenure. The scheme would be low carbon and 
sustainable, employing technologies such as heat pumps and solar panels. 
  
The proposed lease was for a term of 990 years at a premium of £310,000 which was 
less than the best consideration that could reasonably be obtained on the basis of an 
unrestricted disposal.  The total reduction in sales price was £125,000.  This was 
considered an acceptable compromise and a good result given the Council would be 
securing 40 new homes, all for social rent. 
  
Decisions 

  
The Executive:- 
  
(1)      Approve the basis of the land transaction at less than best consideration. 
  
(2)      Authorise the Strategic Director (Growth and Development) to finalise the terms 

of the transaction as set out in this report. 

Page 38

Item 9



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Executive  22 July 2022 

 

  
(3)      Authorise the City Solicitor to enter into and complete all documents and 

agreements necessary to give effect to the recommendations. 
 
Exe/22/67 Review of Home to School Travel support including draft policies 

and developing a new approach to improve service delivery  
 
The Executive considered a report of the Director of Education, which set out the 
proposal to adopt two Home to School travel support policies. These proposals would 
apply to all applicants for pupils starting at reception in primary schools and year 7 at 
secondary schools in September 2023.   It would also apply to young people entering 
post 16 or post 19 provision in years 12 and 14  
  
All children and young people would have an Education Health and Care Plan 
(EHCP) to be eligible for support. 
  
Both policies are based on the following principles:  
  

• A commitment to ensuring children and young people could fulfil their potential 
and that all children and young people with significant special educational 
needs or disability should lead lives that were as independent and as free from 
restriction as possible;  

• Promoting inclusive opportunities to enable children and young people to  travel 
to and from school or college independently or using family based approaches 
similar to those used by other children and young people wherever possible, 
taking account of their age and needs;  

• Promoting sustainable, safe, healthy and appropriate travel solutions by working 
in partnership with parents/carers to support them with their legal responsibility 
to make sure their children attend school;  

• A commitment to equality of opportunity and the celebration of diversity and an 
opposition to all forms of discrimination; and  

• Efficient use of public resources, delivering better outcomes and providing 
better value for money. 

  
Feedback from young people through different forums and through the recent 
OFSTED inspection had been consistent. Young people with SEND wanted to learn 
to travel independently and where possible travel to school or college in the same 
way as their peers.  Consequently, the policies would introduce a number of new 
travel solutions to support this principle. The aim was for children and young people 
with SEND to be able to walk or cycle to school and to travel independently using our 
public transport to attend education provision. Travel by minibus or taxi would remain 
an option where families required this transport support. 
  
As part of a review of wider service improvement, a review of current active routes 
would be undertaken to ensure that vehicles were being fully utilised.  In addition 
discussions with current operators would take place to review their capacity in order 
to provide additional journeys in September and also review what support would be 
required from the Local Authority to ensure these journeys could continue into the 
next academic year. 
  

Page 39

Item 9



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Executive  22 July 2022 

 

Decisions 

  
The Executive:- 
  
(1)      Agree in principle the Home to School Travel support policy for 5–16-year-olds, 

the Home to School Travel support policy for post 16 and the Home to School 
Travel support summary. 

  
(2)      Agree that the Director of Education consults on the proposed implementation of 

these policies. 
  
(3)      Authorises the Director of Education to consider any responses received to the 

consultation and to agree to the implementation of the proposed policies if she 
considers it appropriate to do so. 

  
(4)      Note the work to date on the wider service improvement programme and agree 

to progress the identified areas of improvement. 
  
 
Exe/22/68 Manchester Accommodation Business Improvement District (BID)  
 
This item was deferred to September’s meeting. 
 
 
 

Page 40

Item 9



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Executive  14 September 2022 

 

Executive 
 

Minutes of the meeting held on Wednesday, 14 September 2022 
 
Present: Councillor Craig (Chair) 
 
Councillors: Akbar, Bridges, Hacking, Igbon, Midgley, Rahman, Rawlins, 
T Robinson and White 
 
Also present as Members of the Standing Consultative Panel:  
Councillors: Ahmed Ali, Butt, Collins, Foley, Leech and Stanton 
 
Apologies: Councillor Douglas, Johnson and Lynch 
 
Exe/22/69 Minutes Silence - HRH Queen Elizabeth II  
 
As a mark of respect, all Members and Officers present stood for a minute silence in 
respect of the passing of HRH Queen Elizabeth II. 
 
Exe/22/70 Minutes  
 
Decision 

  
The Executive approved as a correct record the minutes of the meeting on 22 July 
2022. 
 
Exe/22/71 Our Manchester Progress Update  
 
The Executive considered a report of the Chief Executive which provided an update 
on key areas of progress against the Our Manchester Strategy – Forward to 2025 
which reset Manchester’s priorities for the next five years to ensure the Council could 
still achieve the city’s ambition set out in the Our Manchester Strategy 2016 – 2025. 
  
The Executive Member for Housing and Development reported that planning 
approval had been granted for the building of 128 properties in relation to the first 
project by the Council’s This City housing company at Rodney Street in Ancoats.  
Almost a third of the homes would be made available at the Manchester Living Rent.  
The development brought back into use a brownfield site in a highly sustainable 
location close to the city centre enabling residents to walk, cycle and use public 
transport to access local services and employment. 
  
The Executive Member for Housing and Development also reported that a £20m bid 
for Levelling Up funding to jump start the transformation of Wythenshawe town centre 
had been submitted to the government by the Council.  If successful it would 
represent a leap forward for the regeneration of the town centre and help support the 
creation of hundreds of jobs – and thousands of new homes, including affordable 
homes, on nearby Council-owned brownfield land. 
  

Page 41

Item 9



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Executive  14 September 2022 

 

Councillor Leech sought clarification on when a decision by government on 
Manchester’s bid could be expected and what was the Council’s plan for the 
redevelopment of Wythenshawe if the bid was unsuccessful 
  
The Executive Member for Children and Families reported that as part of the Our 
Year campaign, a Play festival was hosted last month on National Play Day to 
celebrate children’s right to play.  The event, held in partnership between Manchester 
City Council, the Manchester Play Network and Play England, attracted more than 
3,000 attendees. It featured free activities ranging from messy play and sensory 
activities for toddlers and younger children to a climbing wall and DJ and circus 
workshops for children of all ages, abilities and backgrounds. 
  
The Executive Member for Children and Families also reported that the provisional A 
Level and GCSE outcomes for Manchester schools, sixth forms and colleges 
compared very favourably to the national picture and to the last examined GCSE and 
A Level results in Manchester from 2019, which was a significant achievement 
particularly in the light of the considerable challenges of the last two years. 
  
The Deputy Leader informed Members that the latest round of the Our Manchester 
Voluntary and Community Sector (OMVCS) grants programme had been launched.  
The refreshed grant programme aimed to support VCS organisations with a track 
record of delivering services to Manchester people, with a focus on some of the city’s 
key priorities such as inclusion, health, tackling poverty and addressing climate 
change. 
  
The Executive Member for Environment reported on a scientific study, partly funded 
by the Council, which involved four Manchester primary schools and demonstrated 
that selective planting of ‘tredges’ (trees managed as hedges’) between busy roads 
and playgrounds helped protect children from air pollution.  The Council was now 
considering how learnings from the study could be applied within the city as part of its 
wider measures to improve air quality. 
  
Councillor Leech commented that given the reported positive outcomes of the study, 
he hoped the Council would consider selective planting of tredges for schools on 
main arterial routes. 
  
Decision 

  
The Executive note the update 

 
Exe/22/72 Revenue Global Monitoring  
 
The Executive considered a report of the Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer, 
which provided an overview of the Council’s current financial position for 2022/23. 
  
The Executive Member for Finance and Resources advised that since the budget 
was set in February 2022, there had been several significant changes that were 
impacting on the Councils financial position which was resulting in a forecast overall 
position for 2022/23 of an overspend of £20.1m,  a deterioration of £15.6m since the 
last report to Executive in July. This was mainly due to the announcement of a higher 

Page 42

Item 9



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Executive  14 September 2022 

 

than expected one year pay award offer for 2022/23 (£9.5m), additional utilities 
inflation (£3.9m), higher than expected price inflation (£3.6m) and other pressures, 
largely relating to income shortfalls (£3.4m).This shortfall was projected to increase to  
£33m next year and £73m by 2024/25. 
  
In relation to the delivery of the required £13.4m of net savings, £3.2m were forecast 
to be delivered and £4.7m considered at medium risk. £5.5m had been mitigated 
through the use of reserves as part of the budget process, as delivery against the 
original plan in Adults services was delayed due to the ongoing pandemic in 2021/22. 
Officers were working to address these to ensure all savings are achieved or 
mitigated on recurrent basis. 
  
At this stage there was no indication of any financial support from central 
government, consequently, all directorates where being required to review budgets 
and identify in year savings and mitigations to support the current year position, 
including bringing forward savings options being developed for next year, only filling 
vacancies where necessary for service and savings delivery and discretionary spend 
to be reduced or delayed amongst other mitigations.  Any remaining overspend which 
could not be mitigated in year would require a call on the smoothing reserve or the 
general fund reserve. 
  
The inflationary pressures outlined in the report were expected to continue into future 
years.  This coupled with funding uncertainty increased the risks associated with 
setting a balanced and sustainable long-term financial plan and represented a 
deterioration of the Council’s financial position if no action is taken.  It was therefore 
vital that the Council continued with its programme of innovation and reform and 
developed its operating model to help tackle these challenges and keep the Council’s 
finances stable and sustainable.  
  
A programme of budget cuts and savings totalling £60m was being developed and 
would be reported to scrutiny committees in November 2022.  To support and 
mitigate against the high levels of uncertainty a full review of reserves had been 
undertaken to enable a realistic and resilient budget to be set.  Whilst it was early in 
the financial year, vigilance was needed given there were significant uncertainties 
and risks to the position and inflationary pressures could increase further.  
  
Officers were working to reduce the overspend through identifying in year efficiencies 
and working with suppliers to reduce and mitigate inflation requirements. Progress 
would be reported back to Executive in December. 
Councillor Leech sought clarification on the level of inflation officers had used in 
calculating the Council’s financial position, what adjustments would need to be made 
to future years budgets should revenue income not return to previous levels and 
whether there was any restrictions on which Parks would be eligible to the Levelling 
Up Parks fund. 
  
Decisions 

  
The Executive:- 
  

Page 43

Item 9



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Executive  14 September 2022 

 

(1) Note the report and forecast outturn position which is showing a £20.1m 
overspend. 

(2)  Approve the use of unbudgeted external grant funding as set out in Appendix 2 
to the report. 

(3)  Approve the use of budgets to be allocated as set out in Appendix 2 to the 
report. 

(4) Approve the use of reserves as set out in Appendix 2 to the report. 
(5) Note that an urgent key decision will be taken in relation to agreeing the energy 

contracts as set out at paragraph 2.8 of the report. 
 
Exe/22/73 Capital Programme Monitoring 2022/23  
 
The Executive considered a report of the Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer, 
which provided an update on the progress against the delivery of the 2022/23 capital 
programme to the end of July 2022.  The report also provided the latest forecast of 
capital expenditure and the major variances since the Capital Programme Outturn 
report submitted in June 2022 and the proposed financing of capital expenditure for 
2022/23 and affordability of  
the Capital Programme. 
  
The Executive Member for Finance and Resources reported that overall, there was 
underspend of £1.1m against the Capital Programme and consequently the capital 
budget would be reduced by this amount when it was next revised. There were also a 
number of projects which were currently forecast to require reprofiling over years and 
this would also be reflected in the February budget report. 
  
The top 10 projects within the Capital Programme accounted for 79.4% of the total 
programme and the report provided a focussed look on each of these projects, as 
well as any other material changes relating to other parts of the programme since the 
last report to Executive. 
  
The most significant risk facing the programme and major projects overall was the 
continued high levels of inflation being experienced, particularly where contracts were 
not yet agreed.  There were options available to the Council, such as entering fixed 
price agreements or elevating risk costs, but the inflationary risk was likely to be 
priced  in a prudent basis.  There was also an inflation contingency budget of £28m 
for the whole programme which could be accessed if inflationary pressures were 
greater than the contingency budgets built into existing cost plans.  Projects had 
requested drawdown of £6.7m to date to be approved by Council in October following 
Executive approval in July.  Officers would continue to monitor the construction 
market and seek to mitigate the price risks  
  
The current modelling forecasted that the programme remained affordable within the 
revenue budget available including reserves. The model forecasted that the capital 
financing reserves held by the Council would be required to meet the costs 
associated with the Council’s borrowing by 2025/26. 
  
Councillor Leech noted the overall reduction in the Highways budget and sought 
clarification as to whether the money available in future years for the highways 
budget would be sufficient.  He also expressed concern in relation to a number of 

Page 44

Item 9



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Executive  14 September 2022 

 

major projects going further over budget in light of increasing inflation, and material 
costs and questioned whether the amount of contingency funding in these projects 
was enough. 
  
Decision 

  
The Executive note the report 
 
Exe/22/74 Capital Programme Update  
 
The Executive considered a report of the Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer, 
which informed Members of requests to increase the capital programme, sought 
approval for those schemes that could be approved under authority delegated to the 
Executive and asked the Executive to recommend to Council proposals that required 
specific Council approval. 
  
The proposals which required Council approval were those which were funded by the 
use of reserves above a cumulative total of £10 million, where the use of borrowing 
was required or a virement exceeded £1m. These included the following proposed 
changes:- 
  

• ICT - Future Council Infrastructure Implementation – Hybrid Cloud Programme.  
A capital budget virement of £0.618m requested, funded by borrowing via the 
ICT Investment budget. A capital budget decrease of £2.661m was also 
requested and approval of a corresponding transfer of £2.661m to the revenue 
budget, funded by Capital Fund, to enable the implementation of the ICT Hybrid 
Cloud Strategy, which sat under the wider ICT & Digital Strategy (currently in 
consultation phase) and was a key enabler in the delivery of ICT strategic 
objectives over the next five  years. 

 

• Public Sector Housing – Woodward Court external concrete repairs and 
Enveloping.  A capital budget increase of £0.500m in 2022/23 and £2.505m in 
2023/24 requested, funded by HRA Reserves, to deliver external concrete 
repairs and balcony balustrade repairs alongside a planned programme of 
enveloping works to ensure clear logistical and economical benefit for the 
Corporate Estate. 

 

• Public Sector Housing – Fire Risk Assessments Additional Works.  A capital 
budget increase of £4.112m in 2022/23 and £0.773m in 2023/24 requested, 
funded from HRA reserves to deliver further fire protection/prevention related 
works beyond those already included in the HRA capital programme 

  
The proposals which did not require Council approval and only required Executive 
approval were those which were funded by the use of external resources, use of 
capital receipts, use of reserves below £10.0m, where the proposal could be funded 
from existing revenue budgets or where the use of borrowing on a spend to save 
basis is required.  The following proposals required Executive approval for changes 
to the City Council’s capital programme:- 
  

Page 45

Item 9



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Executive  14 September 2022 

 

• ICT – Mobile Data.  A capital budget decrease of £0.161m requested and 
approval of a corresponding transfer of £0.161m to the revenue budget, funded 
by Capital Fund to enable the discovery work required to build the specification 
for the tender documentation for a new contract to be in place by March 2023. 

 

• Growth and Development - House of Sport Fire Mitigation and Roof additional 
costs.  A capital budget increase of £2.260m in 2022/23 requested, funded by 
Capital Receipts to enable fire remediation works and additional roof works to 
prevent water damage from roof and gutter leaks. 

 

• Private Sector Housing – This City – Postal Street PCSA Fees.  A capital 
budget increase of £2.4m in 2022/23 requested, funded by Capital Receipts to 
provide a budget envelope to cover the appointment of a contractor on a Pre-
Construction Services Agreement (PCSA) basis until planning permission had 
been granted whilst options for future funding were being explored with potential 
third-party investors. 

 

• Public Sector Housing – Collyhurst.  A capital budget increase of £6.645m 
 requested in 2023/24, to be funded by Housing Capital Receipts to deliver 
construction of the new homes, demolition of existing homes and construction 
of the new park (including all remaining design fees, associated on-costs, legal 
fees, and site assembly costs) 

  
The report highlighted that if the recommendations in the report were approved the 
General Fund capital budget would increase by £16.374m across financial years 
which would also result in an increase in the prudential indicator for Capital 
Expenditure in corresponding years.  
  
Approval had also been given for the following capital budget virements:- 
  

• £0.200m to be allocated from the Unallocated Education Basic Need funding for 
Gorton Primary School. This project would add a resource provision of 18 
places to the school’s capacity and would accommodate children with an 
Education, Health, and Care Plan (EHCP). 

 

• £0.024m to be allocated from the Education Basic Need funding for Dixons 
Brooklands Academy to create an additional 30 bulge class places to meet 
demand for year 7 pupils in September 2022. 

 

• £0.013m to be allocated  from the Parks Development Programme budget for 
an additional Site Investigation (SI) for Heaton Park Overflow Car Park to be 
carried out as recommended in the previous SI report. The additional report was 
necessary to identify the outfall options as part of a future submission.  

 

• £1.842m to be vired to the National Cycling Centre from the Public Sector 
Decarbonisation Fund grant funded programme. Following budget approval, the 
Council entered into a contract for the refurbishment and carbon works only, 
whilst the enhancement works scoping was progressing through the design 
stages to RIBA Stage 4 and cost certainty was being secured from the supply 
chain. This work had now been completed and following some value 

Page 46

Item 9



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Executive  14 September 2022 

 

engineering the cost difference from RIBA Stage 2 to Stage 4 still presented a 
budget shortfall of £1.578m (£160K of this related to inflationary and market 
pressures). The virement would utilise grant funding to cover additional costs 
identified of £1.578m and also reduce borrowing of £0.264m. 

  
Decisions 

  
The Executive:- 
  
(1)       Recommend that Council approve the following changes to Manchester City 

Council’s capital programme:- 
  

• ICT - Future Council Infrastructure Implementation – Hybrid Cloud 
Programme. A capital budget virement of £0.618m funded by Borrowing 
via the ICT Investment budget. A capital budget decrease of £2.661m is 
also requested and approval of a corresponding transfer of £2.661m to 
the revenue budget, funded by Capital Fund. 

 

• Public Sector Housing – Woodward Court external concrete repairs and 
Enveloping. A capital budget increase of £3.005m, funded by RCCO – 
HRA. 

 

• Public Sector Housing – Fire Risk Assessment Additional Work. A capital 
budget increase of £4.885m funded from by RCCO from the HRA. 

  
(2)       Under powers delegated to the Executive, to approve the following changes to 

the Council’s capital programme 

  

• ICT – Mobile Data. A capital budget decrease of £0.161m and approval 
of a corresponding transfer of £0.161m to the revenue budget, funded by 
Capital Fund. 

 

• Growth and Development - House of Sport Fire Mitigation and Roof 
additional costs. A capital budget increase of £2.260m funded by Capital 
Receipts. 

 

• Private Sector Housing – This City – Postal Street PCSA Fees. A capital 
budget increase of £2.4m, funded by Capital Receipts. 

 

• Public Sector Housing – Collyhurst. A capital budget increase of £6.645m 
funded by Capital Receipts. 

  
(3)        Notes the virements in the programme of £2.079m as a result of virements from 

approved budgets. 
 
Exe/22/75 Manchester Sport and Physical Activity Refresh  
 
The Executive considered a report of the Strategic Director (Neighbourhoods), which 
informed which highlighted the progress that had been made to date in delivering 
Manchester’s Sport and Physical Strategy and the amendments that were proposed 

Page 47

Item 9



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Executive  14 September 2022 

 

to ensure the city remained on target to deliver a sustained increase in participation 
levels and how the city built back fairer from the impacts of the virus. 
  
The Executive Member for Skills, Employment and Leisure reported that since the 
launch of the Manchester Sport and Physical Activity Strategy in the summer of 2019, 
there had been significant progress in the development and achievement of the 
seven strategic themes.  Since the establishment of MCRactive, and despite the 
many challenges, officers had worked through the covid pandemic, attracted new 
world-class sporting events to the City, secured investment to deliver an 
unprecedented number of capital schemes, forged new relationships with health 
partners and created a one stop digital platform for residents to find activity across 
the City. 
  
However, some challenges remained, and the COVID-19 pandemic had put 
Manchester in a very different place. So it was proposed some of the priorities and 
actions would be refreshed for the next six years to 2028.   
  
In doing so, it was proposed that organisations continued to respond to the outcomes 
from the consultation in 2017 on the priorities that were important to residents, but 
also to make sure the city responded to the changes in the landscape arising from 
the declaration of the Climate Change Emergency, the impact of the Covid-19 
outbreak, which exposed and exacerbate the inequalities that already existed across 
the city, the changing strategic priorities locally and nationally and rising inflation/ cost 
of living crisis. 
  
Councillor Leech welcomed the steps that the Council had taken in relation to female 
only swimming sessions at Hough End Leisure Centre but commented that he felt 
that there was a need for more female lifeguards for these sessions. 
  
Decision 

  
The Executive approve the refresh of the Strategy. 
 
Exe/22/76 Manchester Climate Change Partnership Framework 2022 Update  
 
The Executive considered a report of the Manchester Climate Agency (MCCA), which 
provided an update on Manchester’s Climate Change Framework (2020-25)   
  
The Executive Member for Environment advised that the update of the Manchester 
Climate Change Framework had been developed to ensure it remained a live 
document, responsive to the needs of a changing city and the urgency of the climate 
emergency.  The purpose of the 2022 Update was to present the findings of detailed 
modelling done to identify granular targets for reducing the city’s direct emissions by 
50%, to help the city stay within its carbon budget; provide an overview of ongoing 
work carried out in support of the Framework’s other headline objectives, notably on 
adaptation to climate change and recommend specific actions for delivery at local, 
regional, and national level by government and the wider public sector, private 
companies and third sector organisations, and communities and individuals, that 
would support the transition to a zero carbon and climate resilient city. 
  

Page 48

Item 9



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Executive  14 September 2022 

 

The Update had co-designed over 150 recommended actions organised into four 
categories according to where there was direct control to deliver, affect or influence 
the required change or outcome:- 
  

•                To be delivered locally, where direct control lies in Manchester; 

•                To work on at city-region level, with Greater Manchester partners; 

•                To advocate for national government to do; and 

•                To do differently, where there are opportunities to innovate. 
  
It was reported that urgent action was needed to reduce direct emissions from  
buildings and ground transport, and to increase renewable energy generation, if 
Manchester was to stay within its carbon budget.  Decisive action was also needed to 
assess the city’s vulnerability to climate change and to ensure the city was adapting 
its infrastructure, buildings, economy, and residents to be resilient to a changing 
climate. 
  
It was highlighted that everyone had a role to play – individuals, organisations, local 
and national government and the cost of transitioning to a zero carbon, climate 
resilient city could not be borne solely by the public purse; there needed to be 
innovative ways to unlock private finance investment. 
  
It was also noted that tackling the climate crisis brought opportunities to deliver wider 
strategic ambitions, including improving people’s health, reducing fuel and food 
poverty, creating new jobs and economic growth, and delivering a greener city for 
everyone. 
  
In essence the update was a call to action for everyone in Manchester.  Manchester 
Climate Change Partnership (MCCP) would champion the delivery of the 
recommendations set out, but everyone needed to increase the pace and scale of 
their own activity, and reach out to support and collaborate with others, if the city was 
to succeed in achieving its ambitions.  
  
To support the prioritisation of effort, in particular for reducing direct emissions, 
MCCP had asked MCCA to assess the comparative impact of the recommended 
actions, building on the insights already provided by the detailed emissions baseline 
and 50% reduction targets.  
  
MCCP had also asked MCCA to develop options for tracking the city’s progress 
towards its zero carbon and climate resilient goals, in a way that enhances the 
existing Annual Reports. MCCP members and its independent Advisory Groups 
would support all these activities. 
  
Councillor Leech sought clarification as to when the City’s Carbon Budget would 
expire on its current trajectory. 
  
Decisions 

  
The Executive:- 
  

Page 49

Item 9



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Executive  14 September 2022 

 

(1)        Formally adopt the 2022 Update to the Manchester Climate Change Partnership 
Framework’s aim, vision, objectives, and targets as the definition of what 
Manchester needs to achieve to ‘play its full part in limiting the impacts of 
climate change’; 

  
(2)        On behalf of the city, endorse the 2022 Update to the Manchester Climate 

Change Partnership Framework (2020 – 25) as Manchester’s high-level 
strategy for achieving the aim, vision, objectives, and targets; and  

  
(3)         Support the delivery of the refreshed 2020-25 Manchester City Council Climate 

Change Action Plan to contribute towards the successful implementation of the 
citywide Framework. 

 
Exe/22/77 Manchester City Council Climate Change Action Plan: Refreshed 

Climate Change Action Plan 2020-2025 and Annual Report 2021-22  
 
The Executive considered a report of the Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer, 
which presented a refreshed action plan for delivery of Manchester City Council’s 
Climate Change Action Plan (CCAP) between September 2022 – March 2025 and 
the latest Annual Report for the year 2021-22 of the CCAP 2020-25. 
  
The Executive Member for Environment reported that the Council had made good 
progress to date in working towards its target to reduce its direct CO2 emissions by 
50% by 2025 and was on track to meeting its targets.  Since 2020, the Council had 
exceeded its annual reduction targets, achieving 29.4% reductions so far.  The 
refreshed Climate Change Action Plan set out new actions, building on existing 
ambitions, for example, looking at ways to accelerate reaching net zero carbon even 
sooner than 2038; identifying opportunities to be bolder and avoiding any risk of 
complacency. 
  
Having already put in place investment of approximately £192m to deliver the 5-year 
Plan, a further £800,000 of revenue investment had been secured as part of the 
2022/23 budget setting for the Council.  In addition to this investment and as part of 
the CCAP, the Council had established a zero carbon finance and investment 
subgroup, with the aim of identify funding and finance models and opportunities to 
secure further resources required to deliver the CCAP.   
  
The refreshed CCAP also linked to other key and relevant city wide strategies and 
plans, such as the Local Plan, the Green & Blue Infrastructure Strategy, the GM 
Transport Strategy, Manchester’s Work and Skills Strategy and the Manchester 
Housing Strategy, enabling the Council to be bolder, even more ambitious and 
deliver even more across the City. 
  
In terms of the Annual Report, updated analysis of the Council’s carbon emissions 
showed that, overall, the Council had remained within budget this year, (against an 
annual target to reduce emissions by 13%), emitting 22,807 tonnes of CO2 – 16% 
under budget. It had also reduced its direct emissions by 10.6% (-2,694 tonnes CO2) 
compared to 2020-21.  The report went on to detail a selection of key achievements 
made during this second year (2021-22) as well as overall progress to date for each 
workstream. 

Page 50

Item 9



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Executive  14 September 2022 

 

  
Decisions 

  
The Executive:- 
  
(1)      Notes the Annual Report. 

  
(2)      Approves the refreshed 2020-25 Climate Change Action Plan 

 
Exe/22/78 Moving Traffic Offences Enforcement Overview Report  
 
The Executive considered a report of the Strategic Director (Neighbourhoods), which 
provided an overview of changes in legislation which allowed local highways 
authorities to enforce moving traffic offences such as no entry, yellow boxes, banned 
turns, traffic restrictions and environmental weight limits. 
  
The Executive Member for Environment explained that Government had committed 
to making the moving traffic enforcement powers, under Part 6 of the Traffic 
Management Act (TMA) 2004, available to local authorities outside London. The 
regulations giving effect to these powers were laid in Parliament on 27 January 2022 
and came into effect on 31 May 2022.  In making these powers available, the 
legislative opportunity had also been taken to consolidate, under the 2004 Act, the 
existing civil enforcement regimes for bus lane contraventions (outside London 
currently under 2005 regulations made under the Transport Act 2000) together with 
parking contraventions (England-wide currently under 2007 regulations made under 
the 2004 Act). 
  
These powers enabled the Council as the highway authority to enforce certain 
moving vehicle offences such as no entry, yellow boxes, banned turns, traffic 
restrictions and environmental weight limits 

  
An initial list of 15 enforcement sites was identified based on suggested problem 
areas provided by TfGM, the Neighbourhoods team and GMP.  An assessment had 
been undertaken to determine the initial enforcement sites and using the priority 
scoring process it was proposed that the following seven sites were selected for 
implementing civil enforcement of certain moving traffic and parking contraventions.  
This included the enforcement of yellow box junctions, and restrictions on direction of 
travel and turning movements as provided for in Part 6 of the Traffic Management 
Act: 
  

• Stockport Road – Box junction/no right turn 

• Cheetham Hill Road / Elizabeth Street. (Near Manchester Fort, near the Lidl) 

• Ashton Old Road – Chancellor Lane – Fairfield Street (Pin Mill Brow) – yellow 
box 

• Princess Parkway – Palatine Road – Yellow box 

• Great Ancoats Street – Oldham Road – Oldham Street – Yellow box 

• Kirkmanshulme Lane / Mount Road – Compulsory Left Turn & Yellow box 

• Wilmslow Road / M56 jct 6 – Ahead Only 

  

Page 51

Item 9



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Executive  14 September 2022 

 

Before applying to the Secretary of State for a Designation Order to grant  the 
Council powers to undertake the enforcement of Highway Moving Traffic Offences, 
the Council was required to undertake appropriate consultation with GMP and 
residents on the proposed sites. 
  
Given the challenges in determining the number of offences that would be committed 
once enforcement began, and what any ‘drop off’ rate in offences might be, it would 
be very challenging to accurately determine the resources required to manage this 
new area of work.  As such a staged approach to implantation was proposed, starting 
with a couple of locations and gradually increasing resources as more accurate data 
became available. 
 

Councillor Leech sought clarity as to why a number of the sites identified related to 
just enforcement of yellow boxes and expressed disappointment that the junction of 
Princess Road and Nell Lane had not been included. 
  
Decisions 

  
The Executive:- 
  
(1)    Agree that the Director of Highways undertake all steps outlined in the report at 

paragraph 7.1 (a) to (f) in advance of the Council applying to the Secretary of 
State for powers under part 6 of the Traffic Management Act to undertake the 
enforcement of Highway Moving Traffic Offences and the designation of 
locations where enforcement will be undertaken; 

  
(2)    Agree the seven locations identified in paragraph 6.2 for implementing civil 

enforcement of certain moving traffic and parking contraventions, including the 
enforcement of yellow box junctions, and restrictions on direction of travel and 
turning movements; 

  
(3)    Agree that the Director of Highways undertake a minimum six-week public 

consultation on the detail of planned civil enforcement of moving traffic 
contraventions, including the types of restrictions to be enforced and the 
location(s) in question across the seven identified sites; 

  
(4)    Agree that the Director of Highways then submit the necessary application for a 

Designation Order to the Secretary of State for Transport; 
  
(5)    Note that the Director of Highways, under delegated powers, will also be 

required to undertake all of the steps set out in paragraph 7.1 (a) –(f) of the 
report in respect of any new enforcement locations in the future without the 
need to seek further approval from the Secretary of State. 

 
Exe/22/79 Manchester Accommodation Business Improvement District 

(ABID)  
 
The Executive considered a report of the Strategic Director (Growth and 
Development) and Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer, which outlined 
proposals for an Accommodation Business Improvement District (ABID) covering 

Page 52

Item 9



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Executive  14 September 2022 

 

Manchester city centre and an area of Salford in the regional centre.  The report also 
sought confirmation that the proposals did not conflict with Council policy and that the 
Council put in place arrangements for the Chief Executive (as Ballot Holder) to hold 
the ABID ballot. 
  
In recent years the city centre as the region’s economic hub has undergone 
transformational regeneration and benefitted from significant inward investment.  The 
visitor economy across Greater Manchester was worth £9.5billion and supported over 
102,000 jobs, accounting for 8% of the people working in Greater Manchester, with 
most of this tourism activity clustered within the city centre. 
  
Over the next five years, the tourism sector across Greater Manchester was set for a 
radical step change, powered by major investment in new attractions, 
accommodation, and visitor facilities. The proposed BID levy would support the 
development of the tourism and hospitality sector by providing additional funds for 
high profile, tactical marketing campaigns, by attracting more national and 
international business conferences and major sporting events to the city, by 
developing and attracting new consumer events to the city, and by improving the 
city’s welcome: helping to keep the entry points to the city centre cleaner, providing 
hosts at the railway stations and supporting hotels in ensuring secure environments 
for guests. 
  
Following collaborative discussion, Manchester Hoteliers’ Association (MHA), 
supported by Marketing Manchester and CityCo, had stated that their preferred 
approach was the development of a private sector-led Manchester Accommodation 
Business Improvement District (ABID).  The ABID approach focussed on a proposal 
developed by and voted on by potential levy-payers. All relevant businesses would 
contribute, but within a structure where the businesses would control the levy raised. 
  
Membership of the ABID would be limited to hereditaments that were identifiable by 
the relevant billing authority as hotels or short stay serviced apartments which had a 
rateable value of £75,000 or more and where within the ABID area.  The formula for 
the levy would take into account the numbers of rooms/units available per night, the 
number of nights per month and the STR Published ‘Manchester Average’ 
Occupancy rate for each month LESS 5%. All of this information would be collated by 
the City Council. 
  
The ABID Proposal and Business Plan had been formally submitted to the Council, 
along with a formal notice requesting that the Council (as lead authority) instruct the 
Ballot Holder (i.e. Manchester’s Returning Officer) to hold a BID Ballot. 
  
Decisions 

  
The Executive:- 
  
(1)        Note the receipt of the Manchester Accommodation Business Improvement 

District 2023 – 2028 proposal from the BID Proposer, Manchester Hoteliers’ 
Association. 

  

Page 53

Item 9



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Executive  14 September 2022 

 

(2)       Confirm that the proposals do not conflict with any policy formally adopted by, 
and contained in a document published by, the Council. 

  
(3)        Delegate to the Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer the authority to 

instruct the Ballot Holder to hold a BID ballot.  
  
(4)        Note that if the ABID is approved, the Deputy Chief Executive and City 

Treasurer will be responsible for collecting the BID levy in accordance with the 
BID arrangements. 

 
 
 

Page 54

Item 9



Manchester City Council Minutes 

Communities and Equalities Scrutiny Committee 19 July 2022 

 

Communities and Equalities Scrutiny Committee  
 
Minutes of the meeting held on 19 July 2022 
 
Present: 
Councillor Hitchen - In the Chair  
Councillors Azra Ali, Benham, Chambers, Connolly, M Dar, Evans, Hilal, Hussain, 
Iqbal, Johnson, Ogunbambo, H Priest, Rawson and Wilson 
 
Also present: 
Councillor Midgley, Deputy Leader 
Councillor Hacking, Executive Member for Skills, Employment and Leisure 
Francess Tagoe, Tree of Life Centre 
Mike Wild, Macc 
 
Apologies: 
Councillors Whiston and Wills 
 
CESC/22/24 Minutes 
 
Decision 
 
To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 21 June 2022 as a correct record. 
 
CESC/22/25 Our Manchester Voluntary and Community Sector (OMVCS) Fund 
Refreshed Funding Programme 
 
The Committee received a report of the Director of Policy, Performance and Reform 
which outlined the engagement and co-design processes that had informed the 
refresh of the funding programme and provided an initial overview of proposed 
adaptations. The report also outlined work to review the City’s Voluntary, Community 
and Social Enterprise (VCSE) support offer, that was running concurrently, which 
would be an important point of support for the groups supported by this fund from 
2023 onwards. 
 
The main points and themes within the report included: 
 

• Background to the VCSE sector in Manchester; 

• Background to VCSE sector funding; 

• Refreshing the OMVCS Fund; 

• OMVCS Fund engagement and co-design contributors; 

• Outcomes of the engagement and co-design processes; 

• Purpose, aims and objectives; 

• Principles and eligibility; 

• Funding amounts; 

• Ways of working; 

• Next steps; and 

• VCSE support review.   
 

Page 55

Item 11



Manchester City Council Minutes 

Communities and Equalities Scrutiny Committee 19 July 2022 

 

The Deputy Leader expressed her thanks for the valuable work of the VSCE sector 
during the pandemic. 
 
Francess Tagoe, the Chief Executive of the Tree of Life Centre, informed Members 
about her involvement in the co-design process for the refresh of the OMVCS Fund 
programme.  Mike Wild, the Chief Executive of Macc, the support organisation for 
Manchester’s VCSE sector, thanked the Council for continuing to prioritise this in the 
face of budget pressures.  He welcomed the strategic approach to target resources 
at organisations which were making a real difference in communities and 
strengthening their ability to respond.  He highlighted how core funding from the 
Council enabled organisations to then draw in additional funding from other sources.  
He highlighted some of the areas that the refresh hoped to address including a more 
equitable geographical spread of organisations, greater diversity, particularly in 
relation to race, and requiring groups which received funding to demonstrate what 
they were doing to address climate change. 
 
Some of the key points that arose from the Committee’s discussions were: 
 

• To request a breakdown of the type and size of organisations which were 
being funded; 

• Social groups which had previously been excluded from funding and what was 
being done to address this; 

• The geographical spread of organisations which were receiving funding, 
noting areas of deprivation; 

• Concern that organisations who had been doing valuable work in their 
communities had previously not been successful in obtaining funding because 
they did not have the capacity to complete the funding applications as well as 
some of the larger organisations and that this needed to be mitigated in future 
funding processes; 

• How to support small organisations on how they could contribute to 
addressing climate change; and 

• That it should be a condition of receiving funding that the organisations pay 
staff the Manchester Living Wage. 

 
The Policy and Programmes Manager reported that his team had a good dataset 
about the organisations currently being funded and that at the end of the current 
funding period would be producing a report which contained this information.  He 
advised that an Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) of the previous round of funding 
applications had identified under-representation in relation to race, as well as 
organisations in the north of the city.  He reported that the work currently taking place 
was underpinned by an EIA, which covered both the protected characteristics within 
the Equality Act 2010 and broader inequality.  He advised that this work would 
include consideration of the geographical spread, promoting the fund and providing 
support to VCSE groups equitably.  The Chair advised that this work should include 
consideration of east Manchester, as well as north Manchester.  A Member 
requested that the EIA which had identified the issues in relation to race and north 
Manchester be circulated to Members of the Committee, to which the Policy and 
Programmes Manager agreed.  A Member commented that the South Asian 
community was the largest ethnic community in the city and that more needed to be 
done to ensure fair representation.  The Policy and Programmes Manager confirmed 

Page 56

Item 11



Manchester City Council Minutes 

Communities and Equalities Scrutiny Committee 19 July 2022 

 

that under-representation in relation to race was acknowledged and that work was 
taking place to address this. 
 
The Policy and Programmes Manager informed Members that, while all funded 
organisations would be expected to take action in relation to the climate crisis, the 
expectations would be proportionate to the size, capability and funds of the 
organisation, that there would be ongoing support in relation to this and that 
organisations would be expected to develop and mature their approach over the 
funding period rather than have a fully developed approach from the start.  Mike Wild 
informed Members that Macc would put together resources for VCS organisations on 
taking climate action.  
 
In response to Members’ comments, Francess Tagoe advised that those involved in 
the co-design wanted to be remove the perception that this fund was the answer to 
every funding need of every VCS organisation in the city.  She highlighted the issues 
which arose when organisations collaborated solely for the purpose of getting funding 
and stated that the Fund wanted to encourage the strengthening of natural links and 
collaboration between organisations rather than making it a prerequisite of funding.  
 
In response to a question from the Chair, the Policy and Programmes Manager 
offered to provide further information on the Greater Manchester Health and 
Wellbeing Partnership Fund at a later date, to which the Chair agreed.  In response 
to a question about the VCSE Support Review, he informed Members that he would 
be providing a report on this to a Committee meeting later in the year, when more 
information was available.  In response to the Member’s comments about the 
Manchester Living Wage, he reported that this had been raised as a key issue during 
the co-design process, along with getting organisations to commit to work to address 
climate change, and that now, in the final stages of the design of the refreshed 
programme, those involved were looking at how to build these factors into the 
programme for all organisations. 
 
The Chair thanked the guests for their attendance and for their work. 
 
Decisions 
 
1. To note that the Committee will receive a further report on this work at an 

appropriate time. 
 

2. To note that the Policy and Programmes Manager will circulate the EIA which 
identified the issues in relation to race and north Manchester to Committee 
Members. 
 

3. To note that the Policy and Programmes Manager will provide the Committee 
with further information on the Greater Manchester Health and Wellbeing 
Partnership Fund at an appropriate time, when more information is available. 

 
[Councillor Johnson declared a personal interest as, prior to becoming a Councillor, 
she had run a design business which had worked with VCS organisations, some of 
which had received funding from the Council.] 
 

Page 57

Item 11



Manchester City Council Minutes 

Communities and Equalities Scrutiny Committee 19 July 2022 

 

[Councillor H Priest declared a personal interest as volunteer for North Manchester 
FM, which had previously received funding from the Council.] 
 
[Councillor Ogunbambo declared a personal interest as his football club Blackley FC 
had previously received funding from the Council.] 
 
CESC/22/26 Wynnstay Grove Public Spaces Protection Order - Update 
 
The Committee received a report of the Head of Compliance, Enforcement and 
Community Safety and the Community Safety Lead which provided an update on the 
implementation of the Wynnstay Grove Public Spaces Protection Order (PSPO). 
 
The main points and themes within the report included: 
 

• Background information; 

• Update regarding the implementation of the PSPO; 

• Duration of PSPOs; and 

• Review of the Wynnstay Grove PSPO. 
 
A Member who was also a Lead Member for Women advised that she had requested 
this report after the Roe vs Wade judgement was overturned in the USA.  She 
affirmed the Council’s support for women’s right to access healthcare to which they 
were entitled without harassment or intimidation.  She welcomed the plans to 
evaluate the evidence to consider whether the PSPO should be extended and 
advised that the evaluation should take into account that the pandemic would have 
affected protest activity during the period of the PSPO.  Other Members voiced their 
support for the PSPO. 
 
A Member reported that the PSPO appeared to have achieved what it set out to do 
and asked whether, if the evidence supported this, there were alternatives to carrying 
out consultations every 3 years in order to extend the PSPO.  The Community Safety 
Lead explained that the legislation required that the PSPO be reviewed every 3 
years, including carrying out a consultation.  In response to a question from the 
Chair, she confirmed that any impact from the pandemic would be taken into account 
when reviewing the evidence.  In response to a Member’s question, she advised that 
the feedback from the Marie Stopes clinic on the impact of the PSPO had been 
positive and that there had not been any reports of issues from other providers 
across the city.  In response to a further question on ensuring compliance with the 
PSPO, the Community Safety Lead advised that, when it was first introduced, 
engagement had taken place with those outside the clinic and the protest groups 
involved to ensure that they were aware of the introduction of the PSPO but that now 
officers relied on the clinic informing them of any breaches of the PSPO which 
needed to be responded to. 
 
Decision 
 
To note that the Committee would receive an update after the consultation period. 
 
 

Page 58

Item 11



Manchester City Council Minutes 

Communities and Equalities Scrutiny Committee 19 July 2022 

 

CESC/22/27 Recommendation for the Extension and Variation of the Public 
Spaces Protection Orders Relating to Dog Control 
 
The Committee received a report of the Head of Compliance, Enforcement and 
Community Safety which provided the Committee with the outcomes of the 
recent consultation exercise in respect of the PSPOs relating to the control of dogs, 
which was undertaken between 19 May and 16 June 2022. 
 
The main points and themes within the report included: 
 

• Risks associated with poor dog control; 

• Legal issues; 

• Review of the on-lead/exclusion PSPOs; 

• Supporting evidence; 

• Consultation; 

• Changes to the proposed PSPOs arising from the consultation; 

• Equality Impact Assessment and the European Convention on Human Rights; 

• Final proposed PSPOs; and 

• Next steps. 
 
Some of the key points that arose from the Committee’s discussions were: 
 

• The enforcement of the restrictions by officers and whether the public could 
report breaches; 

• Public education, the importance of clearly displaying this information in parks 
and concerns that this was not always the case at all entrances; and 

• Was there evidence that the PSPOs had led to a reduction in dog fouling. 
 
The Head of Compliance, Enforcement and Community Safety advised that officers 
undertook patrols and, if there were known issues in a particular area, then targeted 
enforcement activity would take place.  She confirmed that members of the public 
could report breaches and that reports from the public and Ward Councillors would 
be taken into account when deciding where targeted enforcement activity was 
needed.  She advised that signage was already in place as the PSPOs relating to 
dog control had been introduced in 2019.  The Compliance and Enforcement 
Specialist (Environmental Crimes) explained that there was signage at each park 
entrance and in areas where particular restrictions were in place, such as play areas; 
however, he took on board Members’ concerns that signage needed to be improved 
and advised that this would be reviewed if the PSPOs were extended.  In response to 
further comments about how dog owners could be made aware of the PSPOs, the 
Head of Compliance, Enforcement and Community Safety advised that all the 
information was on the Council’s website and that dog organisations had been 
consulted on the PSPOs. 
 
In response to a Member’s question, the Compliance and Enforcement Specialist 
(Environmental Crimes) reported that, if a new area needed to be added to the 
exclusion order during the term of the PSPO, this could be done as a variation of the 
order, although there was a process which needed to be followed for this, which 
included a consultation. 
 

Page 59

Item 11



Manchester City Council Minutes 

Communities and Equalities Scrutiny Committee 19 July 2022 

 

In response to the Member’s question about the impact of the existing PSPOs, the 
Head of Compliance, Enforcement and Community Safety reported that she would 
circulate figures from before the PSPOs had been introduced for comparison.  She 
advised that it could be challenging to catch people failing to pick up after their dogs 
but that areas which had a particular problem would be targeted and she highlighted 
that the offence of not being able to demonstrate possession of appropriate means to 
pick up faeces when in a public place was included in the PSPOs. 
 
In response to questions from the Chair, the Parks Operations Manager advised that 
she would look into the specific details of the PSPOs in relation to Orford Road 
Playing Fields, Brookdale Park and Victoria Mill Park outside of the meeting.  In 
response to a further question, the Compliance and Enforcement Specialist 
(Environmental Crimes) reported that the term “when in use” relating to playing 
pitches referred to organised practice sessions or matches. 
 
The Chair thanked officers for their work on this and welcomed its implementation. 
 
Decision 
 
To note the report. 
 
CESC/22/28 Community Events 
 
The Committee received a report of the Strategic Director (Neighbourhoods) which 
summarised the ongoing challenges facing the event sector as a result of the Covid 
19 pandemic, the subsequent impact on community event remobilisation through the 
2022-23 recovery period in Manchester and how the City Council was supporting 
community event partners to rebuild and reconnect with their communities. The 
paper outlined the current funding arrangements in place through the Community 
Event Fund (CEF) and identified additional areas for development and improvement 
that were being targeted throughout the 2022-23 financial year to strengthen the 
capabilities of event partners and reset the baseline against which future funding 
should be assigned. 
 
The main points and themes within the report included: 
 

• Post Covid 19 overview of the UK events sector; 

• Manchester’s event recovery response; 

• Community Events Funding 2022/23; 

• Strengthening capabilities relating to community events; 

• Event sustainability; 

• Protect Duty; 

• Equalities and diversity; and 

• Economic and social impact measurement. 
 
Some of the key points that arose from the Committee’s discussions were: 
 

• The success of the Wythenshawe Games, the challenge each year with 
securing funding for it and that events funding should be provided for the 
Wythenshawe Games; 

Page 60

Item 11



Manchester City Council Minutes 

Communities and Equalities Scrutiny Committee 19 July 2022 

 

• Concern that the same groups were being funded each year and that new 
groups should be able to access the funding; 

• The re-distribution of funds generated by large, commercial events to help 
fund community events; 

• To recognise the important role of volunteers in running events and concern 
that there were lower volunteer numbers after lockdown; and 

• The impact of the Protect Duty. 
 
The Events Lead reported that the Council would like to increase its community 
events budget and that one way of doing this would be to bring more commercial 
activities into a park such as Wythenshawe Park and then use that money to fund 
other local, community activities.  He advised that the Council would also like to 
reduce the amount of funding provided to existing partners but that this had been 
impacted by the pandemic.  He reported that the Wythenshawe Games did not 
submit a funding application in the current year so could not have been considered 
and that he was aware that it had been funded through other routes previously; 
however, if an application was submitted in the future, it would be considered against 
the criteria.  In response to a question from the Chair, he advised that the criteria was 
published when the funding was advertised and applications were evaluated against 
that but that the applications for funding normally outstripped the amount of funding 
available.  The Executive Member for Skills, Employment and Leisure reported that 
he would discuss with officers how to ensure that the publicity about the funding 
scheme was shared with different groups. 
 
The Chair requested that the Committee receive a further report at an appropriate 
time which included the criteria for funding, the Manchester Events Strategy and an 
update on work on the additional areas for development and improvement which 
were referred to in the report.  The Executive Member for Skills, Employment and 
Leisure offered to circulate the criteria for the fund to Members of the Committee.  
Members requested that the timetable for the scheme and the Equality Impact 
Assessment also be circulated.  In response to a Member’s question on the sports 
programme across the city, the Executive Member for Skills, Employment and 
Leisure agreed to circulate information on sports activities that were being funded 
across the city.  In response to a Member’s question about event sustainability, he 
referred Members to a report on Climate Change and Events which had been 
submitted to the Committee’s meeting on 11 January 2022 and asked the Scrutiny 
Support Officer to circulate this to the Committee Members.  The Commercial Lead 
outlined some of the work taking place to improve sustainability and advised that 
information on the impact of this would be included in the next report.  
 
The Events Lead acknowledged the Member’s comments about volunteers, stating 
that the number of volunteers had decreased but that, as many events had not taken 
place yet, the extent of this impact was not yet known.  In response to a Member’s 
request, he advised that information on the geographic spread of the funded events 
could be included in the next report.  He reported that the Protect Duty was 
forthcoming legislation which would put additional responsibilities on community 
event organisers to provide better protection from terrorism.  In response to a 
question from the Chair, he advised that this was likely to lead to increased security 
costs for event organisers but that, as the legislation was not published yet, this could 
not be confirmed. 

Page 61

Item 11



Manchester City Council Minutes 

Communities and Equalities Scrutiny Committee 19 July 2022 

 

Decisions 
 
1. To receive a further report at an appropriate time which includes the 

Manchester Events Strategy, information on the geographic spread of the 
funded events and an update on work on the additional areas for development 
and improvement referred to in the report. 

 
2. To request that the Executive Member for Skills, Employment and Leisure 

circulate the criteria and timetable for the Community Events Fund, along with 
the Equality Impact Assessment and information on sports activities that are 
currently being funded across the city. 
 

3. To ask the Scrutiny Support Officer to circulate the report on Climate Change 
and Events, which was considered at the Committee’s meeting on 11 January 
2022, to Members of the Committee. 

 
CESC/22/29 Overview Report 
 
A report of the Governance and Scrutiny Support Unit was submitted. The overview 
report contained a list of key decisions yet to be taken within the Committee’s remit, 
responses to previous recommendations and the Committee’s work programme, 
which the Committee was asked to approve. 
 
Decision 

 
To note the report and agree the work programme. 
 
 

Page 62

Item 11



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Communities and Equalities Scrutiny Committee 6 September 2022 

 

Communities and Equalities Scrutiny Committee  
 
Minutes of the meeting held on 6 September 2022 
 
Present: 
Councillor Hitchen - In the Chair  
Councillors Benham, M Dar, Evans, Hilal, Hussain, Iqbal, Ogunbambo, H Priest, 
Rawson, Whiston, Wills and Wilson 
 
Also present: 
Councillor Midgley, Deputy Leader 
Councillor Rahman, Statutory Deputy Leader 
Councillor Hacking, Executive Member for Skills, Employment and Leisure 
Councillor Lynch, Lead Member for Women 
Rebecca Livesey, MCRactive 
Yawar Abbas, MCRactive 
Chief Superintendent Rob Cousen, Greater Manchester Police (GMP) 
Chief Inspector Adam Wignall, GMP 
Andrew Roberts, Probation Service 
Stuart Tasker, Probation Service 
Spencer Davies, The University of Manchester  
Superintendent Chris Downey, GMP  
Phil Hoyland, City of Manchester Learning Partnership  
 
Apologies: 
Councillors Azra Ali, Chambers, Connolly and Johnson 
 
CESC/22/30  Minutes 
 
Decision 
 
To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 19 July 2022 as a correct record. 
 
CESC/22/31  Minute’s Silence – Pakistan Floods 
 
The Committee held a minute’s silence for the people affected by the floods in 
Pakistan.  A Member informed the Committee about work taking place in Manchester 
to support those affected, including containers of items donated by Manchester 
residents which would be shipped to those affected.  He reported that the Leader had 
met with the Consul General of Pakistan and MP Afzal Khan to discuss what other 
support Manchester could provide. 
 
CESC/22/32 Manchester Sport and Physical Activity Strategy Update and 
Proposed Refresh 
 
The Committee received a report of the Strategic Director (Neighbourhoods) which 
highlighted the progress that had been made to date in delivering Manchester’s Sport 
and Physical Strategy and the amendments that were proposed to ensure the city 
remained on target to deliver a sustained increase in participation levels and how the 
city built back fairer from the impacts of the virus.  The Committee was invited to 

Page 63

Item 11



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Communities and Equalities Scrutiny Committee 6 September 2022 

 

comment on this report before its submission to the Executive on 14 September 
2022. 
 
The main points and themes within the report included: 
 

• Progress on the Sport and Physical Activity Strategy in relation to the seven 
strategic themes; 

• Refresh of the Sport and Physical Activity Strategy to 2028; and 

• Next steps. 
 
Some of the key points that arose from the Committee’s discussions were: 
 

• To welcome the shift to recognising the need for different approaches for 
different places and communities; 

• The cost of living rise and the affordability of leisure activities, including what 
could be done for young people who could not afford to pay for leisure 
activities; 

• That the most important element of the strategy was to encourage people who 
were currently inactive to start becoming active; 

• Noting the importance of free sports activity and the ability to try a sport for 
free and that upgrading of sport facilities should not involve the introduction of 
a small fee for using them as that would deter people from trying out these 
activities; 

• The installation of non-turf cricket wickets in parks and the need for the 
activation programme so that they were used; 

• To welcome the Active Streets programme but could any follow-up work be 
done to continue to engage the residents; 

• Concern that some areas did not have adequate sports facilities as having to 
travel to facilities was a deterrent to taking part; 

• The importance of women-only activities to encourage increased participation; 

• To request an increased equality focus in future reports, including recognition 
of invisible disabilities;  

• To welcome that the report had differentiated between leisure facility 
membership and usage in terms of gender and that it would be useful to have 
this breakdown for the other equality categories; and 

• That it would be useful to have more data on the progress made in relation to 
usage by people from Black, Asian, and other Minority Ethnic backgrounds. 

 
Rebecca Livesey, Chief Operating Officer of MCRactive, informed the Committee 
about work to understand communities better and work differently, highlighting the 
Sport England Greater Manchester Local Pilot and the Winning Hearts and Minds 
programme.  She advised that the funding for these would end in 2024 and that plans 
were already being discussed for how the lessons learnt would be used beyond this 
date to work differently, embedding them in a neighbourhoods delivery model.  She 
reported that the programmes had a focus on people who were currently inactive and 
getting them to become engaged in some level of activity and that this included 
engagement with women, different ethnic minority groups and age groups.  She 
provided an example of a women’s cycling group aimed at women who had not learnt 

Page 64

Item 11



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Communities and Equalities Scrutiny Committee 6 September 2022 

 

to ride a bicycle when younger and advised that there were many other examples 
and Members could contact her for further information. 
 
The Commercial Lead (Neighbourhoods) outlined changes that had been made to 
leisure facilities to make them more accessible for disabled people.  She advised that 
this had so far not resulted in the expected level of increase in use by disabled 
residents so further work was needed, consulting with relevant groups to find out 
what kind of leisure sessions they wanted.  She acknowledged the cost of living crisis 
affecting Manchester residents, including children and young people, and reported 
that the Council and its partners were responding with an increase in free, accessible 
facilities, including localised, targeted provision.  In response to a Member’s 
comments, she advised that more work would be done to improve communication, 
including non-digital communication, so that residents were aware of what was 
available in their area.  In response to the comments about the equality data in the 
report, she advised that she would provide the additional data requested to 
Committee Members.  She reported that more women-only sessions were being 
provided, although there had been challenges in recruiting female lifeguards in some 
areas which they were working to address.    
 
Yawar Abbas, Head of Sport and Events, MCRactive advised that he and his 
colleagues were happy to meet with individual Members to discuss the issues they 
had raised, including activities for young people and the follow-up to Active Streets.  
He acknowledged the Member’s point about introducing charges for facilities, saying 
that this was a complex issue as the provision had to be sustainable.  He outlined 
how this was being achieved in relation to tennis and also highlighted the Holiday 
Activity Fund, which was targeting free provision where it was most needed.  
Rebecca Livesey drew Members’ attention to the free swimming offer for those aged 
16 and under and those aged 60 and over.  Yawar Abbas advised that the launch of 
the activation programme for the non-turf cricket wickets was due to take place the 
following day. 
 
Decisions 
 
1. To request a further report including place-based activity across the wards, 

comparison of different areas of the city, coaching opportunities, the impact of 
the cost-of-living rise, work to engage people with different protected 
characteristics, including women, and providing activities to engage young 
people. 
 

2. To note that the Commercial Lead (Neighbourhoods) will provide the data 
requested. 

 
3. To endorse the recommendation to the Executive that: 
 
(1) The Executive is recommended to approve the refresh of the Strategy. 
 
CESC/22/33  Community Safety Strategy 2022-25 
 
The Committee received a report of the Strategic Director (Neighbourhoods) and 
Chair of the Community Safety Partnership which introduced the Community Safety 

Page 65

Item 11



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Communities and Equalities Scrutiny Committee 6 September 2022 

 

Strategy 2022-25 for Manchester and highlighted the Community Safety 
Partnership’s priorities for the next three years. 
 
The main points and themes within the report included: 
 

• The legislative context of the Strategy; 

• Consultation with residents, businesses and community groups; 

• Other factors taken into account in developing the Strategy; 

• The Greater Manchester Police and Crime Plan 2022-25; and 

• Community Safety Partnership Priorities and a summary of some of the 
actions that would be carried out to meet these priorities. 

 
Some of the key points that arose from the Committee’s discussions were: 
 

• Preventing re-offending, including the impact of mental health issues, drugs 
and alcohol and issues relating to housing, skills and employment and what 
more could be done, noting that some drug and alcohol services had been 
closed down; 

• Residents’ concerns about anti-social behaviour, burglaries and speeding, 
noting that, while GMP’s response to burglaries seemed to have improved, 
residents still did not feel that there was enough action in response to 
speeding; 

• Residents’ perception that it was difficult to report crimes to GMP; 

• The need for innovative and holistic collaborations to address some of the 
issues in communities; 

• Sharing positive experiences of specific neighbourhood police officers in 
Members’ wards; and 

• Young people, noting that they could often be the victims of crime or be 
perpetrators, including ensuring that their views were taken into account, 
improving the relationship between young people and the police and 
responding to issues relating to the behaviour of some young people directly 
after the end of the school day. 
 

Stuart Tasker from the Probation Service advised that acquisitive crime was now 
central to the Integrated Offender Management strategy and that the Probation 
Service, GMP and drug services were working together to address the underlying 
causes of offending.  He informed Members about his service’s tailored approach for 
working with young offenders between the ages of 18 and 25. 
 
The Strategic Director (Neighbourhoods) outlined work taking place with GMP and 
health partners through the Bringing Services Together programme to identify where 
high levels of demand for their services were coming from and putting together joint 
plans for particular individuals.   
 
Chief Superintendent Rob Cousen from GMP informed the Committee that GMP had 
made a commitment to visit every victim of burglary and that the level achieved at 
present was about 94%.  He advised that GMP had a focus on neighbourhood crime 
including burglary, robbery, vehicle crime and theft from the person.  He advised he 
had established three neighbourhood crime teams in Manchester to focus on these 
areas.  He outlined work taking place to address speeding, advising that more speed 

Page 66

Item 11



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Communities and Equalities Scrutiny Committee 6 September 2022 

 

watch operations would be taking place and that GMP was also encouraging 
community speed watch.  He asked Members to inform GMP of areas where this was 
a particular issue of concern.  He informed Members of improvements in the 
reporting of crime, advising that the average length of time for a 999 call to be 
answered was now 9 seconds and for the non-emergency 101 number it was now 
one to one-and-a-half minutes, a reduction from 5 minutes.  In response to a 
question from the Chair, he confirmed that the key priority areas outlined in the Police 
and Crime Plan were all of equal priority. 
 
Chief Inspector Adam Wignall from GMP informed the Committee about work taking 
place with partners, including the business community, to address crimes such as 
theft from the person related to the night time economy, including a focus on 
prevention. 
 
The Statutory Deputy Leader welcomed the approach of the new Chief Constable 
Stephen Watson and Chief Superintendent Rob Cousen, which focussed on 
neighbourhood policing, while also highlighting the challenges faced by the city, due 
to austerity and funding cuts, both in GMP and in areas such as drug and alcohol 
services, and he advised that, therefore, an innovative approach was required. 
 
Chief Superintendent Rob Cousen reported that GMP’s School Engagement Officers 
were working with the city’s young people and that there was also other engagement 
work with young people, for example, sports activity to build trust and confidence with 
young people.  He reported that neighbourhood police officers had previously been 
used to respond to emergency incidents but that they would now be ringfenced for 
neighbourhood policing work, patrolling in the local area and addressing local 
concerns, such as anti-social behaviour, before they developed into larger issues.   
 
The Community Safety Lead informed the Committee that, although there had been 
cuts to drug and alcohol services over a long period, there had recently been some 
investment in this area and this had been linked in with the Bringing Services 
Together work and adopting a trauma-informed approach.  She reported that the 
Community Safety Partnership was working with Manchester Metropolitan University 
who were carrying out a regular survey to understand the trends and prevalence of 
drugs in communities.  In response to comments about young people and crime, she 
drew Members’ attention to a piece of work commissioned through Reclaim, which 
had been used to inform this Strategy and the Serious Violence Strategy.  She 
outlined the partnership approach to addressing anti-social behaviour and preventing 
its escalation.  
 
In response to a question from the Chair about designing the physical environment to 
reduce crime, including street lighting and the use of alleygating, the Strategic 
Director (Neighbourhoods) offered to provide a further report which included 
information on this.  She advised that Community Safety Specialists were involved in 
the design of new neighbourhoods and had been involved in the re-design of 
Piccadilly Gardens.  She reported that alleygating was part of Public Space 
Protection Orders and advised that further information on this could be included in a 
future report.  A Member requested that a future report include further information 
from the Probation Service on preventing re-offending, including addressing mental 
health issues, drugs and alcohol issues and housing, skills and employment.  The 

Page 67

Item 11



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Communities and Equalities Scrutiny Committee 6 September 2022 

 

Chair requested that information on hotspot areas where people on probation were 
housed be included in a future report.  She also requested that a future report include 
information on links with the youth service. 
 
Decision 
 
To receive a further report at an appropriate time, including the information requested 
by Members. 
 
CESC/22/34  Manchester's approach to achieving the Safety of Women 
and Girls 
 
The Committee received a report of the Strategic Director (Neighbourhoods) which 
introduced Manchester’s approach for the safety of women and girls in the city. 
 
The main points and themes within the report included: 
 

• The Greater Manchester response; 

• Manchester’s approach; 

• White Ribbon Accreditation; and 

• Governance. 
 
Some of the key points that arose from the Committee’s discussions were: 
 

• That some of this work should focus on older women and the issues they face; 

• To welcome the Women’s Night-time Safety Charter and could this be 
incorporated into Licensing Policy; 

• The need to tackle violence against trans women; and 

• Attacks on new female students in September in wards such Fallowfield and 
Withington. 

 
Spencer Davies, Head of Advice and Response at the University of Manchester 
outlined how the University was working with partners to respond to the issues 
relating to the Safety of Women and Girls.  He highlighted the recently established 
Sexual Violence Action Network for students, and improved information-sharing 
between universities to identify patterns and trends and provide a targeted response.  
He outlined the role of the University’s Advice and Response Team, which included 
supporting female students in relation to domestic abuse and sexual assault and 
other violence. 
 
The Lead Member for Women welcomed that the Council had been awarded White 
Ribbon Accreditation and advised that the Council should encourage other 
organisations to do the same.  She welcomed the progress in addressing the spiking 
of drinks.  She advised that there should be a focus on prevention, including 
educating men and boys. 
 
The Community Safety Lead confirmed that colleagues from Education were part of 
the steering group and that work in schools would form part of this work.  She 
advised that there were a lot of crosscutting themes within this work.  She reported 
that the Domestic Violence and Abuse Strategy had included a focus on older 

Page 68

Item 11



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Communities and Equalities Scrutiny Committee 6 September 2022 

 

women and that work was taking place to address the gap in provision in relation to 
this group.  She assured Members that older women not been forgotten as part of the 
work on the Safety of Women and Girls and that she would ensure that this was 
reflected in the Equality Impact Assessment and the Reference Group.  She 
confirmed that her team were working with Licensing colleagues in relation to the 
Women’s Night-time Safety Charter and standards for licensed premises.  She 
acknowledged the Member’s point about trans women and that the safety of trans 
women needed to be part of this work.  In response to a Member’s question about 
the women’s groups involved in this work, she stated that she would welcome 
Members’ suggestions of any other groups who could be involved.  She stated that 
there was a comprehensive plan in place for the return of students in September.   
 
In response to a Member’s suggestion that a subgroup be established with female 
Members only to look at the different areas and issues within this work, the Chair 
advised that she would discuss this proposal with the Deputy Leader and then 
provide an update to the Committee. 
 
The Chair welcomed that the Council had been awarded White Ribbon Accreditation 
and recommended that all male Councillors undertake the White Ribbon training. 
 
Decision 
 
To recommend that all male Councillors undertake the White Ribbon training. 
 
CESC/22/35  Serious Violence Draft Strategy 
 
The Committee received a report of the Strategic Director (Neighbourhoods) which 
provided an overview of progress made on developing Manchester’s Serious 
Violence Strategy.  The draft strategy explained the strategic partnership approach to 
serious violence for Manchester.   
 
The main points and themes within the report included: 
 

• Background information; 

• The Serious Violence Duty; and 

• Manchester’s approach – key priorities and principles for delivery. 
 
Some of the key points that arose from the Committee’s discussions were: 
 

• How would the success of the Strategy be measured and could the Committee 
receive regular information on this; 

• Examples of violence and anti-social behaviour from young people in some 
wards and concerns of this escalating without intervention; 

• That more needed to be done to get children out of Pupil Referral Units back 
into mainstream schools and provide support to parents; and 

• Issues of disproportionality in the criminal justice system affecting the level of 
trust young people had in the police and other authorities which could prevent 
them from seeking support. 

 

Page 69

Item 11



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Communities and Equalities Scrutiny Committee 6 September 2022 

 

The Strategic Director (Neighbourhoods) advised that the Committee received a 
regular update report on Community Safety priorities so officers could look to 
incorporate data relating to this strategy.   
 
The Community Safety Lead advised that there were a range of outcomes which 
would be measured, for example, crime statistics, school inclusion, first time entrants 
to the criminal justice system and support provided to young people, and that young 
people had been consulted on the outcomes that should be measured.  She agreed 
with a Member’s comment about the importance of involving families affected by 
serious violence in the work taking place and acknowledged issues of 
disproportionately in the criminal justice system, particularly in relation to black young 
men and people with Special Educational Needs and Disability, which were 
recognised within the Strategy.  
 
The Head of Youth Justice informed the Committee that additional funding from the 
Greater Manchester Violence Reduction Unit and the Community Safety Partnership 
was enabling his service to use the trusted relationship model, which had previously 
been used to work with and build relationships with young people who had entered 
the criminal justice system, to work with young people who had not entered the 
criminal justice system, providing specialist intervention at an earlier stage. 
 
In response to a Member’s question, Phil Hoyland, Partnership Development Lead, 
City of Manchester Learning Partnership provided further information on the SAFE 
Taskforce, highlighting work to identify and work with children struggling with the 
transition from primary school to high school. 
 
The Chair requested that the Committee receive a further report, including 
information on measuring the outcomes of the Strategy.  She requested that the 
report also include information on work to tackle the increase in youth violence in 
north Manchester and disparities across different areas of the city. 
 
Decision 
 
To request a further report, including information on measuring the outcomes of the 
Strategy, work to tackle the increase in youth violence in north Manchester and 
disparities across different areas of the city. 
 
CESC/22/36 Overview Report 
 
A report of the Governance and Scrutiny Support Unit was submitted. The overview 
report contained a list of key decisions yet to be taken within the Committee’s remit, 
responses to previous recommendations and the Committee’s work programme, 
which the Committee was asked to approve. 
 
Decision 

 
To note the report and agree the work programme. 
 
 

Page 70

Item 11



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Resources and Governance Scrutiny Committee 19 July 2022 

 

Resources and Governance Scrutiny Committee 
 

Minutes of the meeting held on Tuesday, 19 July 2022 
 
 
Present:  
Councillor Simcock (Chair) – in the Chair 
Councillors Andrews, Davies, Good, Kirkpatrick, Lanchbury, Rowles and Akbar 
 
Also present:  
Councillor Akbar (Executive Member for Finance and Resources)    
 
Apologies: Councillors B Priest and Wheeler 
 
 
RGSC/22/25 Minutes  
 
Decision  
  
That the minutes be approved as a correct record. 
 
RGSC/22/26 Call In - Capital Expenditure to fit out levels 5 and 6 of Manchester 

Town Hall  
 
In line with Council procedures, at the commencement of the meeting, the Chair took 
as the first item an Executive Decision that had been called in. This had been 
requested by five members of the Council for the Committee to consider. The 
Committee would look at whether the decision made complied with the Council’s 
decision-making process. If the Committee believed that this had not been complied 
with, it could then refer the matter back to the decision-maker for reconsideration. 
  
On behalf of those who had signed the request, Councillor John Leech was invited by 
the Chair to explain the reasons for calling in the decision to approve capital 
expenditure of £1,170,000 for the fit out of levels 5 and 6 of Manchester Town Hall. 
  
Councillor Leech explained that a response to his enquiries was only provided 24 
hours before the deadline for call-in and that this did not allow opportunity to ask 
further questions relating to the viability of renting out the office space, and whether 
moving Town Hall staff into the space was good value for money before the decision 
was implemented.  
  
The Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer, the Director of Capital Programmes 
and the Head of Corporate Property were in attendance to answer questions of the 
Committee. 
  
In response to member queries, it was explained that external advisors had been 
consulted on value-for-money and a report outlining the financial benefits of the 
decision had been considered by the Strategic Board.  
  
Decision: 

Page 71

Item 11



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Resources and Governance Scrutiny Committee 19 July 2022 

 

  
That the decision taken by the Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer on 7 July 
2022 relating to the approval of capital expenditure of £1,170,000 for the fit out of 
levels 5 and 6 of Manchester Town Hall, should stand.   
  
 
RGSC/22/27 HROD Update  
 
The Committee considered a report of the Director of Human Resources and 
Organisational Development (HROD), which provided an overview on HROD activity 
within the Council. 
  
Key point and themes of the report included:- 
  

•                Updates on Our Ways of Working, Service Design and the Performance 
Management framework and approach; 

•                An overview of the Workforce Equality Strategy and its aims; 

•                An update on recruitment, including a proposed refresh of the Recruitment and 
Selection policy; and 

•                An update on casework with a focus on the organisations handling of 
suspensions. 

  
Some of the key points that arose from the Committee’s discussions were: - 
  

•                What the acronym EDI referred to in the report meant; 

•                No reference to the Talent and Diversity team working with care leavers to 
strengthen employment pathways to the Council; 

•                How difficult it was for the Work and Skills team to engage with young people 
NEET through the pilot programme to subsidise and support young people's 
participation in training direct and whether this work was undertaken on a ward-
to-ward basis; 

•                The frequency of Equality Employee Network meetings and how we can 
ensure these meetings are meaningful; 

•                How are challenges within the Equality Employee Network resolved and 
evidenced; 

•                The inclusion of transgender employees within the Equality Employee Network 
and Workforce Equality Strategy; 

•                Potential solutions to the lack of system in place for recording and monitoring 
About You performance development meetings; 

•                Satisfaction at the decrease in number of safeguarding-related conduct cases; 

•                What the Council was doing to continue improving safeguarding and to prevent 
the abuse of power within Children and Adult Services; and 

•                The length of time taken to recruit staff and what was being done to improve 
this.  

  
The Director of Human Resources and Organisational Development advised that EDI 
was short for Equality, Diversity and Inclusion and that this would be referenced in full 
in future reports.  
  

Page 72

Item 11



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Resources and Governance Scrutiny Committee 19 July 2022 

 

The Talent and Diversity Lead provided assurances that the work of his team focused 
on strengthening employment pathways for all residents and that this encompassed 
care leavers. It was also explained that the Work and Skills and Education teams 
were responsible for identifying new cohorts for the pilot programme to engage with 
young people NEET and that the Talent and Diversity team were involved in 
connecting young people to opportunities within the Council.  
  
Members were advised that the Employee Equality Networks met monthly with 
Network members involved in work between meetings in areas such as OD and 
performance. The Networks also have a governance structure – the Corporate 
Equalities, Diversity, Inclusion Leadership Group - in place, chaired by the Strategic 
Lead Member for Race and made up of directorate members and Chairs of the 
Networks, which meets bi-monthly.  
  
Disputes within the Networks would initially be approached within the monthly 
meetings or escalated to the Strategic Lead for Race or the Corporate Equalities, 
Diversity, Inclusion Leadership Group.  
  
The Talent and Diversity Lead also provided assurances that both the LGBT group 
and transgender employees were engaged throughout the development of the 
Workforce Equality Strategy and the ‘Tell Us Once’ programme was cited as an 
example of this collaborative work. 
  
The Head of Workforce Strategy acknowledged issues around being unable to 
document and monitor ‘About You’ sessions and explained that a corporate system 
with oversight of performance reviews was proposed and that staff would be 
consulted on this for ideas.  
  
It was also clarified by the Director of Human Resources and Organisational 
Development that HROD were responsible for the outcome of a safeguarding inquiry 
and advised that the length of suspensions within Children’s and Adults Services had 
recently been reduced by not awaiting the outcome of a police inquiry.  
  
In response to queries regarding the time taken to recruit, the Director of Human 
Resources and Organisational Development highlighted that the Recruitment team 
had evaluated the process, consulted with candidates and recruiting managers and 
redesigned the process to improve the time taken to recruit and appoint. A new 
recruitment system had been procured to further improve this.  
  
A commitment was also provided to include feedback from staff about their 
experiences of working at the Council in a future HROD update report.   
  
Decision 

  
The Committee:- 
  
(1)      notes the report and 

  
(2)      requests that feedback from staff about their experiences of working at the 

Council be included in a future HROD update report. 

Page 73

Item 11



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Resources and Governance Scrutiny Committee 19 July 2022 

 

  
 
RGSC/22/28 Ethical Procurement and Forthcoming Changes to Government 

Procurement Rules  
 
The Committee considered a report of the Head of Integrated Commissioning and 
Procurement, which provided an update on the council’s approach to ethical 
procurement with a focus on workforce considerations including blacklisting and 
provided an update on changes in Government procurement rules and their potential 
impact. 
  
Key point and themes of the report included:- 
  

•                The Council had a long track record of promoting ethical procurement and 
social value; 

•                Over the years the Council had refined its policies and expanded its efforts, 
introducing, for example, the 20% social value weighting in the evaluation of all 
tenders; 

•                The Council’s procurement approach was guided by two key policies – the 
Ethical Procurement Policy and the Social Value Policy; 

•                The Public Services (Social Value) Act 2012, gave the Council the freedom, 
and certain legal duties in relation to its procurement arrangements but there 
were some limitations 

•                Changes to UK Procurement Regulations were currently under consideration 
as the Local Government Procurement Bill was considered by Parliament 
during the current term with the new regulations resulting from the Act, once 
passed, likely to be in force from mid 2023 onwards’ and 

•                In parallel, the Health and Care Act 2022 included provision that would 
establish a “Provider Selection Regime” (“PSR”) which would be a new set of 
rules replacing the existing procurement rules for arranging healthcare services 
in England 

  
Some of the key points and queries that arose from the Committees discussions 
were:- 
  

•                How prepared the Council is with regards to directly awarding contracts to 
VCSEs (Voluntary, Community and Social Enterprise organisations) in certain 
limited circumstances for up to 5 years instead of the 3 years under the current 
regulations;  

•                A need to include homeless people on the list of priority cohorts for the Social 
Value Policy as it was recognised that the term rough sleepers does not 
encompass all homeless people; 

•                Clarification on the procurement rules where company beneficiaries include the 
governments of countries with a poor human rights record; 

•                How the Council excludes bidders from the procurement process if they have 
committed serious violations; and 

•                If the Council had any plans to resume face-to-face Meet the Buyer and Ethical 
Procurement Conference meetings; 
  

Page 74

Item 11



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Resources and Governance Scrutiny Committee 19 July 2022 

 

The Head of Integrated Commissioning and Procurement highlighted that the current 
procurement regulations permit the award of contracts to VCSEs in certain 
circumstances but acknowledged that these were limited. Changes to these 
regulations were anticipated by the end of July 2022 but the detail was not yet 
known. It was also confirmed that forward planning for this change would be 
undertaken to identify those contracts up for renewal and opportunities for new 
initiatives.  
  
It was acknowledged that the definition of homeless people is wider than “rough 
sleepers” and would be built into the guidance to support the Ethical Procurement 
Policy.  
  
Whilst the Head of Integrated Commissioning and Procurement acknowledged that 
reference to local small and medium-size enterprise (SMEs) was not included in 
current procurement documentation, although the detail was not yet known, there 
was an indication that the new regulations would allow local authorities to adopt 
specific award criteria that may contribute toward the Council’s own objectives.  
  
The Strategic Lead for Integrated Commissioning advised that the Local Government 
Act 1988 stipulated that local authorities were unable to refuse award of a contract 
due to non-commercial considerations, such as country of origin. He explained, 
however, that central government could issue statutory instruments to provide 
authorities with the legal power to refuse a contract on the basis of country of origin 
and any embargoes, such as those currently imposed on Russia and Belarus, 
although the authority would still need to ensure best value-for-money.  
  
The Committee was also advised that the standard questionnaire developed by the 
Cabinet Office for local authorities to use when inviting contractors to tender included 
a question on whether the applicant or any company directors had previously been 
convicted of any serious offences.  
  
The Head of Integrated Commissioning and Procurement commented that face-to-
face meetings were recommencing following the Covid pandemic and explained that 
many Meet the Buyer events had been held virtually, with social value and ethical 
procurement principles emphasised in these meeting. 
  
Decision 

  
That the Committee note the report. 
  
 
RGSC/22/29 Management of Major Contracts  
 
The Committee considered a report of the Head of Integrated Commissioning and 
Procurement and Strategic Lead Integrated Commissioning, which provided 
information on how major contracts were managed and the key considerations for the 
Council when looking at future commissioning options. 
  
Key points and theme of the report included:- 
  

Page 75

Item 11



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Resources and Governance Scrutiny Committee 19 July 2022 

 

•                The approach to contract management of major contracts; 

•                Key considerations for future commissioning; 

•                Main and current issues connected to contract management and 
commissioning, including:- 

•                Policy changes; 

•                Market risk; 

•                Inflation and financial management; 

•                Contract management skill development; 

• Complex procurements should include an appraisal of delivery options 
including insourcing; 

•                Implementation complications; 

•                Retention of expertise; 

•                Back-office support requirements; and 

•                Urgent insourcing as a result of supplier or market failure 

  
Some of the key points and queries that arose from the Committee’s discussions 
were:- 
  

•                The impact of inflation on services such as school meals and care work and 
how other costs besides rising fuel prices will impact these; 

•                Sought assurance that the Council would support local SMEs at risk of closure; 

•                If detailed analysis of the delivery models which formed part of the decision to 
let the waste collection and street cleaning services to a contractor could be 
shared, with specific reference to the contract with Biffa Waste Management 

•                Whether there was any learning from other authorities that have insourced 
services that the Council could benefit from; and 

•                Whether an officer Major Contracts Oversight Board should be established 
with the Executive Member for Finance chairing the Board and the ability to co-
opt other Executive Members to chair where contracts fall within their portfolio.  

  
The Strategic Lead for Integrated Commissioning explained that the Council 
recognised the pressures currently experienced by suppliers and were willing to 
consider contract variations due to any price increase and not exclusively as a result 
of fuel price increase. Suppliers would be expected to keep costs under review and, 
should fuel prices decrease, it could be possible to renegotiate prices downwards. He 
advised that, as part of a national “true cost of care” exercise, the Manchester Local 
Care Organisation was working with the social care market to understand the costs of 
care, including food, energy, transport and wages.  
  
It was explained that the Council would support SMEs with the focus of continuing to 
provide vital public services for residents and that they would expect services to have 
business continuity plans in place. Assurances were also provided that the Council 
would work with suppliers at risk of closure to understand the nature of the issue and 
to help with potential solutions.  
  
The Director of Commercial and Operations advised that the details of the Biffa 
Waste Management contract had been shared with members previously but that he 
would provide a response to the member outside of the meeting.  
  

Page 76

Item 11



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Resources and Governance Scrutiny Committee 19 July 2022 

 

The Executive Member for Finance and resources welcomed the recommendation to 
establish a Major Contracts Oversight Board and commented that this would help to 
ensure the Council provides good services and value-for-money for residents.  
  
Decision 

  
That the Committee 

  
(1)      notes the report and 

  
(2)      recommends the creation of a Major Contracts Oversight Board to be made up 

of officers and chaired by the Executive Member for Finance. The proposed 
purpose of this Board would be to evaluate all major contracts with the potential 
to co-opt other Executive Members to chair the board where a contract falls 
within their portfolio.  

  
(3)      recommends that the City Council establishes which other councils are working 

on projects to bring services back ‘in-house’ and to learn from their experiences. 
  
 
RGSC/22/30 Overview Report  
 
The Committee considered the report by the Governance and Scrutiny Support Unit 
which provided details of key decisions that fall within the Committee’s remit and an 
update on actions resulting from the Committee’s recommendations. The report also 
included the Committee’s work programme, which the Committee was asked to 
amend as appropriate and agree. 
 
Decision 
 
The Committee note the report and agreed the work programme. 
 
 
 

Page 77

Item 11



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Resources and Governance Scrutiny Committee 6 September 2022 

Resources and Governance Scrutiny Committee 
 

Minutes of the meeting held on Tuesday, 6 September 2022 
 
 
Present:  
Councillor Simcock (Chair) – in the Chair 
Councillors Davies, Good, Lanchbury, B Priest and Wheeler 
 
Also present:  
 
Councillor Akbar (Executive Member for Finance and Resources) 
Councillor Rahman (Deputy Leader (Statutory)) 
Councillor White (Executive Member for Housing and Development)  
 
Apologies: Councillor Andrews, Kirkpatrick and Rowles 
 
 
RGSC/22/31 Interests  
 
Councillor Lanchbury declared a personal interest in item 7 – Property Annual 
Report.  
 
RGSC/22/32 Minutes  
 
Decision: 
  
That the minutes of the previous meeting be approved as a correct record.  
 
RGSC/22/33 Call In - Capital Expenditure Hough End Master Plan  
 
In line with Council procedures, at the commencement of the meeting, the Chair took 
as the first item an Executive Decision that had been called in. This had been 
requested by five members of the Council for the Committee to consider. The 
Committee would look at whether the decision made complied with the Council’s 
decision-making process. If the Committee believed that this had not been complied 
with, it could then refer the matter back to the decision-maker for reconsideration. 
  
On behalf of those who had signed the request, Councillor John Leech was invited by 
the Chair to explain the reasons for calling in the decision to approve capital 
expenditure of £11,905,000 in relation to the Hough End Masterplan. 
  
Councillor Leech explained that he did not believe there was a demonstrable need to 
improve sports pitches at Hough End Playing Fields and that no evidence had been 
provided to show that local schools and sports clubs who had invested in artificial 
pitches to generate income would not be detrimentally affected by the decision.  
  
Councillor Leech also queried the financial return from the investment and whether 
the cost of replacing pitch surfaces after 10 years would outweigh the total profit 

Page 78

Item 11



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Resources and Governance Scrutiny Committee 6 September 2022 

made. He also felt that the works approved in the decision would not contribute to the 
Council’s zero-carbon ambition, contrary to information in the report.  
  
The Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer, the Strategic Director of 
Neighbourhoods and the Capital and Facilities Strategy Manager – MCR Active were 
in attendance to answer questions of the Committee. 
  
In response to Councillor Leech, the Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer 
advised that the decision constituted the final stage in the decision-making process 
and was the drawdown of funding to support the scheme approved by Planning 
Committee, the Executive and Full Council. It was explained that a viable business 
plan had been created with a financial return, which the Deputy Chief Executive and 
City Treasurer was satisfied with.  
  
It was stated that a broader environmental impact assessment was not required for a 
development of this scale and that the scheme had been designed with the needs of 
two local schools in mind.  
  
The Strategic Director Neighbourhoods explained that stakeholder engagement had 
taken place with organisations and this had assessed the development and growth of 
clubs and identified a need for new pitch provisions.  
  
The Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer and the Strategic Director 
Neighbourhoods both expressed their confidence that the correct decision-making 
processes had been followed.  
  
Decision: (4:1) 
  
That the decision taken by the Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer on 3 
August 2022 relating to the approval of capital expenditure of £11,905,000 in relation 
to the Hough End Masterplan, should stand. 
 
RGSC/22/34 Annual Section 106 Monitoring  
 
The Committee considered a report of the Strategic Director Growth and 
Development, which provided an update on the Council’s Section 106 (s106) activity 
for 2021/22 and to date. 
  
Key themes in the report included: 
  

•         Planning application numbers having remained relatively stable over the 
years but there had been a slight downturn during 2021/22. It remained too 
early to predict activity for the current financial year; 

•         16 S106 agreements were signed during the 2021/22 financial year and a 
further 7 agreements had been signed to date for the 2022/23 financial year;  

•         A higher proportion of contributions related to affordable housing and other 
key areas include leisure and environmental improvements; 

•         A schedule of completed agreements for 2019/20, 2020/21, 2021/22 and 
2022/23 including values and number of units where applicable; 

Page 79

Item 11



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Resources and Governance Scrutiny Committee 6 September 2022 

•         A working group had been established to ensure that money received is 
available for spend, that there are no unnecessary delays in the spending of 
financial contributions and that project managers are in place to oversee 
individual projects; and 

•         The balance of funds in the S106 capital accounts and how this money is split 
and examples of spend, including affordable housing, highway-related works 
and tree-planting. 

  
Some of the key points and queries that arose from the committee’s discussions 
included: 
  

•         Figures indicated a reduction in the number of major applications, which 
would impact the amount of S106 contributions received; 

•         If using the Section 278 process was more sufficient in generating funding for 
highways-related works than S106; 

•         Where Members involvement would be on the end-to-end process map for 
planning applications; 

•         An update on benchmarking with other Local Planning Authorities was 
requested; 

•         Whether S106 monies could be placed into the Council’s wholly-owned 
housing delivery vehicle;  

•         The possibility of members observing the officer working group which ensures 
money received is available for spend;  

•         Request for a record of how many and where trees had been planted; 

•         What was meant by ‘land value’ and ‘market forces’; and 

•         Expressed thanks for the ward-by-ward breakdown of applications.  
  
The Section Planning Manager explained that increased construction costs had 
resulted in a reduction in major applications being received but provided assurances 
that officers would continue to negotiate section 106 contracts where appropriate.  
  
The Section Planning Manager also explained that off-site highways works were 
often agreed through a condition and relevant agreement and this helps to embed 
issues through planning permission. 
  
It was explained that members would be involved in discussions regarding 
applications as soon as they are registered with the Local Planning Authority (LPA) 
and that confidentiality between the LPA and developers restricted these 
conversations from taking place before applications were registered. It was 
acknowledged, however, that some developers hold pre-application consultations.  
  
The Section Planning Manager acknowledged that difficulties in making contact with 
other Core Cities to undertake benchmarking had led to a delay but informed 
members that a meeting had been scheduled for late September. 
  
It was also explained that information on the number of trees planted was difficult to 
quantify for every approved application. The Section Planning Manager advised that 
this could be undertaken on individual ward levels.  
  

Page 80

Item 11



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Resources and Governance Scrutiny Committee 6 September 2022 

In response to members’ requests, the Section Planning Manager agreed to look into 
whether S106 monies could be used to fund the Council’s wholly-owned housing 
delivery vehicle and how members could be involved in the officer working group. 
Definitions of the terms ‘land values’ and ‘market forces’ would also be provided 
outside of the meeting.  
  
The Executive Member for Housing and Development welcomed the committee’s 
comments and reiterated the importance of engaging with members on planning 
applications.  
  
Decision: 
  
That 
  

1.    the Committee notes the report; 
  

2.    the Committee requests that a further update report is provided to the 
committee in 12 months; and 

  
3.    the Committee requests future reports reference the extent to which Section 

278 monies can be utilised.  
 
RGSC/22/35 Property Annual Report  
 
The Committee considered a report of the Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer 
and the Director of Strategic Development which provided an update on property 
activity since the last Annual Property Report to Resources and Governance Scrutiny 
Committee in May 2021. 
  
Key points and themes of the report included: 
  

•         The development of the Strategic Asset Management Plan (SAMP) to set out 
key priorities for the Council’s property and land asset base and the approach 
to the management of it over a 5 year period; 

•         An update on the work of the Development team, Estates and Facilities 
Service and Investment Estate; 

•         The emergence of the Levelling Up fund, Shared Prosperity Fund and other 
initiatives had been a focus for the Development Team; 

•         The creation of a multi-disciplinary team to renew the vision for Wythenshawe 
Town Centre, with a view to submission of a comprehensive Levelling Up 
round 2 bid; 

•         City Centre development and commercial development; 

•         Housing development and major regeneration projects; and 

•         Social value work as a result of commitments by the Council’s main 
maintenance contractor, including 755 volunteering hours, 99 hours of school-
based support, 76 hours of community support, two energy workshops, five 
helping hands projects and two charity events. 

  
Some of the key points and queries that arose from the Committee’s discussions 
included: 

Page 81

Item 11



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Resources and Governance Scrutiny Committee 6 September 2022 

  

•         How much income had been generated by Central Retail Park being used as 
a COVID testing site;  

•         Potential issues with attracting investors to Central Retail Park; 

•         Commended and recognised work on social value; 

•         A need for greater working between corporate property and local councillors 
to link community groups with available venues and space; 

•         A need for the contracted provider of the Council’s property management 
services, asset valuations, landlord and tenant services to recognise the 
uniqueness and individualism of some of the Council’s assets; and 

•         How organisations and asset management companies which the Council 
works with can be ‘good neighbours’ to residents. 

  
The Head of Development advised members that discussions with a specific party 
regarding a major opportunity at Central Retail Park had been undertaken and that 
this remained confidential. It was felt that this opportunity would be appropriate for 
the development and was progressing positively.  
  
Figures on the income generated from the testing centre at Central Retail Park would 
be provided outside of the meeting.  
  
The Head of Development acknowledged the Committee’s comments on the 
Council’s outsourcing contract and agreed that the scope and provider of the this 
needed to be appropriate.  
  
Decision: 
  
That the Committee note the report.  
 
RGSC/22/36 Ownership of Assets  
 
The Committee considered a report of the Head of Estates and Facilities and the 
Head of Development which provided an overview of the Council’s Property Asset 
Database (CPAD), the training available for Councillors on the system, and the role 
of the Records team in supporting ownership queries. 
  
Key themes and points of the report included: 
  

•         CPAD helps Councillors to determine who owns what within their wards; 

•         Members have been able to access CPAD since January 2017 and training 
and access has been offered to all new Members, with refresher training 
available as required. Any Member requiring new or refresher training should 
contact CPAD@manchester.gov.uk.  

•         Members who have received training are provided with read-only access to 
operational, investment and school site records within their wards; and 

•         Work was underway to update records and develop a strategic asset 
management plan. 

  
A live demonstration of using CPAD was also provided at the meeting.  
  

Page 82

Item 11



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Resources and Governance Scrutiny Committee 6 September 2022 

Some of the key points and queries that arose from the Committee’s discussions 
included: 
  

•         If land is classified by department and if this information is available through 
CPAD; 

•         How the Strategic Asset Management Plan (SAMP) would improve the 
decision-making process around land, property, investment and development 
decision making; 

•         Encouraging members to take up the offer of training on CPAD; 

•         If land disposal is recorded on the system; 
  
The Estates Information Manager (Systems) explained that work was underway as 
part of the 10-year anniversary of CPAD to update some historic records to ensure 
relevance. It was also confirmed that the CPAD system provides information as to 
which council department owns an asset.  
  
It was also explained that enquiries as to ownership of land are primarily received 
through the Council’s CRM system which are then directed to Corporate Estates for 
triage.  
  
The Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer encouraged members and residents 
to continue to use the CRM system to report issues such as fly tipping and waste.  
  
The Head of Estates and Facilities provided assurances that the SAMP, which was 
being developed, would provide a clear process for making decisions around 
ownership of land.   
  
The Director of Development reiterated these comments and explained that the 
SAMP would be an open and transparent evaluation tool which would bring together 
the Council’s strategic priorities, planning policy and consultation with partners to 
evaluate the potential of land to provide a supply of homes, work and skills 
opportunities and community uses. The SAMP would be a public document and 
engagement would be undertaken with ward members.   
  
The Committee was also advised that officers were working with Members Services 
to introduce training on CPAD as part of the wider induction programme.  
  
Assurances were provided that records were not deleted from the system and that 
disposed land would be recorded as an archived site.  
  
The Deputy Leader (Statutory) advised members that work remained underway on 
the SAMP to ensure robustness and that training could be arranged for after this 
work is completed.  
  
Decision: 
  
That 
  

1.    the Committee notes the report; 
  

Page 83

Item 11



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Resources and Governance Scrutiny Committee 6 September 2022 

2.    the Committee recommends increasing efforts to have members of the Council 
trained on the CPAD system; and  

  
3.    the Committee recommends that training on the CPAD system be included as 

part of the wider induction programme for members.  
 
RGSC/22/37 Global Monitoring and Budget Position  
 
The Committee considered a report of the Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer 
which outlined the projected outturn position for 2022/23, based on the latest 
expenditure and income activity and future projections, and the updated forecast 
position for 2023/24 and beyond. 
  
Key themes and points of the report included: 
  

•         An overspend of £20.1 million was forecasted for 2022/23; 

•         The overspend was mainly due to the announcement of a higher than 
expected one year pay award offer for 2022/23 (£9.5m), additional utilities 
inflation (£3.9m), higher than expected price inflation (£3.6m) and other 
pressures, largely relating to income shortfalls (£3.4m); 

•         The pay offer proposed from the National Employers is a flat £1,925 per 
employee regardless of where they are on the salary structure; 

•         The implications of COVID-19 and record levels of inflation on the Council’s 
cost base would have a significant impact on the Council’s finances for a 
number of years; 

•         The main demand-led services of Adults, Children’s and Homelessness were 
projecting to outturn at or below budget; 

•         The Council was working to reduce the pressures where possible and 
mitigate the position by: 

o   Daily monitoring of wholesale prices for gas and electricity to inform the 

best time to take up new contracts 

o   Rigorous procurement practices and ongoing discussions with suppliers 

to contain inflationary increases where possible 

o   Review of Sales, Fees and Charges income to reflect increased pay 

awards and other costs where possible. 
o   All directorates to review budgets and identify in year savings and 

mitigations ; 

•         Development of a parking strategy was underway to support the overall city 
centre transport strategy and rebase budgets to reflect the reduced level of off-
street parking income; and 

•         The Medium-Term Financial Statement (MTFS) forecasted the Council’s 
budget gap at £37m in 2023/24, increasing to £58m by 2024/25. 

  
Some of the key points and queries that arose from the Committee’s discussions 
included: 
  

•         Acknowledged the rapidly-moving situation within the budget process; 

•         The increased workload anticipated in Revenues and Benefits this winter; 

Page 84

Item 11



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Resources and Governance Scrutiny Committee 6 September 2022 

•         Potential difficulties in receiving council tax and business rates as the cost of 
living crisis escalates; 

•         Whether any modelling had been undertaken regarding the local government 
pay offer, which was still under negotiation; and 

•         Any additional measures the Council could provide to help residents living in 
socially-rented properties. 

  
The Deputy City Treasurer advised that the current pay offer was a flat-rate £1925 
per employee, irrespective of position on the pay scale. This meant that employees 
on the lowest pay would see the greatest increase in their pay. This constituted an 
average increase of 7% to the Council’s pay bill, amounting to £16.5 million in 
comparison to £7 million which was budgeted for.  
  
The Deputy City Treasurer also advised members that this figure was still under 
negotiation and that the pay offer could amount to higher if the flat £1925 increase 
was rejected.  
  
It was explained that the inflation rate was 3% when the budget was set in February 
2022 and was projected to peak at 5%. 
  
The Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer explained that a further Household 
Support Scheme had been announced and further guidance on this was expected. 
The provisional figure for the scheme was £6.5 million and the Council would work to 
identify how this funding could be best used. 
  
It was acknowledged that the Council was unable to mitigate every consequence of 
the cost of living crisis but work was underway to assess how the Council makes best 
use of its resources and discussions were ongoing between the Council and 
landlords on how to support residents. Discussions were also taking place regarding 
housing revenue accounts and the level of rent increases.  
  
The Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer also informed members of a reserve 
which had been set aside and the Council was assessing proposals on how this 
could be used.  
  
The Executive Member for Finance and Resources commented that the Council was 
experiencing difficulty in absorbing inflationary pressures given the impact of COVID 
and the cost of living crisis and called on the government to recognise the severe and 
unprecedented pressures that local authorities are facing.  
  
The Executive Member encouraged the government to commit additional funding in 
the fiscal event, which was anticipated in late September, to mitigate against soaring 
inflation so that essential services provided by local authorities are supported.  
  
Decision: 
  
That 
  

1.    the Committee notes the report and 

Page 85

Item 11



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Resources and Governance Scrutiny Committee 6 September 2022 

2.    the Committee endorses any efforts made by the Council to secure additional 
funding from the government.  

  
 
RGSC/22/38 Overview Report  
 
The Committee considered the report by the Governance and Scrutiny Support Unit 
which provided details of key decisions that fall within the Committee’s remit and an 
update on actions resulting from the Committee’s recommendations. The report also 
included the Committee’s work programme, which the Committee was asked to 
amend as appropriate and agree. 
  
Members reiterated their desire for all reports to be published on time and requested 
that a response be provided to the outstanding recommendation on the 
Recommendations Monitor. 
  
Decision: 
  
The Committee note the report and agreed the work programme. 
 
 
 

Page 86

Item 11



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Health Scrutiny Committee 20 July 2022 

 

Health Scrutiny Committee 
 
Minutes of the meeting held on 20 July 2022 
 
Present: 
Councillor Green – in the Chair 
Councillors Appleby, Bayunu, Curley, Karney, Newman, Reeves, Riasat, Richards 
and Russell  
 
Apologies: None received 
 
Also present:  
Councillor T. Robinson, Executive Member for Healthy Manchester and Adult Social 
Care 
Councillor Rawlins, Executive Member for Environment and Transport 
Councillor Shilton Godwin, Chair of Environment and Climate Change Scrutiny 
Committee 
Sir Richard Leese, Chair, Greater Manchester Integrated Care  
Mark Fisher CBE, Chief Executive Designate, Greater Manchester Integrated Care 
Ed Dyson, Executive Director of Strategy & Deputy Chief Accountable Officer, 
Manchester Health and Care Commissioning 
Jemma Hynes, FoodSync 
Julie Taylor, Director of Strategy (Manchester), NHS Greater Manchester Integrated 
Care 
Lee Hay, Director of Strategy, Manchester University NHS Foundation Trust  
Catherine Hollingsworth, Partnership Account Manager, Slimming World 
 
HSC/22/27  Urgent Business – The Recent Heatwave 
 
The Chair introduced an item of urgent business by inviting the Director of Public 
Health, the Executive Director of Adult Social Services and the Chief Operating 
Officer of the MLCO the to address the Committee on the response to the 
unprecedented recent heatwave. 
 
Officers reported that across the wider health system, all services had worked 
together and planned for the imminent heatwave following the announcements from 
the Met Office. An update was provided that described the measures taken to 
support both residents and staff in a range of settings, noting that despite the 
additional pressures experienced the system had coped. 
 
The Executive Member for Healthy Manchester and Adult Social Care thanked all 
staff involved in protecting and supporting residents. He further thanked the residents 
of Manchester for adhering to the public health messages during the heatwave. 
 
Some of the key points that arose from the Committee’s discussions were: -  
 

• That the impact of climate change could not be ignored and the Government 
needed to do more immediately to address this; 

• Recognising the invaluable service that the public sector provided at such times of 
crisis; 

Page 87

Item 11



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Health Scrutiny Committee 20 July 2022 

 

• More information was sought on the approach to communications with vulnerable 
groups; 

• Noting the impact of Covid and people’s reluctance to access medical assistance 
it was important to reiterate that if residents were experiencing symptoms, they 
should seek appropriate medical assistance; and 

• Noting that the impact of the heatwave on people’s health would be felt in the 
coming weeks and months. 

 
The Chair stated that the Committee had given a commitment to regularly consider 
the relationship between climate change and health and recommended that the next 
quarterly report focused on the impact of the heatwave and resilience building across 
the system. The Chair further commented upon the impact of the heatwave on 
mental health, noting that this was in the context of other global existential threats.   
    
Decision 
 
To note the update and recommend that the next report that considers the 
relationship between health and climate change focuses on the impact of the 
heatwave, including physical and mental health and resilience building across the 
system. 
 
HSC/22/28  Minutes 
 
Decision 
 
To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 22 June 2022 as a correct record. 
 
HSC/22/29  Manchester University Hospital NHS Foundation Trust 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Director of Strategy (Manchester), NHS 
Greater Manchester Integrated Care and the Director of Strategy, Manchester 
University NHS Foundation Trust (MFT) that described service change proposals for 
Clinical Haematology and Fetal Medicine that formed part of the agreed plans to 
disaggregate services for the legacy Pennine Acute Hospital Trust (PAHT) and 
integrate North Manchester General Hospital (NMGH) services into Manchester 
University NHS Foundation Trust.  
 
Key points and themes in the report included: 
  

• Providing an overview of the strategic context for change; 

• The approach to developing and assuring service change proposals; 

• An overview of the service change proposals; and 

• Key areas of focus highlighted during the engagement process.    
 
Some of the key points that arose from the Committee’s discussions were: -  
 
• The importance of considering public transport costs incurred by residents when 

proposing changes to the location of the delivery of services; 
• An assurance was sought that the proposals reported did not amount to asset 

stripping from North Manchester General Hospital; 

Page 88

Item 11



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Health Scrutiny Committee 20 July 2022 

 

• Consideration needed to be given to the language within the reports submitted to 
the Committee to ensure that plain English was used throughout so that they were 
accessible to the lay reader; 

• Did the proposals in regard to Fetal Medicine represent a wider reorganisation of 
maternity services or was it a more discrete proposal; and 

• Noting that the Health Scrutiny Committee retained the right to refer any proposed 
substantial variation to the Secretary of State if satisfied that the criteria had been 
met. 

 
The Executive Member for Healthy Manchester and Adult Social Care stated that 
NHS partners were aware of the rights of the Health Scrutiny Committee to refer any 
proposed substantial variation to the Secretary of State, however he reassured the 
Committee that NHS partners did consult with him on a regular basis, and this 
provided political oversight and input. He advised that he further pressed and 
challenged NHS partners to explicitly report the considerations given to the impacts 
on residents. He further noted the comments regarding the use of plain English. 
 
The Director of Strategy, Manchester University NHS Foundation Trust reassured the 
Committee that the Fetal Medicine service were currently delivered at the Royal 
Oldham hospital site and did not represent any asset stripping from the North 
Manchester General Hospital. He further advised that this was not part of a 
systematic redesign of the delivery of maternity services.  
 
The Chair stated that she was reassured by the statement provided by the Executive 
Member for Healthy Manchester and Adult Social Care and was satisfied with the 
reported consideration given to travel and digital inclusion. She asked that any future 
proposals were submitted to the Committee at the earliest opportunity so that the 
Committee could comment on these. 
 
Decision 
 
To note the report. 
 
HSC/22/30  Climate Change - Food and Health 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Director of Public Health that described 
the strategy and actions of the Manchester Food Board (MFB) to achieve a positive 
alteration in the food system within the city and, at the same time, address climate 
change, alongside an update of recent actions and priorities for 2022. 
  
Key points and themes in the report included: 
  

• Providing an introduction and background, noting that the current MFB was set up 
in 2019 as a multi-sectoral partnership capable of driving systemic, strategic 
change in the food system for Manchester; 

• The key over-arching priority for MFB was now addressing the environmental and 
climate change issues related to food production and consumption;  

• Describing the specific aim to reduce environmental impacts throughout the food 
system with a focus on food waste and a shift to more ecological practices;  

Page 89

Item 11



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Health Scrutiny Committee 20 July 2022 

 

• Noting that the Food for the Planet Strategy is aligned with the Manchester 
Climate Change Framework; 

• Describing the action for 2022; and 

• Describing future actions. 
 
Some of the key points that arose from the Committee’s discussions were: -  
 
• Noting the impact of the cost of living crisis, more needed to be done with 

supermarkets in deprived wards to ensure people had access to healthy food 
options; 

• Discussing the provision of school meals and how providers could be influenced; 

• What was the relationship between the Food Board and local community 
providers; 

• Business Rates should be used to encourage businesses providing healthy food 
options; 

• What consideration had been given to the provision of free drinking water access 
points across the city to reduce people purchasing bottled water;    

• The need to engage young people on the issue of fast food and healthy choices; 
and 

• Council owned land should be released to community groups to support the 
planting and growing of food. 

 
The Committee welcomed Councillor Shilton Godwin, Chair of the Environment and 
Climate Change Scrutiny Committee who discussed the relationship between food 
consumption, particularly meat, food production and carbon emissions. She stated 
that the National Food Strategy for England had failed to address the issue of 
supermarket practices. 
 
Jemma Hynes, FoodSync discussed the challenges experienced when attempting to 
engage with supermarkets. She stated that local branches of supermarkets had little 
or no autonomy to make decisions. She contextualised the issue be explaining that 
food was traded globally as a commodity with complex supply chains, adding that the 
full implications of the war in the Ukraine on global food supplies was yet to be 
realised. She further commented that the greatest profits to supermarkets were 
achieved through the sale of processed foods, not fruit and vegetables. However, 
despite this they continued to lobby at a national level to influence change with 
regard to national chains.  She stated that they focused a lot of their limited 
resources on working with the local independent food sector. With regard to the 
discussion regarding the cost of living crisis she commented that the Food Board did 
contribute to the Council’s Family Poverty Strategy. She further commented that the 
distribution of free food also needed to consider the quality of the food, noting that 
the priority during the pandemic had correctly been to ensure that people were fed, 
however consideration now had to be given to the nutritional value of the food that 
was distributed to families in crisis.  
 
Jemma Hynes, FoodSync stated that they did advocate bringing the provision of 
school meals back into the control of local authorities and advised that the Food 
Board did work closely with the Council’s Education Department. She described that 
school budgets were pressured, noting that the increased costs of fuel bills would 
add to this situation. She commented that a consequence of this would potentially be 

Page 90

Item 11



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Health Scrutiny Committee 20 July 2022 

 

for providers of school meals to source produce from other countries where this was 
cheaper, however the associated food miles contributed to carbon emissions. She 
further added that Business Rates was a complex system and they advocated a 
change to this, including the establishment of a grants system to support local, 
sustainable businesses.   
 
Jemma Hynes, FoodSync stated that the issue of releasing council owned land to 
community groups to grow food was not as simple as it first appeared, noting that 
issues of soil toxicity, the required initial capital investment in infrastructure and 
ongoing maintenance funding all had to be considered, noting that competition for 
land was very fierce across the city. She stated that ‘grow your own’ work with 
community groups and residents was delivered, often through working with partners 
such as local housing providers, adding that a one size fits all approach was not 
appropriate. 
 
The Executive Member for Environment and Transport advised the Committee that 
the Manchester Food Board were represented and contributed to the Manchester 
Climate Change Framework, noting that the Manchester Climate Change Framework 
(2020-25) was the city's high-level strategy for tackling climate change. She 
supported the call for behaviour change regarding food choices and the need for 
meaningful engagement with all residents on this important issue. She encouraged 
all Members that this should be included in each respective ward’s Climate Change 
Action Plans. She further advised that she would circulate the latest Food Board 
Newsletter and encouraged all Members to subscribe to this. 
 
The Chair stated that she would speak with the Executive Member for Environment 
and Transport to agree how the Committee could contribute to and comment on the 
refresh of the Manchester Food Board Strategy. 
 
A Member recommended that a future update report be provided that informed 
Members on the actions and initiatives undertaken by the Manchester Food Board to 
engage with local supermarkets in the most deprived wards in the city. 
 
Decisions 
 
1. The Committee note the report and the Manchester Food Board strategy and 

action plans. 
 
2. The Committee recommend that a future update report is provided that 

informs Members on the actions and initiatives undertaken by the Manchester 
Food Board to engage with local supermarkets in the most deprived wards in 
the city. 

 
HSC/22/31  Adult Weight Management Services 
 
The Committee considered the report of Director of Public Health that provided an 
update on the delivery of weight management services in the city and introduced the 
Food Active! Healthy Weight Declaration. It provided evidence of the work delivered 
by commissioned weight management service providers and wider system partners 
such as physical activity providers.  

Page 91

Item 11



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Health Scrutiny Committee 20 July 2022 

 

 
Key points and themes in the report included: 
  

• Noting that in Manchester 63% of adults (Active Lives Survey 2018) and 41% of 
children aged 10-11 years (National Child Measurement Programme (NCMP) 
2020) were overweight or obese even prior to the COVID-19 pandemic, higher 
than the national average; 

• The Population Health Team was responsible for the overall Healthy Weight 
Strategy and the commissioning of services that delivered obesity prevention in 
Adults and Children; 

• The strategy took a whole system, partnership approach to tackling obesity in the 
city and was developed across four key themes; Food & Culture, Physical Activity, 
Environment & Neighbourhoods and Support & Prevention; 

• The Strategy was launched in September 2021 following the pandemic; 

• Describing the commissioning of services at Tier Two and Tier Three; 

• Describing the role of the Project Manager who had been appointed to work 
across neighbourhoods to support the delivery of the Healthy Weight Strategy and 
embed referral pathways for weight management support; and 

• Describing the Food Active! Healthy Weight Declaration and the key pledges. 
 

Some of the key points that arose from the Committee’s discussions were: -  
 
• With reference to the discussion on the previous agenda item, it was important to 

recognise the impact of the cost of living crisis on residents and the food options 
that were available to them; 

• Whilst noting the work of Slimming World, it was important to recognise that a one 
size fits all approach was not appropriate; 

• The need to engage with, and ensure services were appropriate for the diverse 
population and communities across Manchester; 

• Consideration should be given to the use of Council owned buildings and lease 
arrangements to support community groups to support and build upon the 
activities described; 

• Appropriate consideration needed to be given to the support and interventions for 
the different types of diabetes, noting that they were distinctly different; and 

• How the impact of the services described was measured. 
 
The Director of Public Health described that despite the challenges described in 
relation to the grant funding, a range of free services had been provided for 
residents. The Commissioning Manager advised that Slimming World was an 
example of the offer provided and quality assurance monitoring of this service was 
undertaken. He described that the Slimming World offer was part of a wider suite of 
services designed to support people, making reference to the work of the Parks 
Team, local neighbourhood activities and Manchester Active. 
 
Catherine Hollingsworth, Partnership Account Manager, Slimming World provided an 
overview of the service offered by Slimming World, noting that this would be tailored 
to the individual needs of the person as it was recognised that a ‘one size fits all’ 
approach was not appropriate. She described that the programme encouraged and 
supported a person to develop a healthy and positive relationship to food.  
 

Page 92

Item 11



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Health Scrutiny Committee 20 July 2022 

 

The Director of Public Health advised that the need to deliver appropriate, inclusive 
services, delivered in a safe environment was understood and taken into 
consideration, noting that culturally appropriate and tailored interventions had been 
delivered and the success and learning from these would be built upon to maximise 
their reach across all communities. A Member requested that any future update 
report should include information relating to the quality assurance and monitoring of 
those commissioned services that delivered obesity prevention in neighbourhoods. 
   
Decisions 
 
1.  The Committee note the report and support the Food Active! Healthy Weight 
 Declaration. 
 
2.  Recommend that any future update report should include information relating 
 to the quality assurance and monitoring of those commissioned services that 
 delivered obesity prevention in neighbourhoods. 
 
HSC/22/32 Integrated Care Systems 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Executive Member for Healthy 
Manchester and Adult Social Care that provided an update on the UK Government’s 
reforms to health and social care to establish Integrated Care Systems, including at 
the level of Greater Manchester.   
 
Key points and themes in the report included: 
  

• Integrated Care Systems (ICS) were being established nationally as part of the 
next phase of health and social care integration; 

• The national aims for ICS, noting that ICS included a strong focus on place-based 
partnership working; 

• From 1 July 2022, Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs) would be 
disestablished across England, and ICSs would be established in line with 
legislation set out in the Health and Care Act 2022; 

• In Manchester, the statutory responsibilities of NHS Manchester CCG would 
transfer to Greater Manchester Integrated Care (NHS GM) alongside those of the 
other nine Greater Manchester (GM) CCGs; 

• The Manchester Partnership Board would lead the development of Manchester’s 
future operating model for health and social care integration; 

• Joanne Roney OBE had been appointed by NHS GM as the Place-Based Lead 
for Manchester, in addition to her role as Chief Executive of Manchester City 
Council; and 

• Next steps, noting that Manchester and the other nine GM localities were 
developing their own place-specific locality models. 
 

Some of the key points that arose from the Committee’s discussions were: -  
 
• Were the Board and related structures within the organisation reflecting the 

diversity of the city; 
• Were local health professionals supportive of the new arrangements; 
• What influence would the new structural arrangement have at a national level; 

Page 93

Item 11



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Health Scrutiny Committee 20 July 2022 

 

• A visual representation of the new structure should be provided; 

• Had staff been supported during the transition to the new arrangements; 

• An assurance was sought that the issue of safeguarding remained; and 
• What examples could be provided to articulate the benefits of the new 

arrangements for Manchester residents. 
 
Sir Richard Leese, Chair, Greater Manchester Integrated Care stated that the 
organisation did reflect the diversity of the city. He advised that the Integrated Care 
Systems would have a mechanism to feed directly into Government and meetings 
with Ministers would also be convened.  Mark Fisher CBE, Chief Executive 
Designate, Greater Manchester Integrated Care stated that the Greater Manchester 
Integrated Care Systems was the second largest in the country, that gave it the 
responsibility and authority to articulate the needs and ask of Greater Manchester. 
 
Sir Richard Leese, Chair, Greater Manchester Integrated Care stated that in 
Manchester health professionals were supportive of the new arrangements, adding 
that this had been achieved as a result of the existing strong relationships that had 
been developed over the previous years through the devolution process. In response 
to the issue raised regarding safeguarding he commented that the existing 
arrangements would remain. 
 
Sir Richard Leese, Chair, Greater Manchester Integrated Care provided examples of 
the benefits that would be realised as a result of the new arrangements. He 
described that this would enable providers to work collaboratively across Greater 
Manchester to address strains on the system, using all resources and capacity 
efficiently and effectively. It provided the opportunity to manage the health system as 
a whole and the Integrated Neighbourhood working model that had been initiated in 
Manchester to great success could be rolled out and implemented across Greater 
Manchester. 
 
Mark Fisher CBE, Chief Executive Designate, Greater Manchester Integrated Care 
stated that the new arrangements had come into effect from 1 July 2022 and he was 
satisfied that staff and teams were fully informed of the new arrangements and the 
transition had been successful, with all functions operating. He said that this had 
been achieved through rigorous planning and communications with all staff. He 
further commented that a diagram that visually described the new organisation could 
be circulated to the Committee for information following the meeting. 
 
The Chair stated that any future update report should include how success was to be 
measured, including Key Performance Indicators, and particularly the work to 
address health inequalities. The Chair noted that the Committee would be 
considering health inequalities at the Marmot themed October meeting and asked 
that officers include information in the reports to be considered at that meeting that 
considered how the Greater Manchester Integrated Care arrangements contributed 
to this important area of work.  
 
The Chair further noted that when this item was to be considered again an invitation 
would be sent to Joanne Roney Chief Executive of Manchester City Council  
who had been appointed by NHS GM as the Place-Based Lead for Manchester.  
 

Page 94

Item 11



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Health Scrutiny Committee 20 July 2022 

 

Decision 
 
To note the report. 
 
HSC/22/33  Overview Report 
 
The report of the Governance and Scrutiny Support Unit which contained key 
decisions within the Committee’s remit and responses to previous recommendations 
was submitted for comment. Members were also invited to agree the Committee’s 
future work programme.  
 
A Member commented that consideration should be given to scheduling the item 
listed as ‘Health Inequalities and Older People’. The Chair stated that she would 
consider this. 
 
In response to a question regarding a vaccination for monkeypox the Director of 
Public Health stated that information on this would be provided in the next update. He 
further advised that negotiations were ongoing as to the future of the community 
vaccination facility in Wythenshawe and an update on this would be provided when 
available.   
 
A Member of the Committee described his recent positive experience of accessing 
the Virtual Covid Ward following testing positive for Covid. He stated that access had 
been predicated on testing and registering his results. Noting that that the provision 
of free testing had been removed he reiterated the call, made previously by the 
Committee for the immediate reintroduction of free Covid tests.  
 
The Chair welcomed the updates that had been provided to the Committee’s 
previous recommendations. 
 
Decision 
 
The Committee notes the report and agrees the work programme. 
 

Page 95

Item 11



 

Page 96

Item 11



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Health Scrutiny Committee  7 September 2022 

Health Scrutiny Committee 
 

Minutes of the meeting held on Wednesday, 7 September 2022 
 
 
Present:  
Councillor Green (Chair) – in the Chair 
Councillors Bayunu, Curley, Karney, Reeves, Riasat, Richards and Russell 
 
Apologies: Councillors Nasrin Ali, Appleby, McHale and Newman 
 
Also present:  
Councillor T. Robinson, Executive Member for Healthy Manchester and Adult Social 
Care 
Councillor Collins, Deputy Executive Member for Healthy Manchester and Adult 
Social Care 
Councillor Doswell, Trauma Informed Lead Member 
Adam Young, Associate Director of Operations, Greater Manchester Mental Health 
NHS Foundation Trust 
Nishan Bhandary, Associate Medical Director, Greater Manchester Mental Health 
NHS Foundation Trust 
Dr Lucie Donlan, GP partner, West Gorton Medical Centre 
Juanita Margerison, Director, The Resonance Centre   
 
HSC/22/89 Minutes  
 
Decision 

  
To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 20 July 2022 as a correct record. 
 
HSC/22/90 Greater Manchester Mental Health - Manchester Services 

Summary Report  
 
The Committee considered the report of the Associate Director of Operations, 
Greater Manchester Mental Health, NHS Foundation Trust that provided a summary 
of the services provided by Greater Manchester Mental Health and provided an 
overview of the activity across the footprint in Manchester.    
  
Key points and themes in the report included: 
  

•         An overview of Mental Health Crisis Services; 

•         An overview of Community Services, including the actions taken from a recent 
CQC inspection and regulation 29a notice within two Community Mental Health 
Teams. 

•         Inpatient Service provision; and 

•         An update on the Healthier Patient Pathways Programme. 
  

Some of the key points that arose from the Committee’s discussions were: -  
  

Page 97

Item 11



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Health Scrutiny Committee  7 September 2022 

•         What work was being done with Greater Manchester Police (GMP) to support 
people who were experiencing a mental health crisis; 

•         Was the 24/7 Helpline monitored and what was done to ensure any missed calls 
were responded to; 

•         Was the Helpline available for family and carers to access; 

•         What support was offered to families and carers of residents experiencing mental 
health issues; 

•         Noting that the building was to commence at South Manchester, Wythenshawe 
Hospital Site to support replication of the North Manchester General Hospital 
(NMGH) site Mental Health urgent care area with completion expected December 
2022; 

•         Would there be a bespoke ‘Green Room’ at the Wythenshawe site, similar to that 
at North Manchester General Hospital; 

•         Calling for an appropriate urgent care “Green Room” to be initiated at the 
Manchester Royal Infirmary site as a priority; 

•         Where would Wythenshawe residents experiencing a mental health episode 
currently receive treatment, adding that transferring patients to North Manchester 
General Hospital was not appropriate for patients and their families; 

•         What quality assurance measures were undertaken of those Voluntary 
Community and Social Enterprise (VCSE) groups working in community settings;   

•         What was being done in regard to staff recruitment and retention; 

•         What was being done to address barriers arising across services in relation to 
data sharing; and 

•         Who were responsible for arranging who accessed the crisis beds for 
Manchester residents. 
  

In response the Associate Director of Operations, Greater Manchester Mental Health 
NHS Foundation Trust advised that the Trust remained committed to working with 
GMP to offer the most appropriate response to an individual in crisis. He stated that a 
pilot scheme with staff seconded to support GMP was currently underway over the 
winter period and this pilot would be evaluated in March 2023. He advised that this 
approach was a demonstrable commitment to delivering the Long Term NHS Plan. 
He stated that in addition to this pilot regular meetings were convened with GMP and 
there were mechanisms established for escalating issues. 
  
The Associate Director of Operations, Greater Manchester Mental Health NHS 
Foundation Trust stated that, contrary to national figures, Manchester had witnessed 
a reduction in the numbers of people attending A&E when experiencing a mental 
health crisis. He advised that Wythenshawe patients would be treated at 
Wythenshawe Hospital as they had an inpatient facility, however on the occasions 
beds were full they would be transferred to NMGH. He advised that at the time of 
addressing the Committee there were no patients outside of their locality. The 
Associate Medical Director, Greater Manchester Mental Health NHS Foundation 
Trust added that this situation was reviewed on a daily basis and every effort was 
made to relocate a patient closer to their home address when it was appropriate to do 
so. He added that partners worked closely across all systems to improve the patient 
experience and reduce system created barriers. 
  

Page 98

Item 11



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Health Scrutiny Committee  7 September 2022 

The Associate Director of Operations, Greater Manchester Mental Health NHS 
Foundation Trust stated that the Helpline answer machine was routinely monitored. 
He added that the Helpline had been audited by the NHS and the Trust had received 
very positive feedback on this provision. He stated that friends and carers could also 
use the Helpline and if appropriate people would be signposted to other sources of 
appropriate support and advice. He noted the comment regarding additional support 
for families and carers and added that it was recognised that more needed to be 
done in regard to this. He noted the issues experienced by some Members in relation 
to the Helpline and commented that if they contacted him outside of the meeting he 
would look into the specific cases.  
  
The Associate Director of Operations, Greater Manchester Mental Health NHS 
Foundation Trust advised that the monitoring of VCSE groups in communities was 
achieved through the standard contract management arrangements, and these were 
complemented by visits and regular meetings with providers. 
  
The Associate Director of Operations, Greater Manchester Mental Health NHS 
Foundation Trust commented that the issue of staff recruitment and retention was a 
national issue, however work was ongoing with their Human Resources department 
and a working group had been established to address this. In addition, work was 
underway with Health Education England to encourage students and existing health 
professionals to consider alternative roles in the health service. He further referred to 
the recent Staff Survey that had improved significantly since previously reported to 
the Committee, and the intention was to build upon this to support staff retention. The 
Associate Medical Director, Greater Manchester Mental Health NHS Foundation 
Trust stated that five Consultants had recently been recruited and there were a range 
of initiatives to support retention of staff.  
  
The Associate Director of Operations, Greater Manchester Mental Health NHS 
Foundation Trust informed the Members that the Home Based Treatment Teams 
would make referrals to the crisis beds. He stated that the Home Based Treatment 
Teams were important as they prevented hospital admissions and supported people 
to leave acute settings in a managed way with the appropriate planning and support. 
He advised that people could self refer to the Crisis Cafes, noting that there was one 
in Harpurhey and another in the city centre, adding that these were staffed by VCSE 
groups and a Mental Health Practitioner. 
  
In response to a question regarding managing demand he reiterated that delivery of 
both the NHS Long Term Plan and Living Well models of care across all GMMH 
localities was key to managing demand. He further advised that a business case had 
been prepared to support the Primary Care Network, again adding that this 
partnership approach was key to managing demand. In response to comments from 
the Chair he stated that Trauma Informed Practice was embedded in the Living Well 
models of care and was also included in staff training. 
  
The Executive Member for Healthy Manchester and Adult Social Care noted that the 
report and answers provided had been honest and open and had contributed to a 
constructive conversation with the Committee. He made reference to the point raised 
by the need for a partnership approach and made reference to the support offered by 
Manchester City Council following the CQC inspection. 

Page 99

Item 11



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Health Scrutiny Committee  7 September 2022 

  
The Committee requested that, following the meeting, information be circulated that 
described the referral system to Crisis Cafes and analysis by ward and ethnicity of 
those accessing the service; information in relation to the cultural diversity training 
provided to the Home Based Treatment Teams;  that the Community Mental Health 
Team resilience plan agreed in September 2022 in response to the CQC inspection 
be shared; the terms of reference for the Clinical Risk Assessment workshop and any 
outcomes be shared; the terms of reference of the task and finish group that had 
been established to progress further areas identified for improvement in telephony 
systems and processes within Manchester be shared, and information on the 
recruitment and role of admiral nurses be provided. 
  
Decisions 

  
1.            The Committee support the call for an appropriate urgent care “Green Room” to 

be initiated at the Manchester Royal Infirmary site as a priority. 
  

2.            The Committee recommend that the additional supplementary information 
requested at the meeting is provided to the Scrutiny Support Officer so this 
can be circulated to all Members of the Committee. 

 
HSC/22/91 Adverse Childhood Experiences and Trauma Informed Practice  
 
The Committee considered the report of the Director of Public Health that updated 
the Members to the report considered at the meeting of the Committee on 21 July 
2021 on Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACEs) and Trauma Informed Practice. The 
report covered the wide range of activities to deliver the stated ambition of 
Manchester being an ACE aware, trauma informed and trauma responsive City.  
  
Key points and themes in the report included: 
  

•         Providing an introduction and background; 

•         An update on progress and initiatives across a range of settings; 

•         Case studies; 

•         Responses to the strategy consultation; and  

•         Next steps. 
  

Some of the key points that arose from the Committee’s discussions were: -  
  

•         Welcoming the progress reported, noting the importance and value of Trauma 
Informed Practice; 

•         Noting that the report was very accessible and well presented; 

•         What more could the Council do to support this programme; 

•         Those Members who had undertaken the training spoke positively of their 
experience and the benefits realised as a result; 

•         How could Members support the establishment of Community Hubs in their 
respective wards; 

•         The need to represent the diversity of all Manchester residents in the strategy 
refresh consultation; especially BAME communities; 

Page 100

Item 11



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Health Scrutiny Committee  7 September 2022 

•         The Children and Young People Scrutiny Commmittee should consider an item 
on Adverse Childhood Experiences & Trauma Informed Practice and Education; 

•         All Councillors should undertake the ACE Training; 

•         How would progress and outcomes of the programme be measured and 
reported; 

•         Training should be delivered as widely as possible; and 

•         A break down by ward and ethnicity of the training delivered to date was 
requested. 
  

The Programme Lead responded by saying that Members could support the 
programme by keeping this subject on their agenda, keep talking about the 
programme and continue the conversations on the subject. He advised that they 
were keen to increase the number of Community Hubs and would pick up the offer of 
support from the Member outside of the meeting, adding that the intention was to 
have one in each neighbourhood. In terms of groups to be included in the 
consultation exercise again he would speak with the Member outside of the meeting. 
  
The Programme Lead advised that they did engage with the Healthy Schools 
Programme and this activity was regularly reported to the Children and Young People 
Scrutiny Committee. He commented that the programme had been well received in 
Primary Schools settings; however, he acknowledged the challenges and pressures 
experienced in Secondary School settings. 
  
In terms of measuring the impact of the work, both quantitative and qualitative, the 
Programme Lead advised that resource has been acquired from the City Council 
research team to support this and an outcomes framework was being developed. He 
added that Liverpool John Moores University were also assisting with the agreeing of 
the metrics for this purpose. The Director of Public Health added that outcomes 
would also be captured in the Build Back Fairer reports that were considered by the 
Committee. 
  
The Committee then heard from Dr Lucie Donlan, GP partner, West Gorton Medical 
Centre and Juanita Margerison, Director, the Resonance Centre who both spoke of 
how they used Trauma Informed Practice in their respective settings and the many 
benefits that this achieved for residents. 
  
The Committee then heard from Councillor Doswell, Trauma Informed Lead Member 
who described her personal experience of ACE and the importance of Trauma 
Informed Practice. She described the actions she had taken since being recently 
appointed as Lead Member, including attending workshops and reading extensively 
on this subject area. She stated that she would be calling for all Council Youth and 
Play commissioned services to be trained in Adverse Childhood Experiences & 
Trauma Informed Practice, all Neighbourhood Teams staff to be fully trained and she 
supported the call for all Councillors to be fully trained. She concluded by paying 
tribute to all staff working on this important programme.  
  
The Executive Member for Healthy Manchester and Adult Social Care supported the 
call for all Councillors to undertake the Adverse Childhood Experiences & Trauma 
Informed Practice training. He further thanked the Committee for championing this 
programme.  

Page 101

Item 11



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Health Scrutiny Committee  7 September 2022 

  
Decision 

  
Recommend that the Adverse Childhood Experiences & Trauma Informed Practice 
training is mandatory for all Councillors. 
 
HSC/22/92 Better Outcomes, Better Lives  
 
The Committee considered the report of the Executive Director of Adult Social 
Services that provided an update on progress and the impact of the programme since 
November 2021, when the Committee last had an update.   
  
Key points and themes in the report included: 
  

•         Providing an introduction and background to the programme; 

•         Examples of the impact of this programme, including feedback from people it was 
working with and staff; 

•         Noting that the impact of the work delivered had been shortlisted for an LCG 
award in recognition of the innovation in health and social care; 

•         How the independence of our people through improving the social work practice 
was being achieved, including case studies; 

•         Information on Community Practice, the weekly meetings that provided space for 
front line teams to come together, learn and reflect on their experiences of 
working in a strengths-based way; 

•         Describing the My VIEWS engagement tool to support front line staff; 

•         Information in relation to Strengths Based, Focused Reviews, designed to 
support review conversations to focus on independence and choice; 

•         The approach to improving our short-term offer; 

•         Better use of Technology Enabled Care; 

•         Improvements to reablement; 

•         An update on the testing of small scale pilots; 

•         Improving how and what was commissioned, including how the Commissioning 
Plan would set out how the approach to commissioning would support integration 
between health and social care services in the coming year; 

•         The approach to improving the use of data, noting this was a priority in Better 
Outcomes, Better Lives and this supports the understanding of the impact both in 
terms of the programme and as a service; 

•         Early help; 

•         Information on the Equality Impact Assessment of the programme; and 

•         Conclusions.  
  

Some of the key points that arose from the Committee’s discussions were: -  
  

•         An update on the Adaptations service was requested; 

•         Would there be specific commissioned services for autistic women; 

•         Any future update report should include the voice of the Citizen Commissioning 
Committee, with representatives invited to contribute to the meeting; 

•         Welcoming the approach to commissioning; 

Page 102

Item 11



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Health Scrutiny Committee  7 September 2022 

•         Welcoming the front line workers who had attended the meeting to provide 
examples of this work in practice; and 

•         What work was being done to support front line workers in the context of the Cost 
of Living Crisis. 

  
The Committee then heard from front line staff who had been invited to speak of their 
experience of delivering services and the methods of working using this improved 
delivery model. They spoke of the benefits and improved outcomes for residents and 
the satisfaction from a professional perspective. The Committee welcomed the voice 
of the practitioner at the meeting. 
  
The Executive Director of Adult Social Services opened her response by placing on 
record her continued appreciation to all her staff delivering services on behalf of 
Manchester residents. She stated that despite the challenges presented by COVID, 
the adult social care transformation programme had been launched successfully and 
that had resulted in improved outcomes for residents and better working practices for 
staff, making further reference to the shortlisting for an LCG award and the positive 
feedback from the staff satisfaction survey.  
  
The Executive Director of Adult Social Services commented that the adaptions 
service had experienced challenges as a result of COVID and the recruitment of 
Occupational Therapists; however, work was underway to address these and she 
proposed an update report to that which was considered at the 22 June 2022 
meeting be provided to the Committee for consideration at an appropriate time.  
  
The Executive Director of Adult Social Services acknowledged the concerns 
expressed by the Committee regarding the impact of the Cost of Living Crisis on front 
line workers. She stated Management Teams were discussing this and how this 
could be mitigated, supplemented by regular supervision and communication with all 
staff.  
  
The Head of Commissioning advised the Committee that the Autism service would be 
an inclusive service and the business case that had been used to secure the funding 
for this would be circulated for information. 
  
The Executive Member for Healthy Manchester and Adult Social Care reiterated the 
importance of the staff delivering Adult Social Care and paid tribute to the positive 
relationships and culture that had been developed by the Executive Director of Adult 
Social Services within the Directorate. He further highlighted the positive impact the 
programme was achieving for Manchester residents, with particular reference to 
sections 3.1, 4.1, 5.7 and 6.3 of the report. 
  
Decision 

  
To note the report. 
 
HSC/22/93 Overview Report  
 
The report of the Governance and Scrutiny Support Unit which contained key 
decisions within the Committee’s remit and responses to previous recommendations 

Page 103

Item 11



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Health Scrutiny Committee  7 September 2022 

was submitted for comment. Members were also invited to agree the Committee’s 
future work programme.  
  
Decision 

  
The Committee notes the report and agrees the work programme. 
 
 
 

Page 104

Item 11



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee 20 July 2022 

Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee  
 

Minutes of the meeting held on 20 July 2022 
 
Present: 
Councillor Reid – in the Chair 
Councillors Cooley, Gartside, Lovecy and Sadler 
 
Co-opted Voting Members: 
Mr G Cleworth, Parent Governor Representative 
  
Co-opted Non-Voting Members: 
Miss S Iltaf, Secondary Sector Teacher Representative 
 
Also present: 
Councillor Bridges, Executive Member for Early Years, Children and Young People 
Al Ford, Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services (CAMHS) 
Michael Devine, Manchester Integrated Care Partnership 
Vicky Smith, Manchester Integrated Care Partnership 
 
Apologies: 
Councillor Alijah, Amin, Bano, Hewitson, Johnson and Judge  
Dr W Omara, Parent Governor Representative 
Ms L Smith, Primary Sector Teacher Representative 
 
CYP/22/33  Minutes 
 
Decision 
 
To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 22 June 2022. 
 
CYP/22/34 Re-establishment of the Ofsted Subgroup 
 
The Committee received a report of the Governance and Scrutiny Support Unit which 
provided Members with the terms of reference and current work programme for the 
Ofsted Subgroup. The Committee was asked to re-establish the Ofsted Subgroup for 
the municipal year 2022 - 2023 and agree the terms of reference, work programme 
and membership of the Subgroup. 
 
Decisions 
 
1. To re-establish the Ofsted Subgroup for the 2022 - 2023 municipal year and 

agree the terms of reference and work programme. 
 

2. That Councillor Lovecy be appointed as Chair of the Ofsted Subgroup and that 
Councillors Gartside, Reid and Sadler and Miss Iltaf be appointed to the 
Subgroup. 

 
 
 

Page 105

Item 11



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee 20 July 2022 

 
 
CYP/22/35   Our Year 
 
The Committee received a report and presentation of the Strategic Director (Children 
and Education Services) which provided an overview of the activities and work 
against the six themes of Our Year and outlined the next steps. 
 
The main points and themes within the presentation included: 
 

• Highlights since the launch of Our Year, outlining activities in relation to the six 
main themes, which had been based on feedback from children and young 
people, specifically:  

o Equal and included 
o Play and activity 
o Climate 
o Health and wellbeing 
o Connected 
o Safe and secure 

• Pledges from the Council, businesses and partner organisations; 

• Activity planned for the rest of the year; and 

• The journey towards becoming a UNICEF UK Child Friendly City. 
 

Some of the key points and themes that arose from the Committee’s discussions 
were: 
 

• To welcome the work taking place, in particular that this was being done with 
young people, listening to their voices; 

• What would be put in place to ensure that, once UNICEF UK Child Friendly 
City was achieved, the work would continue to progress and children and 
young people’s voices would continue to be heard; and 

• What was being done to reach the young people, and the areas of the city, 
that had not yet been reached by this work. 

 
The Executive Member for Early Years, Children and Young People advised that the 
programme of work to become a UNICEF UK Child Friendly City was likely to take 
three or four years and he agreed that this work needed to be embedded 
permanently and referenced the way that structures had been put in place to embed 
an Age Friendly approach.   He suggested that more information on this be included 
next time the Committee received an update on Our Year.  The Year of the Child 
Coordinator explained that part of the application process was consideration of the 
governance arrangements and how this work would be progressed. 
 
In response to a Member’s question, the Executive Member informed the Committee 
about the climate change summit which had taken place in June, recognised the 
importance that young people placed on tackling climate change and emphasised the 
Council’s commitment to acting on this.  He advised that more information on this 
would be included in the next report on Our Year.  The Director of Education 
described some of the positive feedback from the summit and advised that there was 
a lot to build on and that this would be an ongoing piece of work beyond 2022.   

Page 106

Item 11



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee 20 July 2022 

 
In response to a question from the Chair, the Director of Education advised that the 
music activities provided by One Education which were included in the presentation 
were not funded by the Council.  She reported that One Education had been running 
these activities for some time with a small charge to the children who attended but, 
as part of Our Year, had decided to remove the charge. 
 
The Director of Education outlined the work to reach as many children and young 
people as possible, engaging with different groups and contacts, including those for 
children and young people with Special Educational Needs and Disability (SEND), 
Young Carers, Looked After Children and Care Leavers.  The Year of the Child 
Coordinator explained how more young people were being reached through 
commissioned youth and play providers.  The Chair emphasised the importance of 
commissioning outreach work through the new area panels. 
 
In response to a question from the Chair about Our Year funding, the Executive 
Member advised that there was a limited amount of funding available to help support 
events but that the Council could assist in other ways, for example, with venues.  The 
Chair commented on the importance of utilising social value.  She also welcomed the 
inclusion of Baby Week in the programme of events and suggested that this was 
something which could be continued.  
 
Decision 
 
That the Committee will monitor the progress and legacy of Our Year. 
 
CYP/22/36   The impact of COVID-19 on children and young people’s mental 
health and well-being 
 
The Committee received a report of Al Ford, the Director of Child and Adolescent 
Mental Health Services (CAMHS) which explored the impact of COVID-19 on 
children and young people’s mental health and well-being. 
 
The main points and themes within the report included: 
 

• The impact of the pandemic and lockdown on children and young people’s 
mental health; 

• Manchester CAMHS waiting time and demand; and 

• CAMHS response under the COVID-19 pandemic. 
 
Some of the key points and themes that arose from the Committee’s discussions 
were: 
 

• To recognise the way that CAMHS had adapted and provided services 
differently during the pandemic and to thank them for their work; 

• Concern about outcomes for young people who were referred to CAMHS but 
told that they did not meet the threshold; 

• How the M-Thrive Hubs were developing; 

• The roll-out of Manchester Thrive in Education (Mental Health Support Teams 
in schools); and 

Page 107

Item 11



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee 20 July 2022 

• Variations in referral levels across different parts of the city. 
 
Al Ford reported that the clinical threshold for CAMHS was defined nationally and 
that the service responded based on clinical priority, with the most unwell children 
seen first.  He advised Members that one of the reasons for mobilising the M-Thrive 
offer was for the children and young people who did not meet the clinical threshold, 
who could then be directed to the M-Thrive Hubs, which could identify the right 
service to meet the needs of the child or young person.  He explained that the first 
Hub had been established in north Manchester, with two further Hubs opening this 
year.  Therefore, he advised, the greatest impact so far had been in the north of the 
city, where the model had had time to mature.  This, he reported, included fewer 
inappropriate referrals to CAMHS, which meant that children and young people were 
being referred to a service which was appropriate for their needs in a more timely 
fashion.  He informed Members that this would be monitored and evaluated as the M 
Thrive model embedded.  He outlined the work taking place to roll out Manchester 
Thrive in Schools, advising that it was hoped that this would be expanded in the 
autumn term and reach more schools but that his service did not have control over 
the rate of coverage and which schools were involved.  He advised that this was not 
intended to replace any existing provision individual schools might have, such as 
school counsellors.   
 
In response to requests for data about the ethnicity and geographical spread of 
CAMHS referrals, Al Ford informed Members that he would provide this information 
at a later date.  He outlined how the service was trying to move from a westernised 
clinical model to a needs-based model and how Equality Diversity and Inclusion were 
incorporated into the service, including making the workforce more diverse and 
providing opportunities for progression.  He recognised comments from the Chair that 
there had been some benefits for autistic young people when lockdown was first 
introduced; however, he reported that the emotional health of this cohort had 
subsequently declined and outlined how the service had responded to this.  In 
response to a Member’s question, he advised that the service was aware of the 
impact of working during the pandemic on staff and outlined the programmes 
introduced to support staff welfare.  In response to a question from the Chair, he 
reported that the service was seeing more asylum-seeking children and young 
people, including those who were fleeing wars across the world.  In response to a 
question from the Chair, he outlined the funding arrangements for his service, 
advising that there was now increased investment in children and young people’s 
mental health and the challenge was in putting in place a sustainable workforce. 
 
Members discussed receiving a further report on CAMHS or children’s mental health 
at a future meeting.   
 
Decisions 
 
1. To request data on the ethnicity and geographical spread of CAMHS referrals, 

in order to be able to identify any gaps. 
 
2. That the Committee will continue to monitor children and young people’s 

mental health services. 
 

Page 108

Item 11



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee 20 July 2022 

[Councillor Reid declared a personal interest as a Governor of Manchester Central 
Foundation NHS Trust.] 
 
CYP/22/37 Review of Home to School Travel Support 
 
The Committee received a report of the Director of Education and the Head of 
Access and Sufficiency which set out the proposal for two home to school travel 
support policies, one for children with an Education, Health and Care Plan (EHCP) 
who were between the ages of 5 and 16 and one for young people with an EHCP 
who were between the ages of 16 and 25.  The Committee was invited to comment 
on the report prior to its submission to the Executive on 22 July 2022. 
 
The main points and themes within the report included: 
 

• Background information; 

• Main issues; 

• Details of the proposed policies; and 

• Wider service improvement. 
 
The Chair highlighted the review of school buses which was currently taking place.  
She outlined how she had been made aware that there was not an equitable system 
in place for the provision of school buses across the Greater Manchester area and 
had raised this with relevant stakeholders.  She reported that she was working with 
the Chair of the Environment and Climate Change Scrutiny Committee on how the 
two Committees could address this issue and that the Committee would receive a 
report on this at a future meeting.  She informed Members that, although the report  
the Committee was considering at today’s meeting related specifically to children with 
an EHCP, some children with Special Educational Needs and Disability (SEND) who 
were not able to use public transport might be able to travel to school using a school 
bus if that was available.   
 
In response to a Member’s question, the Head of Access and Sufficiency confirmed 
that if a Looked After Child was entitled to Home to School Transport this would 
automatically continue if they were moved to a new foster care placement.  She 
confirmed that the policy applied to children in both mainstream and special schools 
who had an EHCP.  In response to a question from the Chair, she confirmed that the 
transport provision would continue up to the age of 25, as long as the young person 
was still accessing education.  The Chair highlighted the increasing focus on 
promoting independence for young people with SEND, including teaching them how 
to use public transport independently.  The Executive Member for Early Years, 
Children and Young People highlighted that funded driving lessons were included in 
the policy as another way to promote independence. 
 
The Chair highlighted the issues facing homeless families who had been placed 
outside of the city, further away from their child’s school.  The Director of Education 
reported that Home to School Transport arrangements for a child with an EHCP 
would continue if they were placed in accommodation outside of the city.  She 
advised that, if the child did not have an EHCP, they would be entitled to a free 
school travel pass but acknowledged that it could be difficult for families who were 
housed some distance from their child’s school. 

Page 109

Item 11



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee 20 July 2022 

 
In response to a Member’s question, the Head of Access and Sufficiency outlined 
how parents and young people were being consulted on the development of these 
policies. 
 
Decision 
 
To endorse the recommendations to the Executive that: 
 
The Executive is recommended to: - 
 
(1) Consider the recommendations of the Children and Young People Scrutiny 

Committee. 
 

(2) Agree in principle the following documents appended to this report, and to 
authorise the Director of Education to consult on the proposed implementation 
of them: 
a) Home to School Travel support policy for 5–16-year-olds 
b) Home to School Travel support policy for post 16 
c) Home to School Travel support summary document 

 
(3) Authorise the Director of Education to consider any responses received to the 

consultation and to agree to the implementation of the proposed policies 
appended to this report if she considers it appropriate to do so. 
 

(4) Consider the work to date on the wider service improvement programme and 
agree to progress the identified areas of improvement. 

 
CYP/22/38 Overview Report 
 
A report of the Governance and Scrutiny Support Unit was submitted. The overview 
report contained key decisions within the Committee’s remit, responses to previous 
recommendations and the Committee’s work programme, which the Committee was 
asked to approve. 
 
A Member proposed that the Committee receive a report on Fetal Alcohol Syndrome.  
The Chair suggested that this could form part of a wider report and that she would 
discuss outside of the meeting how this should be scrutinised. 
 
Decision 

 
To note the report and agree the work programme, subject to the above comments. 
 
 

Page 110

Item 11



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee 7 September 2022 

Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee  
 

Minutes of the meeting held on 7 September 2022 
 
Present: 
Councillor Reid – in the Chair 
Councillors Amin, Bano, Gartside, Hewitson, Lovecy and Sadler 
 
Co-opted Voting Members: 
Mr G Cleworth, Parent Governor Representative 
  
Co-opted Non-Voting Members: 
Miss S Iltaf, Secondary Sector Teacher Representative 
Ms L Smith, Primary Sector Teacher Representative 
 
Also present: 
Councillor Bridges, Executive Member for Early Years, Children and Young People 
 
Apologies: 
Councillors Abdullatif, Alijah, Cooley, Johnson and Judge  
 
CYP/22/39  Minutes 
 
Decisions 
 
1. To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 20 July 

2022. 
 

2. To receive the minutes of the meeting of the Ofsted Subgroup held on 27 July 
2022. 

 
CYP/22/40    Manchester Our Children Sufficiency Strategy 
 
The Committee received a report of the Strategic Director of Children and Education 
Services which provided the progress of the implementation of the 2020 – 22 Our 
Children Sufficiency Strategy and shared the new 2022 – 27 Our Children Sufficiency 
Strategy. It stated that the aim of the 2022 – 27 Strategy would be to continue to 
embed the developed practice, sustaining and progressing the partnership approach 
to deliver innovate models of accommodation. 
 
The main points and themes within the report included: 
 

• Background information; 

• Main issues; and 

• Looking to the future. 
 
Some of the key points and themes that arose from the Committee’s discussions 
were: 
 

Page 111

Item 11



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee 7 September 2022 

• To welcome the innovative work taking place; 

• The not-for-profit sector; 

• The Mockingbird model; and 

• That the Council had closed a number of its in-house children’s homes and 
would it need to establish any more. 

 
The Strategic Commissioning Lead reported that in-house foster carers delivered a 
significant proportion of the provision but that the Council also worked with other 
providers, including profit and not-for-profit organisations and charitable 
organisations.  She informed Members about work taking place to develop different 
models, in particular for the post-16 offer, including Staying Close and the House 
Project, which were enabling young people to move into housing before they were 
18, which was taking pressure of the commissioned resource.  She advised that 
decisions on placements were based on the assessed needs of the young person but 
making the right decisions first time also led to efficiencies.  The Strategic Director of 
Children and Education Services described how the service developed relationships 
with providers to ensure that they had confidence in each other which meant that 
they were more likely to provide the range and choice to meet the different needs of 
individual children and young people and prevent them from moving from placement 
to placement. 
 
The Strategic Commissioning Lead explained that the Mockingbird model involved a 
cluster group of foster carers supporting each other with an experienced foster carer, 
who might not have a child placed with them at the time, as a hub home carer, at the 
centre.  In response to a question from the Chair about the Take a Breath model, she 
advised that this was for young people who should not be in secure accommodation 
but who could not currently be found suitable placements in the community because 
of the level of their needs so models needed to be developed with health partners.  
The Strategic Director of Children and Education Services advised that this related to 
young people who did not need to be in hospital but needed a bespoke specialist 
provision for a presenting need and that, if the correct provision was not put in place, 
it could lead to a cycle of re-admissions.  He advised that a Key Decision would need 
to be taken in relation to this at a future date and the Committee might receive a 
further report at that stage. 
 
In relation to the previous decision to close a number of the city’s in-house children’s 
homes, the Strategic Director of Children and Education Services advised that this 
represented a shift towards focusing on children’s needs rather than seeing 
children’s homes as the default option.  He advised that family-based care was 
usually best for children.  He reported that the number of Looked After Children in 
Manchester was not increasing but the complexity of need was and that it was more 
bespoke and specialist provision that was needed, rather than more children’s 
homes.   
 
In response to a question from the Chair, the Strategic Commissioning Lead reported 
that Ghyll Head was used for short breaks and that the Council was also looking for 
other locations which could be used. 
 
 
 

Page 112

Item 11



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee 7 September 2022 

Decision 
 
To note the report. 
 
CYP/22/41    School Attendance in Manchester 
 
The Committee received a report and presentation of the Director of Education which 
reviewed school attendance in Manchester in 2021/2022 and summarised 
Manchester’s strategic approach to improve school attendance in 2022/23. 
 
The main points and themes within the presentation included: 
 

• The importance of school attendance; 

• The current climate in Manchester in 2021/2022; 

• National policy context and new guidance; 

• Local context; 

• Strategic approach; and 

• Next steps. 
 

Some of the key points and themes that arose from the Committee’s discussions 
were: 
 

• To welcome the positive attendance data; 

• Variation in absence levels across different wards and whether the data was 
also broken down by age and different communities; 

• Children with anxiety about attending school; 

• Families where absence was part of a wider picture of family problems which 
needed to be addressed; 

• Whether additional funding was available to tackle persistent absence; 

• The cost-of-living crisis and the cost of school uniforms; and 

• That childhood illnesses would be increasing now that people were mixing 
more again. 

 
In response to a Member’s question on the extent to which persistent absence was 
condoned by the parents, the Statutory Lead (Attendance and Exclusions) informed 
Members that data was not available on this.  He highlighted that children could still 
be off school with COVID-19 and that this was still affecting attendance levels.  He 
advised that attendance data was broken down by sector and by Special Educational 
Needs and Disability (SEND) and that work would be taking place over the next year 
to analyse the data by gender, ethnicity and whether the child had a social worker.  
He advised that the data was available broken down by school.  He outlined some of 
the help available for children who were missing school due to anxiety, including 
Early Help, THRIVE Hubs and the anxiety-based school avoidance pathway. 
 
The Director of Education reported that there was a lower percentage of children with 
SEND and special school pupils returning to school and higher levels of anxiety 
within this group.  She advised that, although her service was pleased with the 
attendance levels last year, these had still not returned to pre-pandemic levels and 
that they wanted to get them back to the level that they were before the pandemic.  

Page 113

Item 11



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee 7 September 2022 

She advised that it was important to use all the resources available to tackle 
persistent absence, engaging with all the different organisations which had a 
relationship with the child and their family and working together to get them attending 
school regularly.  She also informed Members that additional funding of just over £1 
million a year was being provided by the Department for Education (DfE) for the 
SAFE Project, to intervene with secondary age children who were at risk of entering 
the criminal justice system. 
 
The Executive Member for Early Years, Children and Young People stated that he 
shared Members’ concerns about the cost-of-living crisis and the impact on children 
and families.   He advised that the Deputy Executive Member for Early Years, 
Children and Young People was working with the Education Business Partner on 
making schools more poverty-proof.  He advised that schools had a responsibility to 
make uniforms available as cheaply and easily accessible as possible and to help 
families who could not afford them and that an audit was taking place of how well 
different Manchester schools were doing on this. 
 
In response to a Member’s question, the Statutory Lead (Attendance and Exclusions) 
reported that schools were good at identifying patterns of absence and 
understanding and working with local communities, for example, having their inset 
days on dates of religious festivals.  He advised that the additional breakdown of data 
which would be available next year would also assist with identifying patterns.  The 
Director of Education informed Members that targeted meetings between her service 
and individual schools provided the opportunity to look at the data, identify patterns of 
absence and challenge schools on their response.  The Senior Schools Quality 
Assurance Officer outlined how her service worked with schools to improve 
attendance, reduce persistent absence and provide early intervention for the most 
vulnerable pupils, including access to wider services. 
 
The Chair expressed concern about absence rates for children with SEND and 
Looked After Children.  She also highlighted that some children had not returned to 
school after the pandemic, with families opting for Elective Home Education.  She 
expressed concern about homeless families being placed a long distance from their 
children’s school and the impact of this on school attendance.  She outlined some of 
the ways that families could be supported, for example, through Sure Start, and 
stated that billboards could be used to advise families how to access support.  She 
noted that the Committee periodically received reports on school exclusions. 
 
Decision 
 
To request that a breakdown of attendance data by school be circulated to Members 
of the Committee. 
 
CYP/22/42    Information and Update on Schools White Paper 
 
The Committee received a report and presentation of the Director of Education which 
summarised the content of the Government’s White Paper on Schools titled 
‘Opportunity for all: Strong schools with great teachers for your child’ which was 
published in April 2022.  It included contextual information on Manchester’s current 

Page 114

Item 11



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee 7 September 2022 

school system and set out the opportunities and challenges presented by these 
changes, a proposed approach and next steps to implementation. 
 
The main points and themes within the report and presentation included: 
 

• The strategy set out in the White Paper which included: 
o Teachers; 
o Standards; 
o Targeted support; and 
o The school system; 

• The Manchester context, the approach to implementation and challenges for 
the city; and 

• Next steps. 
 

Some of the key points and themes that arose from the Committee’s discussions 
were: 
 

• Concern that there would be a loss of accountability and whether the Council 
would be able to ensure that the Multi-Academy Trusts (MATS) shared its 
vision, values and priorities; 

• Concern about the timescale for these changes; 

• Whether assets used by the community would still be available for use post-
academisation; and 

• Would teachers be involved in the discussions about how schools moved to 
MATs. 

 
The Assistant Director of Education reported that Manchester schools could be run 
by smaller MATS which were already operating and working well within Manchester, 
rather than national chains, and that the Council would be having discussions with 
those MATs.  She advised that decisions around academisation would be made by 
the governing body but that staff would be consulted as part of the TUPE (Transfer of 
Undertakings – Protection of Employment) process and that there was staff 
representation on governing bodies.  She advised that the Council would be working 
with schools to help them identify which MAT was best for them, based on the 
school’s needs. 
 
The Director of Education advised Members that she believed that Manchester 
schools and MATs would continue to support the Council’s vision, values and 
priorities and that the Council would continue to work with them on priorities for the 
city, such as climate change and community use of facilities.  She reported that the 
Council had a good relationship with the schools in the city and that the MATs 
currently operating in the city had engaged positively with them.  
 
The Strategic Director of Children and Education Services highlighted that 40% of 
Manchester schools were already academies, that the Council was already working 
with all of its schools and that the Council would try to shape and influence how these 
changes were implemented to the best of its ability. 
 
The Chair expressed serious concern about the proposals in the White Paper, 
including the future role of the Council and its education staff and that she felt the 

Page 115

Item 11



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee 7 September 2022 

education system was being privatised.  She advised that Councillors should lobby 
government about these changes and that Members would be discussing this further 
outside of this meeting. 
 
Decision 
 
To note the report. 
 
CYP/22/43 Overview Report 
 
A report of the Governance and Scrutiny Support Unit was submitted. The overview 
report contained key decisions within the Committee’s remit, responses to previous 
recommendations and the Committee’s work programme, which the Committee was 
asked to approve. 
 
Decisions 

 
1. To note the report and agree the work programme. 

2. To add Councillor Bano to the membership of the Ofsted Subgroup 

 
 

Page 116

Item 11



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Environment and Climate Change Scrutiny Committee 21 July 2022 

 

Environment and Climate Change Scrutiny Committee 
 
Minutes of the meeting held on 21 July 2022 
 
Present: 
Councillor Shilton Godwin – in the Chair 
Councillors Chohan, Doswell, Holt, Hughes, Lyons, Nunney, Sheikh and Wright 
 
Apologies: Councillor Razaq 
 
Also present:  
Councillor Rawlins, Executive Member for Environment and Transport 
Councillor Foley, Deputy Executive Member for Environment and Transport 
Councillor A. Ali, Deputy Executive Member for Vibrant Neighbourhoods 
Samantha Nicholson, Director, Manchester Climate Change Agency 
Mike Wilton, Chair, Manchester Climate Change Partnership 
Simon Warburton, Transport Strategy Director, TfGM (Transport for Greater 
Manchester) 
 
ECCSC/22/22 Minutes 
 
Decision 
 
To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 23 June 2022 as a correct record. 
 
ECCSC/22/23 Greater Manchester Clean Air Plan Review 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Deputy Chief Executive & City Treasurer 
and the City Solicitor that provided an update on progress made on the Greater 
Manchester Clean Air Plan (GM CAP) policy review and sought comments from 
Members to inform finalisation of the review submission to government.  
 
The Committee had been invited to comment on the report prior to it being 
considered by the Executive. 
 
Key points and themes in the report included: 
  

• Providing an introduction and background; 

• An overview of the impacts of poor air quality, noting that improving air quality 
was a key objective for Manchester City Council; 

• The rationale for the new plan; 

• The core objectives of the new Clean Air Plan, noting that the new GM CAP 
would target investment in vehicle upgrades rather than imposing daily charges; 

• Describing that the primary focus of the new plan was to achieve compliance in a 
way that considered the current cost of living crisis and associated economic 
challenges faced by businesses and residents; 

• Describing the approach to the development of the new plan; 

• NO2 exceedances forecast for the period 2023-2026 and monitoring data; 

• An overview of the changes in economic context since Summer 2021 and the 
emerging conclusions to changes in an economic context; 

Page 117

Item 11



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Environment and Climate Change Scrutiny Committee 21 July 2022 

 

• The changed conditions within the vehicle market;  

• Equality considerations; 

• The asks of Government, particularly the specific new ‘ask’ to remove out-of-area 
operation by private hire drivers/vehicles; 

• Feedback for targeted engagement undertaken to test support for the case for a 
new GM CAP; and 

• Next steps. 
 
Some of the key points that arose from the Committee’s discussions were: -  
 

• Continuing the call for an Ultra Low Emissions Zone, particularly in the city centre 
area; 

• Recognising the cost of compliant taxi vehicles; 

• Noting the levels of emissions from the bus fleet what was the timescale for the 
roll out of replacement vehicles; 

• Was the £115m earmarked for a third of the bus fleet in GM to be zero emission 
by 2027 sufficient; 

• What work was being done to address the issues associated with the strategic 
road network; 

• Fully supporting the ‘ask’ to remove out-of-area operation by private hire 
drivers/vehicles; 

• Clarification was sought as to the proposed use of the ANPR cameras; 

• Information was sought as to the provision of electric vehicle charging points; 

• The importance of considering this topic through the lens of public health; and 

• The importance of capturing the existing creativity and enthusiasm in the city, 
particularly amongst young people to inform plans to address emissions and 
climate change. 

 
The Transport Strategy Director, TfGM (Transport for Greater Manchester) advised 
that the greater control of the regional bus fleet that would be achieved through the 
franchising of this service would allow for granular control of the service. He stated 
that the ability to control this network would address the issues associated with 
buses, particularly in the city centre area. He advised that the £115m referred to by 
the Member was additional funding above the core funding proposition. 
 
The Transport Strategy Director, TfGM described the work underway to address the 
issues associated with the strategic road network. He gave the example of the work 
to understand the flow of commercial traffic on Regent Road and the options 
available to address this. He advised that this analysis was being undertaken with 
Highways England. Members welcomed this and advised that the lessons learnt from 
previous schemes involving Regent Road needed be used to inform any proposals, 
particularly in regard to communications with local residents and elected Members. 
The Transport Strategy Director, TfGM stated that this was fully understood, and the 
approach would be to capture views and comments to inform any formal consultation 
exercise.   
 
The Chair noted that it was important to recognise that Regent Road was only one 
strategic road network route that impacted significantly on the city. She commented 
that it was important to consider all road users, including promoting active travel 

Page 118

Item 11



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Environment and Climate Change Scrutiny Committee 21 July 2022 

 

when considering alternative options for these routes. She commented that a report 
on the Active Travel Strategy would be considered by the Committee later in the 
municipal year.  
 
The Transport Strategy Director, TfGM commented that the issues associated with 
the wider strategic road network across Greater Manchester was understood and 
they continued to make representations to the Government on this issue.  
 
The Transport Strategy Director, TfGM addressed the issue of the cost of 
replacement vehicles for business and advised that they were working closely with 
business representatives to map the inflationary pressures experienced by 
businesses and this would inform the funding ask from government.  With reference 
to taxis, he advised that the funding available would be used to target the worst 
polluting vehicles, using an evidenced based approach. 
 
The Transport Strategy Director, TfGM described that the proposed use of the ANPR 
cameras would help identify directed marketing possibilities with business and 
Greater Manchester Police had expressed an interest in the wider use of ANPR.  
 
The Executive Member for Environment and Transport advised that a report on the 
provision of electric vehicle charging points would be submitted to the Committee for 
consideration in the new year. 
 
In concluding this item of business, a Member suggested that an additional 
recommendation be added. The Member noted that the report discussed measures 
to address NO2 emissions with no reference to carbon emissions. She 
recommended that the Executive consider all emissions, including carbon when 
considering future transport and active travel strategies so that they contribute to the 
Council’s stated zero carbon ambitions by 2038. 
 
Decisions 
 
1. The Committee recommend that the Executive consider all emissions, including 
carbon when considering future transport and active travel strategies so that they 
contribute to the Council’s stated zero carbon ambitions by 2038. 
 
2. The Committee endorse the recommendations that the Executive: 

(1) Note the 'Case for a new Greater Manchester Clean Air Plan’ document 
attached as Appendix 1 and associated appendices 2 to 6 has been submitted 
to the Secretary of State as a draft document subject to any comments from 
Manchester City Council ahead of the next Air Quality Administration 
Committee. 
 

(2) Note that Cllr Tracey Rawlins as the Manchester City Council appointed 
representative on the Air Quality Administration Committee will represent 
Manchester City Council’s comments. 
 

(3) Note the initial screening undertaken to assess which protected characteristics 
are likely to be impacted by the new GM Clean Air Plan, and in scope for the 
Equalities Impact Assessment. 

Page 119

Item 11



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Environment and Climate Change Scrutiny Committee 21 July 2022 

 

 
(4) Note the updated Do Minimum position for 2023 and 2025 and the forecasted 

points of exceedance in GM in 2023 and 2025; and 
 

(5) Note the participatory policy development approach and the next steps for the 
GM CAP. 
 

(6) Note the new ‘ask’ from Government to remove out-of-area operation by private 
hire drivers/vehicles to support the new GM Clean Air Plan. 
 

(7) Note feedback from early engagement activity with vehicle owner representative 
groups. 
 

(8) Note the NO2 monitoring results and the exceedances of the annual mean 
across sites set up for GM CAP purposes between 2018 and 2021. 

 
ECCSC/22/24 Manchester Climate Change Agency / Partnership 

Framework 2.0 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Manchester Climate Change Partnership 
and Agency that described  the key contents of the 2022 Update to the Manchester 
Climate Change Framework (2020–2025). 
 
Key points and themes in the report included: 
  

• Providing an introduction and background, noting that The Manchester Climate 
Change Framework (2020-25) was the city's high-level strategy for tackling 
climate change; 

• Manchester’s Climate Change Framework 2020-25 (the Framework) sets a 
science-based target for the city to reach zero carbon emissions by 2038 and sets 
a total carbon budget for our direct emissions, noting that the first milestone on 
this pathway was for the city to reduce its direct emissions by 50% by 2025; 

• The Framework was being updated to ensure it remained responsive to a 
changing city and evolving local and national policy, to improving data and 
modelling, plus to the increasing need for urgent action to tackle the climate 
emergency; 

• The update would include an overview of research to move the city forwards on 
climate adaptation and resilience; and Health and Wellbeing; 

• Information in relation to direct and indirect emissions; 

• Information on the approach to the proposed engagement with stakeholders; and 

• Next steps, noting that comments and feedback would be collated from this 
Committee, Manchester Climate Change Partnership members and wider city 
stakeholders, including residents and business and feed into the final publication, 
due for release in September. 

 
To accompany the report the Committee also received a presentation that 
summarised the key themes of the report. 
 
Some of the key points that arose from the Committee’s discussions were: -  
 

Page 120

Item 11



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Environment and Climate Change Scrutiny Committee 21 July 2022 

 

• The Committee welcomed the report and accompanying presentation, noting the 
content was clear and concise; 

• The importance of the communications strategy to residents on the issue of 
climate change, particularly the use of appropriate language and terminology; 

• What was being done to engage those private sector businesses who were not 
currently signed up to the Partnership; 

• Had any consideration been given to enforcement activity; 

• What lessons had been learnt to date; 

• What could be done to influence the Greater Manchester Pension Fund to divest 
from fossil fuels; 

• Was there a Green Work and Skills strategy; 

• Had consideration been given to develop an action plan to accompany the Update 
to the Manchester Climate Change Framework (2020–2025); and 

• The report did not address the issues of food sustainability or biodiversity; 
 
The Chair, Manchester Climate Change Partnership described the importance of 
partnership working to deliver the changes required to address climate change and 
keep the city with the agreed carbon budget. He stated that in Manchester there were 
many good practices and examples of businesses actively enacting strategies to 
reduce their carbon emissions, particularly in the construction industry. He stated that 
these examples of good practice could influence other businesses. 
 
The Head of City Policy informed the Committee that a significant amount of work 
had been delivered around the issue of green skills and training and this was 
regularly reported to the Economy Scrutiny Committee, adding that an update report 
on this topic was scheduled to be considered at their September meeting. 
 
The Chair, Manchester Climate Change Partnership stated that many lessons had 
been learnt over previous years, and he made particular reference to the ineffective 
national domestic retrofitting scheme. He advised that following this, a Greater 
Manchester initiative was being developed on this important issue, making reference 
to the Your Home Better scheme and the work done to engage directly with the 
supply chain. The Committee noted that a report on this subject was scheduled for 
consideration at the September meeting. With regard to the issue of enforcement he 
made reference to the work that was being undertaken across Manchester to work 
with landlords in the private rented sector to improve property standards.  
 
The Director, Manchester Climate Change Agency stated that the need for 
immediate action to address the climate crisis was acutely understood, she further 
commented on the scale of the issue and called for a national and global systematic 
change to address carbon emissions. With regard to wider engagement with the 
private sector she stated that Manchester, and Greater Manchester had a strong 
track record in supporting and developing green businesses, particularly in regard to 
Small and Medium Enterprises (SMEs).  
 
The Chair, Manchester Climate Change Partnership advised that businesses were 
recognising the threat to their business that climate change represented, and this 
increased awareness across different sectors was accelerating change, he further 
commented that this increased realisation amongst shareholders would also support 
the argument and act as a lever to influence the Greater Manchester Pension Fund 

Page 121

Item 11



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Environment and Climate Change Scrutiny Committee 21 July 2022 

 

to divest from fossil fuels, recognising that the Committee had continued to call for 
this. 
 
The Director, Manchester Climate Change Agency stated that the issue of 
meaningful communications with residents on the issue of climate change was 
understood and advised that whilst the strategy document was written in a particular 
‘high level’ style, the language used in all communications would be appropriate and 
accessible. She described that a bespoke communications strategy, addressing a 
range of issues would be devised and delivered to accompany the launch of the 
updated framework, and this would also include a questionnaire to capture feedback.   
 
The Director, Manchester Climate Change Agency commented on the challenges of 
reporting outcomes and progress due the time lags in the availability of the range of 
data sets and metrics used to report against. She advised that a comprehensive 
annual report was produced and would continue to be submitted to the Committee for 
consideration. She commented that the Partnership comprised of different sectors 
from across the city to ensure a range of voices were captured.    
 
The Director, Manchester Climate Change Agency stated that the Manchester Food 
Board were represented on the Partnership and the updated Framework would 
include consideration of food and biodiversity. 
 
The Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer commented that the city had a stated 
and explicit ambition to address climate change, adding that it was one of the first 
cities to establish a carbon budget. She advised that the Partnership was the lead for 
the city on this issue. She further added that the refreshed Manchester City Council 
Climate Change Action Plan would be aligned to the refreshed Manchester Climate 
Change Framework. 
 
The Deputy Executive Member for Vibrant Neighbourhoods spoke in support of the 
report and the importance of addressing climate change. 
 
The Executive Member for Environment and Transport welcomed the comments from 
the Committee and recognised the points raised regarding the need for appropriate 
language to be used in all communications on the issue of climate change. She 
advised that regular communications would be provided to Members that contained 
useful links and sign posting that could be shared with interested residents and 
groups in their respective wards. She reiterated that it was everyone’s responsibility 
to adopt behaviours to address climate change. She recognised the comments made 
by Members on the importance of active travel and improved public transport, noting 
the importance of the need to address climate change was implicit across all Council 
decision making considerations.  
 
Decision 
 
To note the report. 
 
 
 

Page 122

Item 11



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Environment and Climate Change Scrutiny Committee 21 July 2022 

 

ECCSC/22/25 MCC Climate Change Action Plan: Quarterly Progress 
Report, Quarter 1 April – June 2022 

 
The Committee considered the report of the Deputy Chief Executive and City 
Treasurer that provided an update on progress in delivery of the Council’s Climate 
Change Action Plan (CCAP) in Quarter 1 2022-23 (April – June 2022). 
 
Key points and themes in the report included: 
  

• Providing an introduction and background; 

• Describing Quarter 1 Progress against individual actions within the CCAP during 
the first quarter of 2022-23, with the Council’s direct carbon emissions data 
covering the previous quarter,  in this case, January – March 2022, due to the 
availability of billing and data monitoring which was drawn from billing information 
from the previous quarter; 

• Describing key achievements; and 

• Next steps. 
 

Some of the key points that arose from the Committee’s discussions were: -  
 

• Information was sought on the approach to decarbonising Council owned 
buildings that had been leased to community groups; 

• What type of projects had been proposed to the UK Cities Climate Investment 
Commission; 

• Noting the recent heatwave and the importance of foliage cover and shade 
provided by trees, what was the policy for ensuring trees were suitable maintained 
during periods of extreme weather events; 

• An update was sought on the plans to deliver Large Scale Renewable Energy 
Generation; 

• Welcoming the appointment of a Sustainability Project Manager to deliver the 
Council's commitment to be Single Use Plastic Free by 2024; 

• Recognising and welcoming the Staff Travel Policy that was referred to in the 
report, and asking if it was appropriate to offer free city centre parking for 
Councillors; 

• An explanation was sought as to the reasons for the reported flight to Ireland; and 

• Why had some Councillors still not completed the Carbon Literacy Training. 
 
The Strategic Lead, Resources & Programmes advised that there were a range of 
projects submitted to UK Cities Climate Investment Commission that reflected and 
supported the range of activities described withing the action plan, these included, 
but not restricted to retrofitting and energy generation. He stated that the plans to 
deliver Large Scale Renewable Energy Generation were still ongoing and viable 
options were being considered, and an update would be provided to the Committee 
at an appropriate time. 
 
The Strategic Lead Policy and Parentships advised the Committee that he would 
enquire with the Corporate Property Team on the approach to the retrofitting of those 
Council owned properties leased to community groups and a briefing note would be 
circulated to the Committee. 
 

Page 123

Item 11



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Environment and Climate Change Scrutiny Committee 21 July 2022 

 

The Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer paid tribute to all of the team 
involved in delivering the Climate Change Action Plan, advising that this work had 
been recognised nationally as an example of good practice. The Chair on behalf of 
the Committee supported this acknowledgement and appreciation of all staff involved 
in this important area of work.  
 
The Executive Member for Environment and Transport welcomed the ongoing 
support and challenge of the Committee on this important area of work. She advised 
that a note would be provided following the meeting that described the approach to 
maintaining tree’s during periods of extreme weather events, noting her appreciation 
to those residents who had watered trees during the recent heatwave. 
 
The Executive Member for Environment and Transport advised that all Councillors, 
like every resident needed to take personal responsibility for their travel choices and 
stated that individual circumstances needed to be considered, and it would be 
inappropriate for her to comment any further. She advised that Councillor Foley, 
Deputy Executive Member for Environment and Transport would be looking into 
Councillor take up of the Carbon Literacy Training to understand any barriers 
experienced so that these could be addressed with a view to maximising take up of 
this training. With regard to the reported flight to Ireland an explanation was provided, 
however recognising the need for the reporting of context was required in future 
updates if this occurred again. 
 
Decision 
 
To note the report. 
 
ECCSC/22/26  Overview Report 
 
The report of the Governance and Scrutiny Support Unit which contained key 
decisions within the Committee’s remit and responses to previous recommendations 
was submitted for comment. Members were also invited to agree the Committee’s 
future work programme.  
 
The Chair informed the Committee that following discussions between herself and 

Cllr Reid, Chair of the Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee it had been 

agreed to remove the item that was listed on the Work Programme for the November 

meeting as ‘Working with Schools - To receive a report on the Council’s work to 

support schools in relation to the climate emergency.’ 

The Chair was satisfied that this report sat within the remit of the Children and Young 
People Scrutiny Committee (CYPS), further noting that the CYPS Committee had 
recently considered this item at their 12 January 2022 meeting.  
 
Decision 
 
The Committee notes the report and agrees the work programme, noting the 
comments above. 

Page 124

Item 11



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Environment and Climate Change Scrutiny Committee 8 September 2022 

 

Environment and Climate Change Scrutiny Committee 
 
Minutes of the meeting held on 8 September 2022 
 
Present: 
Councillor Shilton Godwin – in the Chair 
Councillors Chohan, Doswell, Holt, Hughes, Ilyas, Lyons, Nunney, Razaq, Sheikh 
and Wright 
 
Apologies: Councillor Jeavons  
 
Also present:  
Councillor Rawlins, Executive Member for Environment and Transport 
Councillor Foley, Deputy Executive Member for Environment and Transport 
Councillor White, Executive Member for Employment and Development 
Samantha Nicholson, Director, Manchester Climate Change Agency 
 
ECCSC/22/27 Urgent Business – Flooding in Pakistan 
 
The Chair introduced an item of urgent business by advising the Committee that she 
had invited Councillor Razaq to speak on the recent flooding in Pakistan. Noting that 
this extreme weather event was a result of the climate crisis, the Chair also noted 
that Bangladesh and Madagascar, amongst many other places, had also 
experienced disasters as a result of climate change in recent years. 
 
Councillor Razaq spoke on the devasting events that have impacted thousands of 
citizens in Pakistan. Noting that it was reported that at least 1,136 people had been 
killed since June and roads, crops, homes and bridges washed away across the 
country due to the flooding. Officials had estimated that more than 33 million 
Pakistanis, one in seven people had been affected by the flooding. He encouraged 
all to donate to the humanitarian response.  
 
The statement was accompanied by a short video submitted by Councillor Razaq’s 
nephew who was currently living in Pakistan.  
 
The Committee and all those present observed a period of silence for all victims of 
the recent flooding in Pakistan. 
 
Decision 
 
To note the item of urgent business. 
 
ECCSC/22/28 Minutes 
 
Decision 
 
To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 21 July 2022 as a correct record. 
 
 
 

Page 125

Item 11



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Environment and Climate Change Scrutiny Committee 8 September 2022 

 

ECCSC/22/29 2022 Update to Manchester’s Climate Change Framework 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Manchester Climate Change Agency  
 that described that the 2022 Update to Manchester’s Climate Change Framework 
(2020-25) and presented the findings of the detailed modelling done to identify 
granular targets for reducing the city’s direct emissions by 50%, that would be 
necessary for the whole city to stay within its carbon budget.  
 
The Committee had been invited to comment on the report prior to it being 
considered by the Executive. 
 
Key points and themes in the report included: 
 

• Providing an introduction and background, noting that the Manchester Climate 
Change Partnership (MCCP) and Agency (MCCA) had been given the 
responsibility to set the city’s strategy for tackling the climate emergency; 

• Articulating the purpose and rationale for the 2022 Update; 

• Providing an overview of the ongoing work on the Framework’s other headline 
objectives;  

• The Update incorporated over 150 recommended actions organised into four 
categories according to where there was direct control to deliver, affect or 
influence the required change or outcome; 

• Noting that the Council’s delivery of the Climate Change Action Plan would make 
a substantial contribution to the implementation of the 2022 Update to 
Manchester’s Climate Change Framework (2020-25); and 

• Key messages and next steps. 
  

Some of the key points that arose from the Committee’s discussions were: -  
 

• Recognising the amount of work that had gone into producing the report and 
noting that the views of the Committee had been taken into consideration; 

• What methodology was used to produce the carbon budget figures reported 
throughout the report; 

• Recognising the scale of funding and resources required to deliver retrofitting and 
the need to access private sources of funding; 

• The complexity of the sources of funding that were made available to support 
retrofitting activity; 

• Planning policy should be developed to ensure all new developments were 
energy efficient so that they would not require retrofitting in future years; 

• Planning policy needed to consider carbon emissions at all stages of a buildings 
life, including the construction stage; 

• The need to promote and encourage sustainable travel policies for staff;  

• The need to use this report to communicate to all residents and promote this 
regionally and nationally; 

• The need to consider the use of appropriate language when engaging with 
residents on the subject of carbon budgets; 

• The need to develop the action points with those responsible for delivering them 
identified so this could be reported on and progress monitored; 

Page 126

Item 11



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Environment and Climate Change Scrutiny Committee 8 September 2022 

 

• Noting that in future update reports the Committee would seek reports on specific 
key areas of activity; 

• Welcoming consideration being given to introducing a Work Place Levy and Ultra 
Low Emissions Zones; and 

• Recommending that the Climate Change Partnership engage with the Greater 
Manchester Pension Fund to encourage them to divest from fossil fuels. 

 
In response to the comments and questions from Members, the Director, Manchester 
Climate Change Agency advised that the SCATTER  tool was used to model the 
scale of action needed for the city to reduce its emissions by 50%. She advised that 
there was information on this tool available on the Agencies’ website.  
 
The Director, Manchester Climate Change Agency further recognised the comment in 
relation to the need to access private finance to support the scale of retrofit work 
required. She added that it was an action to track and report progress on this activity. 
In terms of reporting funding streams, she advised that the financial modelling 
provided had informed the business case to Government to support this activity. She 
also advised that analysis of some of the investment into housing retrofit in 
Manchester should be possible via schemes like the Social Housing Decarbonisation 
Fund, Green Home Grant and Your Home Better scheme and therefore could be 
reported to the Committee in future updates. 
  
The Director, Manchester Climate Change Agency stated that the need to consider 
all carbon emissions related to the construction industry was understood and 
conversations with the industry that included all relevant stakeholders across Greater 
Manchester were ongoing to understand and address barriers to delivering on this. 
 
The Director, Manchester Climate Change Agency acknowledged the comment 
made regarding the use of the term carbon budget and advised that consideration 
would be given as to how this message was communicated to residents to ensure it 
was meaningful. She advised that a targeted communications strategy would be 
used to promote this Framework. 
 
The Executive Member for Environment and Transport commented that the Local 
Plan was a lever for the Council to drive change across the construction industry, 
noting that a report on planning policy and climate change was scheduled for the 
Committee’s February 2023 meeting. She further commented that the Council’s staff 
travel policy had been updated and communicated to all staff, adding that it was 
everyone’s responsibility to make informed decisions in relation to their travel 
choices. She advised that there were a number of positive examples of other 
organisations developing staff active travel policies that included lease schemes for 
bikes and subsidised travel passes and she further referenced the recent capping of 
bus fares. 
 
The Executive Member for Environment and Transport further advised that 
consideration continued to be given to introducing Ultra Low Emissions Zones. She 
noted the comments regarding the need for appropriate language in all messaging on 
this important issue and advised that all communications on this would be sense 
checked with Members to ensure they were appropriate for their residents.  
 

Page 127

Item 11



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Environment and Climate Change Scrutiny Committee 8 September 2022 

 

The Chair concluded the item by reiterating the urgency of responding to the climate 
change crisis, noting this also needed to be considered in the context of the cost-of-
living crisis and social justice.  
 
Decision 
 
The Committee 
 
1. Recommend that the Climate Change Partnership engage with the Greater 

Manchester Pension Fund to encourage them to divest from fossil fuels; 
 

2. Recommend that the 2022 Update to Manchester’s Climate Change Framework 
is circulated to all Members of the Council. 

 
The Committee further endorse the recommendations that the Executive: 
 
1. Formally adopt the 2022 Update to the Manchester Climate Change Framework’s 

aim, vision, objectives, and targets as the definition of what 
Manchester needs to achieve to ‘play its full part in limiting the 
impacts of climate change’; 

 
2. On behalf of the city, endorse the 2022 Update to the Manchester Climate 

Change Framework (2020 – 25) as Manchester’s high-level strategy for 
achieving the aim, vision, objectives, and targets; and 
 

3. Support the delivery of the refreshed 2020-25 Manchester City Council 
Climate Change Action Plan to contribute towards the successful 
implementation of the citywide Framework. 

 
ECCSC/22/30 MCC Climate Change Action Plan: Refreshed Climate  
   Change Action Plan 2020-2025 and Annual Report 2021-22 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Deputy Chief Executive and City 
Treasurer that presented the refreshed action plan for delivery between September 
2022 – March 2025 and the latest Annual Report for the year 2021-22 of the Climate 
Change Action Plan 2020-25. 
 
The Committee had been invited to comment on the report prior to it being 
considered by the Executive. 
 
Key points and themes in the report included: 
  

• The refreshed Climate Change Action Plan (CCAP) set out new actions, building 
on existing ambitions; 

• Key messages of the Action Plan; and 

• The Annual Report bringing together the CCAP updates provided over the last 12 
months (2021-22) into a single annual report and highlighting the progress which 
had been made during this time in terms of individual actions within the CCAP. 
 

Some of the key points that arose from the Committee’s discussions were: -  

Page 128

Item 11



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Environment and Climate Change Scrutiny Committee 8 September 2022 

 

 

• Welcoming the introduction and reporting of SMART objectives and milestones; 

• More information was sought on the Sustainable Events Guide and calling for 
Environmental Impact Assessments to be undertaken before and after large 
events; 

• Can carbon data be provided at a ward level data; 

• Plant based alternative food options needed to be provided at all Council events 
where catering was provided; 

• How could the Manchester Airport Group’s ambitions to reduce aviation emissions 
reconcile with their ambition to increase passenger numbers;  

• An update was sought on the delivery of Carbon Literacy Training, and more 
granular detail was requested on this activity in future updates; 

• The need to promote and enable active travel including walking and public 
transport; 

• The need to consider more nature based solutions; 

• The need for relevant departments, such as highways, neighbourhood teams and 
Arbor to collectively consider tree planting to mitigate the Urban Heat Island 
effect; and 

• The continued call to stop using Glyphosate weed killer.  
 

The Zero Carbon Manager advised that the post of Sustainable Events Lead had 
recently been recruited and more information on this post and wider activity would be 
reported to the Committee in future updates. She further directed Members to the 
online tools that they could use to obtain local data. 
 
The Executive Member for Environment and Transport advised that she would follow 
up the issue raised regarding plant based alternatives outside of the meeting. She 
further advised that the issue of local data and how this could be accessed would be 
included in the report ‘Neighbourhood Teams and Community Engagement’ 
scheduled for the December meeting, however prior to this the links to the tools 
would be circulated following this meeting. She further commented that she would 
raise the issue of Glyphosate weed killer with Councillor Igbon. 
 
The Head of City Policy advised the Committee that Manchester Airport Group had 
provided a response to the government’s Jet Zero Strategy and this would be 
circulated to Members following the meeting. He added that a substantive item on 
Manchester Airport and Aviation Emissions was scheduled to be considered by the 
Committee at their January 2023 meeting. 
 
In response to a question from a Member regarding Green Skills the Chair advised 
that the Economy Scrutiny Committee would be considering a report on this item 
later the same day. She stated that Members of this Committee would be attending 
and contributing to the meeting. The Chair noted the comments from the Members 
regarding specific asks to be included in future report and that she would discuss this 
with the Executive Member for Environment and Transport to agree the scope of the 
reports scheduled on the Committee’s work programme.  
 
 
 
 

Page 129

Item 11



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Environment and Climate Change Scrutiny Committee 8 September 2022 

 

Decision 
 
The Committee note the report and endorse the recommendation that the Executive 
approve the report and accompanying appendices. 
 
ECCSC/22/31 Manchester Retrofit Plan – Emerging Proposals 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Head of Housing Services that described 
that the Manchester Housing Strategy, launched in June 2022 outlined the 
commitment to developing a Retrofit Plan for all the housing in the city. This report is 
the first step towards developing the plan and provides an opportunity for the 
Scrutiny Committee and Members to consider the emerging proposals and influence 
the policy in its early stages. 
  
Key points and themes in the report included: 
  

• Why a Retrofit Plan was needed, noting that Manchester was committed to 
becoming a zero carbon city by 2038; 

• Noting that over a fifth of the city’s carbon emissions were generated by 
residential properties; 

• Analysis of the housing stock following a modelling exercise undertaken in 2021 
by the Greater Manchester Combined Authority; 

• Noting that the majority of all Manchester homes will need to be retrofitted in order 
to decarbonise our housing stock; 

• Key issues for developing and delivering a large-scale decarbonisation 
programme in Manchester; 

• Stakeholders who will need to be involved in the development and delivery of the 
plan; and 

• The programme for delivering the plan, recognising that the plan was likely to 
evolve over time as we learnt from experience and new approaches, funding 
opportunities and best practice emerging from other areas of the UK.  
 

Some of the key points that arose from the Committee’s discussions were: -  
 

• The need to use all tools to improve residents’ housing conditions, including the 
Landlord Licensing schemes; 

• Recommend the establishment of a Member and Officer working group, led by the 
Executive Member for Employment and Development to progress this work, 
noting that all relevant departments should be included; 

• All tools and resources, such as Council Tax and Land Registry records should be 
utilised to identify all private landlords in Manchester; 

• The need to use the data presented within the report to inform the funding ask of 
government to deliver the scale of retrofit work required;   

• Noting that adequate funding was required from government; 

• Noting that an Energy Performance Certificate (EPC) was not comparable with 
retrofit standards;  

• Noting that those residents who had not benefited from the Building Safety Fund 
to address the issue of cladding would also incur the additional cost to retrofit their 
properties; and 

Page 130

Item 11



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Environment and Climate Change Scrutiny Committee 8 September 2022 

 

• The need to share good practice on measures taken by residents to retrofit their 
properties, noting that the Your Homes Better GMCA web page contained a lot of 
useful information. 
 

The Executive Member for Employment and Development made reference to the 
scale of the challenge to deliver retrofitting, however the report described the 
progress to date. He stated that the issue of retrofitting was essential both in terms of 
addressing carbon emissions and as a social justice issue, especially in the context 
of the cost-of-living crisis. He stated that he would continue to lobby government for 
appropriate funding for Manchester to deliver this important work.  
 
The Head of Housing Services advised that all available resources would be used to 
improve energy efficiency and address carbon emissions. He commented that Social 
Housing Providers had led on this programme, and this was an example of the city 
leading by example. He commented that this programme also presented an 
opportunity to support the Work and Skills Strategy. In response to a specific 
question regarding concerns relating to the PFI schemes he advised that a meeting 
was scheduled for October with the developer to discuss this further. 
 
The Deputy Executive Member for Environment and Transport stated that education 
on energy saving was important, noting that there were many charities that could 
provide advice and guidance on this subject. She advised that information on the 
Energyworks Green Doctors would be provided to all Members in the next Members’ 
Newsletter.  
 
Decision 
 
The Committee recommend that a Member and Officer working group, led by the 
Executive Member for Employment and Development be established to progress the 
Manchester Retrofit Plan, noting that all relevant departments should be included. 
 
ECCSC/22/32  Overview Report 
 
The report of the Governance and Scrutiny Support Unit which contained key 
decisions within the Committee’s remit and responses to previous recommendations 
was submitted for comment. Members were also invited to agree the Committee’s 
future work programme. 
  
The Chair stated that following discussion on the previous agenda items she would 
discuss and agree the remit of the Active Travel report scheduled for the December 
2022 meeting and the detail required within the Embedding Carbon Literacy within 
the Council report scheduled for November 2022. She further advised that the 
Retrofit Plan would also be scheduled for consideration before it was submitted to the 
Executive for approval. 
 
Decision 
 
The Committee notes the report and agrees the work programme, noting the above 
comments. 

Page 131

Item 11



 

Page 132

Item 11



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Economy Scrutiny Committee  21 July 2022 

Economy Scrutiny Committee 
 

Minutes of the meeting held on Thursday, 21 July 2022 
 
Present:  
Councillor Johns (Chair) – in the Chair 
Councillors Bell, Good, Noor, Raikes, I Robinson, Shilton Godwin and Taylor 
 
Also present:  
Councillor Craig, Leader of the Council 
Councillor Holt 
Councillor Rawlins, Executive Member for Environment and Transport  
 
Apologies: Councillor Moran 
 
ESC/22/27 Minutes  
 
In moving the minutes, the Chair took the opportunity to commend the Council on 
being awarded Council of the Year at the recent Local Government Chronicle (LGC) 
Awards.  
 
The Chair also advised that Councillors Holt and Wright were in attendance at the 
meeting in an observational capacity. 
 
Decision 
 
That the minutes of the meeting held on 23 June 2022 be approved as a correct 
record.  
 
ESC/22/28 Update on Manchester Active Travel Strategy and Investment Plan  
 
The Committee considered a report of the Strategic Director (Growth and 
Development) which provided an update on the production of an Active Travel 
Strategy and Investment Plan (MATSIP) for Manchester City Centre. 
 
Key points and themes in the report included:  
 

• The proposed vision and objectives for the MATSIP; 

• The planned work programme and investment plans to develop strategy and to 
continue improving walking and cycling for all pedestrian users; 

• A collaborative approach between the Council and Transport for Greater 
Manchester (TfGM) to deliver schemes to implement the Bee Network vision; 

• Some of the £325,000 received from the 2021-22 DfT Active Travel Capability 
Fund was directed to produce the strategy and investment plans. Expert 
analysis and advice had been commissioned from transport and urban design 
consultants Sweco; 

• How the MATSIP would recommend investment priorities and schemes for the 
immediate and medium terms with a long-term horizon of 2040 to match the 
GM2040 Strategy and the City Centre Transport Strategy; 

Page 133

Item 11



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Economy Scrutiny Committee  21 July 2022 

• Five place-based workshops in each area of focus (North, Central, East, South 
and Wythenshawe) and digital engagement would be undertaken to facilitate 
stakeholder and resident engagement. 

 
Some of the key points and queries that arose from the Committee’s discussions 
were: 
 

• A need to ensure active travel routes are accessible and safe to encourage 
usage; 

• Routes needed to be well-connected, particularly to schools, hospitals and 
district centres; 

• Clarification about revenue and capital expenditure; 

• Whether stakeholder and resident engagement would be organised by 
consultants and if the scoping of this had already been undertaken; 

• Concern over a lack of docking stations for Beryl Bikes in Wythenshawe; 

• Parking on pavements and overgrown hedges and the safety issues these 
cause; 

• How the MATSIP will tie in with public transport; 

• Welcomed recent consultation outcomes being used to inform the strategy; and 

• Could feedback from consultation on Beelines be incorporated into the strategy; 
 
The Principal Policy Officer acknowledged the need for safe junctions to ensure that 
the active travel network is accessible, and this would be addressed through the 
development of the strategy. It was hoped that the MATSIP would tie together the 
different Council initiatives and early engagement was underway between partners in 
Neighbourhoods and Manchester Active.  
 
The Principal Policy Officer reiterated the importance of the split between capital and 
revenue expenditure and further assessment of this was required to understand 
funding requirements. He explained that increased revenue allocation in the DfT 
Active Travel Capability Fund was anticipated, although the detail of this had not 
been confirmed.  
 
In response to a query regarding the engagement programme, it was explained that 
this would be delivered by the Council with an intention to utilise the expertise of 
Neighbourhood Officers and Sweco consultants. Stakeholder mapping was ongoing 
and the wider details on consultation and engagement were not yet finalised.  
 
With regards to Beryl bikes and the Greater Manchester Cycle Hire scheme, the 
Principal Policy Officer advised that funding for the initiative from the Mayor’s 
Challenge Fund (MCF) was limited but the Council was working with TfGM to identify 
areas to extend the scheme to, although there was no exact timescale for this.   
 
The Executive Member for Environment and Transport reiterated the need for the 
active travel network to be accessible for all residents and to encourage a modal shift 
to alternative transport methods. She also commented that member engagement in 
the scheme was key.  
 

Page 134

Item 11



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Economy Scrutiny Committee  21 July 2022 

The Executive Member for Environment and Transport explained that the Growth and 
Development directorate could create a flowchart for the public to demonstrate how 
the MATSIP and national policy fit together and what will be delivered. 
 
Concern over on-pavement parking was reiterated by the Executive Member and she 
explained that the Council was considering what powers it had to address the issue, 
with the possibility of launching pilot programmes. 
 
The Interim Head of Infrastructure and Environment confirmed that outcomes from 
the Beelines consultation were available and could be used in a place-based way to 
look at land use and trip trends.   
 
Decision: 
 
That the Committee 
 
(1) notes the report and 

 
(2) notes that a further report setting out progress would be brought to a future 

Committee for consideration.  
 
ESC/22/29 HS2 Update and Petition  
 
The Committee considered a report of the Strategic Director (Growth and 

Development) which provided an update on the progress of the High Speed (Crewe – 

Manchester) Bill (known as ‘HS2 Phase 2b’) in Parliament and outlined the key 

issues which the Council intended to petition against. 

  

Key points and themes in the report included:  

  

•                The Bill for Phase 2b would secure powers to implement new HS2 stations at 

Manchester Piccadilly and Manchester Airport, and a railway tunnel from 

Davenport Green to Ardwick with ventilation shafts at Junction 3A of the M56, 

Withington Golf Club (Palatine Road), a site near the Christie Hospital 

(Wilmslow Road), and Fallowfield retail park (Birchfield Road) in addition to 

more specific powers; 

•                The different stages that the Bill had been through in Parliament, including an 

Independent Assessors Report on consultations, a second reading of the Bill in 

the House of Commons and an Additional Provision 1 which made amendments 

outside of Manchester; 

•                The most commonly raised issues, as summarised by the Independent 

Assessors Report, related to matters such as traffic and transport, ecology and 

biodiversity and community; 

•                A possibility of a second Additional Provision being deposited to make 

changes within and the city, which the Council may need to petition against; 

•                The Council’s petition against the proposed scheme must be submitted to 

Parliament on or before 4th August 2022; 

Page 135

Item 11



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Economy Scrutiny Committee  21 July 2022 

•                The Council was reviewing the first Additional Provision to identify whether it 

should also submit a petition on that and would appear before the Select 

Committee once the petition is submitted; 

•                It was expected that HS2 Ltd may negotiate with the Council during the 

petitioning process, and the Council would seek measures to remedy the 

concerns and issues outlined.  

  

Some of the key points and queries that arose from the Committee’s discussions 

were: 

  

•                The Committee welcomed the report and Council’s position; 

•                HS2 was an integral part of levelling-up in the North; 

•                Closing the Ashton Metrolink line to enable the construction of a HS2 station at 

Piccadilly would create significant transport issues, particularly once the Co-op 

Live arena is open; 

•                Had any feedback been received regarding the suggestion of constructing a 

Metrolink depot at Ashton Moss to enable the existing Ashton Metrolink line to 

remain open during construction of the station at Piccadilly; 

•                Concern over plans to construct a 2000-space car park at Piccadilly station 

and the impact this would have on congestion and carbon neutral targets; 

•                What the potential funding mechanism would be for Manchester Airport should 

the government be unable to provide funding; 

•                The tram turnback facility should be located at Velopark instead of New 

Islington as proposed by the Bill; and  

•                The importance and history of rail travel in Manchester. 

  

The Leader of the Council provided assurances that the Council had a strong case 

with their petition and that the Council would continue to make its case for significant 

investment in the rail network. She also confirmed that there was no clarity on the 

funding mechanism for the Airport station, which was currently the only unfunded 

proposition, despite having suggested the possibility of private equity investment to 

government.   

  

The Director of City Centre Growth and Infrastructure explained that specific analysis 

on the economic impact of closing the Ashton Metrolink line had not yet been 

undertaken but would be assessed. The government had noted the Council’s position 

on this.  

  

The Director of City Centre Growth and Infrastructure commented that the 

government were continuing with the proposal to build a 2000-space car park at 

Piccadilly despite the Council’s argument that this contradicts the policy position on 

climate change, sustainable transport, and carbon neutrality.  

  

It was advised that the Ashton Metrolink line would need to be closed as the 

construction of HS2 required severing the track and inserting a pile.  

  

Page 136

Item 11



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Economy Scrutiny Committee  21 July 2022 

Members’ view that the tram turnback facility should be located at Velopark was 

reiterated by officers, who explained that this would improve network efficiency 

particularly when events were scheduled at the Etihad Stadium or the Co-op Live 

arena.  

  

Decision: 

  

That the Committee 

  

(1)      noted the report and 

  
(2)      endorse the recommendations for the Executive.  

 
ESC/22/30 Northern Powerhouse Rail  
 
This item was withdrawn from the agenda.  
 
ESC/22/31 Moving Traffic Offences Enforcement  
 
The Committee considered a report of the Director of Highways which provided an 
overview of changes in legislation which allowed local highways authorities to enforce 
moving traffic offences such as no entry, yellow boxes, banned turns, traffic 
restrictions and environmental weight limits. 
  
Key points and themes in the report included:  
  

•                The benefits of enforcement of moving traffic offences such as 

o   Improved road safety including pedestrian and cyclist safety, supporting 

modal shift to sustainable transport options 

o   Reduced highway congestion 

o   Improved journey times for public transport and emergency service 

vehicles  
o   Improved air quality, reduction in transport related emissions contributing 

to carbon net zero targets 

o   Reallocation and saving of police time 

•                Local authorities have power to take on civil enforcement of certain moving 
traffic and parking contraventions by decriminalising the offences; 

•                Enforcement by CCTV cameras has proven to improve levels of compliance 
with road traffic regulations; 

•                The initial implementation programme and trial sites from January 2023; 

•                A future proposal for enforcement of parking on school Keep Clear markings. 
  
Some of the key points and queries that arose from the Committee’s discussions 
were: 
  

•                Welcomed the changes to regulations;  

•                Why a trial period was necessary;  

•                What did moving traffic offences and the acronym CEA refer to; 

Page 137

Item 11



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Economy Scrutiny Committee  21 July 2022 

•                The future proposal for enforcement of parking on school Keep Clear markings 
understated the benefit this would have on road safety; 

•                A speedy roll out of measures following the trial period was encouraged; 

•                Whether enforcement would apply to right-turning vehicles in a yellow box 
where oncoming traffic is congested; 

•                Could the Council ask developers to partially fund ANPR cameras in future 
schemes; and 

•                The possibility of including other contraventions and sites in the trial; 
  
The Director of Highways clarified that moving traffic offences referred to any offence 
against signs or traffic regulations and that CEA was an acronym for civil 
enforcement area, which was the whole of city in this instance.  
  
It was explained that a trial period was necessary to ascertain what the level of 
adherence may be and exactly how much enforcement would be required. It would 
also allow the Council to learn lessons before imposing regulations city-wide.  
The Director of Highways advised that each yellow box would have between 2 and 4 
ANPR cameras, which would record all types of contraventions within the box and 
that the measures were intended to reduce the likelihood of congestion in yellow 
boxes. The Director of Highways confirmed that the Council could ask would 
developers for contributions to fund ANPR cameras as part of the approval process 
for development schemes. He stated that he would ask the Development Control 
team in the Highways department to consider the suggestion further.  
  
In response to a query as to why enforcement for parking on zigzags was not 
included in the trial, the Director of Highways explained that there was an ongoing 
shortage of mobile cameras typically used to enforce this and the Council was trying 
to find a solution which can be located at various school sites across the city. 
Enforcement Officers will continue to patrol and monitor sites where zigzags are in 
use. 
  
The Executive Member for Environment and Transport reiterated the Committee’s 
comment that the future proposal for enforcement of parking on school Keep Clear 
markings needed to emphasise the benefit this would have on road safety and that 
this would be a key message when communicating the new powers. This would be 
shared with the Council’s Communications team.  
  
The Director of Highways noted the Committee’s suggestion of including other 
contraventions and sites in the trial and stated that he would discuss the possibility of 
including an additional site in the trial with the Executive Member, depending on 
availability of funding. The expenditure involved with running the trial period had been 
taken from the parking reserves, which was acknowledged as a valid use of funds, 
and the income generated from enforcement would be reposited into the parking 
budget for future activity and investment. 
  
Decision: 
  
That the Committee notes the report and endorses in principle the proposal to begin 
enforcement of moving traffic offences. 
 

Page 138

Item 11



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Economy Scrutiny Committee  21 July 2022 

ESC/22/32 Overview Report  
 
The report of the Governance and Scrutiny Support Unit which contained key 
decisions within the Committee’s remit and responses to previous recommendations 
was submitted for comment.  
 
Decision 
 
That the Committee note the report. 
 
 

Page 139

Item 11



 

Page 140

Item 11



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Economy Scrutiny Committee  8 September 2022 

Economy Scrutiny Committee 
 

Minutes of the meeting held on Thursday, 8 September 2022 
 
Present:  
Councillor Johns (Chair) – in the Chair 
Councillors Good, Moran, Raikes, I Robinson and Shilton Godwin 
 
Also present:  
Councillor Akbar (Executive Member for Finance and Resources) 
Councillor Hacking (Executive Member for Skills, Employment and Leisure) 
Councillor White (Executive Member for Housing and Development) 
Councillor Doswell 
Councillor Wright 
Joe Crolla (Industry Skills Intelligence Lead - GMCA) 
Chris Wright (Assistant Principal – The Manchester College)  
 
Apologies: Councillor Bell, Noor and Taylor 
 
ESC/22/33 Minutes  
 
The Chair requested that item 8 of the minutes of the previous meeting be amended 
to reflect that the committee endorsed in principle the proposal to begin enforcement 
of moving traffic offences.  
  
Decision: 
  
That the minutes of the previous meeting be approved as a correct record subject to 
the amendment outlined above.  
 
ESC/22/34 Green Skills and Jobs  
 
The Committee considered a report of the Director of Inclusive Economy which 
provided an update on the opportunities and challenges faced by  
Manchester as the city makes the transition to a zero-carbon future.  
  
Key points and themes of the report included: 
  

•       Challenges and opportunities in the skills system and implications for the city’s 
clean and economic growth; 

•       Green skills, low carbon employment opportunities and business growth and 
innovation were fundamental components of Manchester’s growth and were 
crucial to ensuring an inclusive economy for all residents; 

•       How skills reforms would support more people into green jobs and help to 
grow future talent pipelines; and 

•       Initiatives that the Council is involved in to enable development of skills. 
  
Some of the key points and queries that arose from the Committee’s discussions 
included: 
  

Page 141

Item 11



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Economy Scrutiny Committee  8 September 2022 

•       The impact of the cost of living crisis on the need to address the skills and jobs 
gap in Manchester; 

•       Whether leadership and management training was offered within courses; 

•       The inflexibility of qualifications and how colleges respond to need from 
industry; 

•       Whether large-scale funding would help to facilitate retrofitting or whether 
demand was required first; 

•       Engagement with businesses to improve carbon literacy; and 

•       The ability of the Green Skills programme to help eligible candidates get into 
work. 

  
The Executive Member for Skills, Employment and Leisure acknowledged the impact 
of the cost of living crisis as vital on the need to address the skills and jobs gap in 
Manchester and explained that the Council’s strategy was to increase household 
incomes and lower costs and green jobs and retrofitting would help with these aims.  
  
The Director of Inclusive Economy commented that work was needed to emphasise 
STEM (Science, Technology, Engineering and Math) and the value of trade. The 
Growth Company was opening a centre in Trafford Park with a focus on these areas 
and to work with employers.  
  
In response to a query regarding leadership and management training, the Director of 
Inclusive Economy explained that the Council works with universities on this subject 
and particularly those which offer MBA courses. The Growth Company are also 
involved in a wider leadership programmes in co-operation with universities and 
Greater Manchester Combined Authority (GMCA).   
The Industry Skills Intelligence Lead (GMCA) acknowledged challenges in upskilling 
and explained that less than 1% of the construction workforce in Manchester were 
fully qualified in retrofitting. An increase in the workforce was required to encourage 
competition and specialisation and to ensure the workforce is better prepared for the 
scale of retrofitting.  
  
Members were also informed that GMCA had received funding for upskilling and that 
this had recently been reissued.  
  
Regarding supply and demand for retrofitting and how large-scale funding would help 
with this, the Industry Skills Intelligence Lead (GMCA) explained that conversations 
have taken place with the Department for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy 
within central government about requirements and challenges surrounding retrofit. 
Issues around materials, equipment, capacity and deliverability of organisations, and 
functions within local authorities and housing providers were cited as potential 
challenges to large-scale retrofitting.  
  
It was stated, however, that the amount of time taken to pay for green equipment, 
such as solar panels and heat pumps, had decreased which improved accessibility to 
green infrastructure. As demand for this increases, employers would also need to 
employ additional staff to deal with the scale of demand.  
  

Page 142

Item 11



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Economy Scrutiny Committee  8 September 2022 

Members were advised that authorities were able to apply for additional funding for 
social housing decarbonisation and this had been undertaken in coordination with 
housing providers with Greater Manchester expecting to receive £90 million. 
  
The Director of Inclusive Economy explained that Manchester Adult Education 
Service (MAES) was working to embed carbon literacy into their work as an added 
qualification within their offer. Carbon literacy training was also taking place in work 
clubs to upskill club leaders.  
  
In response to the member query regarding how the Green Skills programme would 
help candidates get into work, the Director of Inclusive Economy explained that the 
example provided in the report was the Community Renewal Fund which had created 
a programme with a number of partners including the Council to provide work 
placements and progress candidates into permanent roles.  
  
The programme was due to be completed in December 2022. Further information 
could be provided after this and members were assured that the Council anticipated 
more than 50 people would be in jobs at the end of the programme.  
  
Decision: 
  
That the Committee notes the report and endorses the proposed approach.   
 
ESC/22/35 Green Skills and Housing Retrofit  
 
The Committee considered a report of the Director of Inclusive Economy which 
provided an update on the skills, opportunities and challenges faced by Manchester 
City Council to deliver large-scale housing retrofit programmes to achieve low carbon 
standards.  
  
Key points and themes of the report included: 
  

•       In 2019, the Council set a target to become a zero-carbon city by 2038, with a 
challenging reduction of at least 50% of our direct CO2 emissions by 2025; 

•       By 2032 over 85% of the homes Manchester residents will be living in will 
have already been built and a large-scale retrofitting programme is, therefore, 
essential; 

•       Large scale investment in retrofit programmes will drive the demand for green 
skills and provide the foundations to develop a local skills, employment, and 
business support offer; 

•      Challenges in funding to undertake retrofit programmes and the costs involved 
in retrofitting; and 

•       The work of colleges and the GM Low Carbon Academy in delivering retrofit 
training. 

  
Some of the key points and queries that arose from the Committee’s discussions 
included: 
  

•       Responding to needs of the industry given the inflexibility of green skills 
qualifications and how The Manchester College navigates this; 

Page 143

Item 11



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Economy Scrutiny Committee  8 September 2022 

•       Lack of incentives for small and medium enterprises (SMEs) to take up green 
skills training and how this could be improved; 

•       How much funding in total had been provided for retrofitting by the 
government;  

•       If the Council could prioritise contracts for retrofitting with companies who 
employ local people; and 

•       Addressing the gender imbalance within the construction industry;  

•       The scale and number of jobs needed to meet retrofitting targets; and 

•       Welcomed the sentiment that “every job is a green job”. 
  
The Assistant Principal of The Manchester College explained that green skills 
qualifications are structured by the awarding organisations and may not be up-to-date 
in terms of the current needs and practices of the industry. The Manchester College 
works with contractors in Manchester to develop bespoke modules to complement 
the curriculum and deliver additional skillsets, thereby responding to the needs of the 
industry. 
  
Access to skills for SMEs was acknowledged as an issue and The Manchester 
College had recently been involved in delivering free solar thermal training which 
provided existing plumbers an upskilling opportunity. This training was delivered to 58 
students, 9% of whom were female, and a number of students were able to get work 
in retrofitting upon completion.  
  
The Assistant Principal of The Manchester College commented that a single Green 
Skills Academy for Greater Manchester may be useful as a single point of access 
and information for SMEs. Discussions were also underway with One Manchester 
and the Institute for Apprenticeships and Technical Education (IFATE) to develop 
programmes.  
  
The Executive Member for Housing and Development confirmed that there is a 
funding shortfall for retrofit although some social housing pilots had taken place in 
past years and the Council would continue to apply for relevant funding. The 
Executive Member also stated that the Council had spent £83 million on housing 
stock in North Manchester since 2005, which had resulted in a 49% reduction in 
carbon emissions. 
  
The Work and Skills Lead and the Assistant Principal at The Manchester College 
explained that diversity within green jobs and the construction industry was 
encouraged through work in schools, careers advice and guidance and myth-busting 
sessions. Members were also advised that the female demographic with The 
Manchester College’s Transition and T-Level courses in construction had increased 
to 12% and the new intake of the Construction and Built Environment T-Level course 
was a 50:50 gender split.  
  
The Committee was informed that between 8000 and 12,000 new jobs were required 
to meet retrofit needs. Approximately 3000 learners complete construction courses 
each year from all further education colleges in Greater Manchester and around 1000 
begin construction apprenticeships each year. Other schemes such as skills 
bootcamps were also being held to increase the number of people in the construction 
industry.  

Page 144

Item 11



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Economy Scrutiny Committee  8 September 2022 

  
With regards to whether the Council could prioritise contracts for retrofitting with 
companies who employ local people, the Director of Inclusive Economy explained 
that where the Council has levers, such as in procurement, it will seek organisations 
which employ local people but there was no capacity to monitor this. There were 
varying degrees of influence in other areas, such as joint contracts and land, and this 
could be requested through the planning process.  
  
Members felt that retrofitting was a significant piece of work for the Council which 
needed to be developed collaboratively between the Economy Scrutiny Committee 
and the Environment and Climate Change Scrutiny Committee. Councillor Irene 
Robinson proposed that a working group on housing retrofit be established, 
seconded by Councillor Mandie Shilton Godwin.  
  
Decision: 
  
That the Committee 

  
1.    notes the report and 

  
2.    recommends that a working group be established and made up of members of 

the Economy Scrutiny Committee and the Environment and Climate Change 
Scrutiny Committee to support the delivery of the housing retrofit plan.  

 
ESC/22/36 Social Value and Climate Change  
 
The Committee considered a report of the Head of Integrated Commissioning and 
Procurement which provided an update on how the Council’s Social Value Policy, 
adopted by Executive in 2021, was being used to contribute economically to the 
Council’s ambition to be zero-carbon by 2038, supporting green jobs and skills. 
  
Key points and themes of the report included: 
  

•       The objectives and approach of the Social Value policy; 

•       Outcomes of a review of the Social Value policy in 2021 which included a 
commitment to a reduction in emissions associated with the goods, services 
and works contracts that the council procures; 

•       Priority cohorts had been identified and tenderers were requested to outline 
how Social Value proposals would benefit these specific groups; 

•       The introduction of a 10% weighting in the evaluation of tenders specifically in 
relation to climate change and the environment to ensure that the council’s 
suppliers recognise the climate emergency and share the council’s 
commitment to achieve net zero carbon emissions by 2038 or sooner; and 

•       Work was underway with authorities across Greater Manchester to establish a 
more harmonised set of social value measures, whilst retaining flexibility for 
measures in relation to local priorities. 

  
Some of the key points and queries that arose from the Committee’s discussions 
included: 
  

Page 145

Item 11



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Economy Scrutiny Committee  8 September 2022 

•       The number of people supported through the procurement process and are 
they carbon literate; 

•       A request for case studies on what social value means in practice;  

•       Whether contractors are required to pay the Living Wage and how this can be 
monitored and enforced;   

•       A need to increase public communications on social value work to inform and 
celebrate progress; and 

•       If and how social value policy applies to arms-length management 
organisations (ALMO) and social landlords.  

  
The Head of Integrated Commissioning and Procurement agreed to provide case 
studies of what social value means in practice outside of the meeting and explained 
that although figures on the number of people supported through the procurement 
process were unavailable, an annual survey of the top 300 suppliers was undertaken 
to analyse trends and showcased at an annual event with suppliers.  
  
Members were informed that provisions for carbon literacy training within the supply 
chain would be covered by the 10% carbon reduction weighting required through the 
process. Suppliers are expected to outline their current position towards carbon zero, 
proposals on improving this position, and their target date for achieving net carbon 
zero as part of the tendering process.  
  
The Head of Integrated Commissioning and Procurement confirmed that as the 
Council is a Living Wage-accredited organisation, suppliers are also expected to pay 
the Living Wage. Where suppliers already have a contract with the Council and do 
not pay the Living Wage, officers would work with the supplier to plan how this could 
be achieved.  
  
In response to a query regarding how this is monitored and enforced, it was stated 
that the Council was investing in a Contracts Management System and looking into 
dedicated social value measurement tools to capture information from suppliers and 
harmonise monitoring of social value across the council. Suppliers would be 
expected to upload their own data into the Contracts Management System which 
would encourage self-service and enable officers to generate data reports quickly. 
Recruitment was also underway for two posts to monitor the effectiveness of the 10% 
carbon reduction weighting and these would be funded by the zero carbon 
programme. 
  
Members were advised that events celebrating social value achievements had been 
held in the past but became virtual during lockdown. A face-to-face event was held in 
February 2022 and was well-received with the event for 2023 currently being 
planned. It was acknowledged that this was an opportunity to publicise social value in 
the procurement process more widely. The Head of Integrated Commissioning and 
Procurement confirmed that feedback as to how and where social value funding had 
been spent would be provided to those contributing to the funding.  
  
The Committee was also informed that social value policies apply to the maintenance 
contract for the Council’s housing management company, Northwards. Social 
housing providers are included in the Council’s action group to become a Living 

Page 146

Item 11



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Economy Scrutiny Committee  8 September 2022 

Wage City and it was acknowledged that many social landlords in Manchester 
employ local companies and employees. 
  
The Executive Member for Finance and Resources reiterated the Council’s 
encouragement for suppliers to invest in Manchester, commended the Council for 
reviewing social value policy to maximise social value across all areas and 
recognised the need to publicise social value work.  
  
Decision: 
  
That the Committee 

  
1.    notes the report and 

  
2.    recommends that the Council improves the public promotion of its social value 

work and achievements.  
  
 
ESC/22/37 Overview Report  
 
The report of the Governance and Scrutiny Support Unit which contained key 
decisions within the Committee’s remit and responses to previous recommendations 
was submitted for comment.  
  
Decision: 
  
That the Committee note the report. 
 
 
 

Page 147

Item 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Audit Committee 26 July 2022 

 
 

Audit Committee  
 
Minutes of the meeting held on 26 July 2022 
 
Present: 
Councillor Lanchbury - In the Chair 
Councillors Curley and Russell  
Independent Co-opted member: Dr S Downs 
 
Apologies: 
Councillors Flanagan, Good, Simcock and Wheeler 
Independent Co-opted member: Dr D Barker 
 
Also Present: 
Councillor Akbar, Executive Member for Finance and Resources 
Alistair Newall, Mazars (External Auditor) 
Karen Murray, Mazars (External Auditor) 
 
AC/22/21 Minutes  
 
Decision 
 
To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 14 June 2022 as a correct record. 
 
AC/22/22  Updated Draft Statement of Annual Accounts 2020/21 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Deputy Chief Executive and City 
Treasurer that provided an update of the revised 2020/21 accounts containing the 
amendments detailed in the report.  
 
The report advised that these accounts were updated from those reported to the 27 
July 2021 meeting of the Committee and took account of any changes that had 
arisen since that time, including the findings of external audit.  
 
The Committee were informed that before the audit could be concluded further 
changes may be required to these accounts due to a national accounting issue 
relating to the approach to the valuation of highways infrastructure, which has 
affected all Councils. 
 
Officers clarified points raised by the Committee in relation to the purchasing of 
Personal Protective Equipment during the pandemic; the valuation of assets; and the 
assessment of infrastructure holdings for accounting purposes.  
 
Officers also responded to questions raised in relation to the systems established for 
Looked After Children Accounts, including the audit control and assurance of these 
accounts, adding that the issue raised by a Member on General Data Protection 
Regulations considerations and paper bank account statements would be taken into 
account during the planned audit of these arrangements. 
 
Decision 

Page 149

Item 12



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Audit Committee 26 July 2022 

 
 

The Committee: 
 
1. Note the amendments made to the annual accounts since they were reported to 

the Audit Committee in July 2021. 
 
2. Approve the revised annual accounts including the accounting policies contained 

within them subject to the Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer working with 
finance staff, external auditors and the Executive Member for Finance to finalise 
any amendments as a result of the highways infrastructure issue and to report the 
annual accounts back to Audit Committee highlighting the changes made. 

 
3. Agree to not amend the annual accounts in relation to investment property 

valuations as detailed in paragraph 2.20. 
 
4. Agree to not amend the annual accounts in relation to the consolidation 

adjustment in the group accounts for leases as detailed in paragraph 2.46. 
 
AC/22/23  Draft Audit Completion report (2020/21) 
 
The Committee considered the report of the External Auditors (Mazars) which 
presented the Draft Audit Completion report. 
 
The report set out a narrative around: 
 

• Providing an Executive Summary; 

• Reporting the status of the audit; 

• Information in relation to the audit approach; 

• Internal control recommendations; 

• A summary of misstatements; and 

• Value for Money arrangements. 
 

The Committee noted that this item had been considered and discussed in 
conjunction with the previous agenda item. 

 
Decision 
 
The Committee note the report.  
 
AC/22/24  Treasury Management Outturn report 2021/22 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Deputy Chief Executive and City 
Treasurer that updated the Members on the Treasury Management activities of the 
Council during the financial year 2021-22.  Noting that Treasury Management in this 
context was defined as: 
 
‘The management of the organisation’s investments and cash flows, its banking, 
money market and capital market transactions; the effective control of the risks 
associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent 
with those risks’. 
 

Page 150

Item 12



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Audit Committee 26 July 2022 

 
 

The report set out a narrative around: 
 

• Introduction and Background; 

• Portfolio Position as at 31 March 2022; 

• Review of Economic Conditions 2021-22; 

• Treasury Borrowing in 2021-22;  

• Compliance with Prudential Indicators and Treasury Limits; 

• Investment Strategy for 2021-22;  

• Temporary Borrowing and Investment for 2021-22; 

• Current Market Conditions and Forward Fixing; and   

• Conclusions.  
 
Officers clarified points raised by the Committee in relation to Temporary Borrowing 
and Investment for 2021-22 and the reported benchmarking; and the approach and 
rationale to long-term borrowing to fund capital projects. 
 
Decision 
 
The Committee note the report.  

 
AC/22/25  Internal Audit Assurance (Q1) 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Head of Internal Audit and Risk 
Management. 
 
The report set out a narrative around: 
 

• An update of progress on the agreed audit plan 2022/23; and 

• Additional work assigned to the audit service and copies of the audit opinions 
issued in the period April 2022 to June 2022. 

 
The Committee noted that a progress update on the period prior to this had been 
included in the Annual Assurance Report presented to Committee in April 2022.  
 
Members requested that the Head of Internal Audit and Risk Management provide 
Committee with the Executive Summaries produced in relation to Adults Services 
described in Appendix One to the report. 
 
The Head of Internal Audit and Risk Management responded to comments raised in 
relation to the arrangements regarding the School Financial Value Standard. He 
made reference to new arrangements for reporting related party transactions and that 
there was some assurance from this process given that only one transaction reported 
to audit did not pass this probity test. He further clarified the arrangements in relation 
to related party transactions and Academy schools, noting that these arrangements 
were external to the Council. The Committee were advised of the separate and 
distinct arrangements for the audit of Academies, noting that any issues arising 
would be reported and managed nationally by the Education and Skills Funding 
Agency, a Department for Education executive agency. 
 
The Chair sought an assurance that the pace at which the Internal Audit Team had 

Page 151

Item 12



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Audit Committee 26 July 2022 

 
 

started the year would be able to be sustained throughout the year. The Head of 
Internal Audit and Risk Management stated that resources were being recruited 
permanently to continue this work. 
 
Decision 
 
The Committee note the report.  
 
AC/22/26  Outstanding Audit Recommendations (Q1) 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Head of Internal Audit and Risk 
Management that described that in accordance with Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards, the Head of Audit and Risk Management must “establish and maintain a 
system to monitor the disposition of results communicated to management; and a 
follow-up process to monitor and ensure that management actions have been 
effectively implemented or that senior management has accepted the risk of not 
taking action”.   
 
The report explained that for Manchester City Council this system included reporting 
to Directors and their management teams, Strategic Management Team, Executive 
Members and Audit Committee.  
 
The report further summarised the current implementation position and arrangements 
for monitoring and reporting internal and external audit recommendations. 
 
Members discussed the potential need to review the outstanding long-term 
recommendations, noting that the original risk identified may have changed 
significantly over time as a result of changes in circumstances and legislation. The 
Head of Audit and Risk Management noted the issues raised by a Member regarding 
the outstanding mental health recommendation, adding that it maybe timely to re 
audit this area of work. 
 
Decision 
 
The Committee note the report.  
 
AC/22/27  Prudential Framework Changes 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Deputy Chief Executive and City 
Treasurer that provided information on the revised CIPFA Prudential and Treasury 
Management Codes of Practice.  
 
The Committee were informed that the revised codes were published in late 2021 
and contained a number of significant changes which the Council would need to 
implement in time for the Treasury Management Strategy Statement for 2023/24, and 
which would therefore form part of the budget presented to members in early 2023.  
 
The report described the main changes in the code and the implications for the 
Council, including the governance and assurance arrangements. 
 

Page 152

Item 12



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Audit Committee 26 July 2022 

 
 

The Committee welcomed the inclusion of members of the Resources and 
Governance Scrutiny Committee to be included in the proposed training for 
Members. The Chair suggested that all Scrutiny Committee Chairs should be invited 
to this training as this would assist with the scrutiny of the Council’s budget later in 
the year. 
 
The Chair stated that she supported the proposed changes to the Council’s 
Constitution in relation responsibility to monitor the performance of the Treasury 
Management function, detailed at section 7 of the report. 
 
Decision 
 
The Committee note the report.  
 
AC/22/28  Risk Review Schools Assurance 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Head of Internal Audit and Risk 
Management that described that in accordance with Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards, the Head of Audit and Risk Management must “establish and maintain a 
system to monitor the disposition of results communicated to management; and a 
follow-up process to monitor and ensure that management actions have been 
effectively implemented or that senior management has accepted the risk of not 
taking action”.   
 
For Manchester City Council this system included reporting to directors and their 
management teams, Strategic Management Team, Executive Members and Audit 
Committee. The report noted that the Audit Committee had requested an update on 
school assurance in response to recent audit reviews and issues reported through 
the annual Audit Opinion for 2021/22.  
 
Following questions and comments from Members the Head of Audit and Risk 
Management stated that the need to report recent audit reviews and progress against 
issues identified to the Committee was understood. He described that the process for 
following up audit recommendations was best achieved by visiting the schools and 
meeting with the Business Manager or Headteacher. He stated that if issues needed 
to be escalated this was done through the Chair of Governors. He clarified that the 
recommendations arising from school audits were shared with both the relevant 
Business Manager, Headteacher and Chair of Governors. 
 
In terms of support to schools, recognising the challenges described by members, 
particularly those experienced by smaller schools, the Head of Audit and Risk 
Management described that Budget Support Officers were available to provide 
advice. He further advised that schools were encouraged to work in clusters to 
support this activity and provide support, particularly linking smaller schools with 
larger ones.  
 
The Director of Education provided examples of where the cluster approach 
described had delivered positive outcomes for schools and referenced the benefits 
achieved through economies of scale when purchasing. She further advised that the 
Department for Education provided a resource to schools to obtain advice and 

Page 153

Item 12



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Audit Committee 26 July 2022 

 
 

support in relation to procurement. She further commented that issues arising 
through the school’s assurance process were addressed through regular briefings 
with Business Managers, Heads and Chairs of Governors. 
  
Decision 
 
The Committee note the governance arrangements and oversight for schools and 
note the progress update on school audit recommendations. 
 
AC/22/29 Work Programme and Recommendations Monitor 
 
The Committee considered a report of the Governance and Scrutiny Support Unit 
which set out its future Work Programme for the forthcoming municipal year. 
 
Decision 
 
To agree the Committee’s Work programme.  

Page 154

Item 12



Manchester City Council   Minutes 
Planning and Highways Committee  28 July 2022 

Planning and Highways Committee 
 
Minutes of the meeting held on Thursday, 28 July 2022 
 
Present: Councillor Curley - In the Chair 
 
Councillors: S Ali, Andrews, Davies, Flanagan, Hewitson, Kamal, Leech, J Lovecy, 
Lyons, Riasat and Richards 
 
Apologies: Councillors Baker-Smith, Y Dar and Stogia 
 
Also present: Councillor Good, Robinson and Wilson 
 
PH/22/39  Supplementary Information on Applications Being Considered  
 
A copy of the late representations received had been circulated in advance of the 
meeting regarding applications 133746/FO/2022, 132489/FO/2021 and 
130922/FO/2021. 
 
Decision 
 
To receive and note the late representations. 
 
PH/22/40  Minutes 
 
Decision 
 
To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 30 June 2022 as a correct record. 
 
PH/22/41 133746/FO/2022 - Land at Junction of Parrs Wood Lane, 

Manchester, M20 5AA - Didsbury East Ward 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Director of Planning, Building Control 
and Licensing that described that this proposal related to the erection of a 6 storey 
building to form 75 no. residential apartments, and associated car and cycle parking, 
landscaping and highway works.  
 
The application site currently formed part of the existing car parking area to the south 
of the associated Tesco Store located off Parrs Wood Lane located within the 
Didsbury East ward. As well as hardstanding associated with the car parking area 
the site also contained associated landscaping and trees.  
 
The proposals were subject to notification by way of 272 letters to nearby addresses, 
site notice posted at the site and advertisement in the Manchester Evening News. In 
response 235 comments were received, 228 of these were objecting to the 
proposals. Didsbury East Councillors Foley, Simcock and Wilson have submitted 
comments objecting to the proposals. 
 
Amongst other matters that were set out within the main body of the report it was 
considered that the principle of high density residential development in this part of 

Page 155

Item 12



Manchester City Council   Minutes 
Planning and Highways Committee  28 July 2022 

South Manchester did not accord with the adopted planning policies in place in 
Manchester; that the proposals did not provide for an adequate level of on-site car 
parking to serve the development; and, the applicant had failed to demonstrate that 
the proposals would not give rise to unacceptable impacts on the highway network in 
the vicinity of the site.  
 
The Planning Officer had nothing further to add to the printed published report, 
noting the receipt of the late representations. 
 
An objector, representing residents, addressed the Committee on the application. He 
stated that that the proposed high-density development was inappropriate for the 
location and if permission was granted would adversely contribute to the traffic 
congestion already experienced in the area. He also raised the issue of road safety 
in the area. He stated that the number of car parking spaces proposed in the scheme 
would detrimentally impact on local on-street car parking. He concluded by 
supporting the officer recommendation to refuse the application. 
 
The agent addressed the Committee on the application. 
 
Councillor Wilson, Member for Didsbury East Ward addressed the Committee. He 
stated that he and his fellow ward councillors supported the officer recommendation 
to refuse. He reiterated the issues raised regarding the impact on local traffic 
congestion and on-street parking, with little or no mitigation measures proposed in 
the application. He further stated that the consultation exercise undertaken by the 
applicant had been disappointing.   
 
Councillor Flanagan moved the recommendation to Refuse the application. 
Councillor Andrews seconded the proposal. 
 
Decision 
 
The Committee resolved to Refuse the application for the reasons given in the 
report. 
 
PH/22/42 133055/FO/2022 & 132890/LO/2022 - The Stables, Wilmslow Road, 

Manchester, M20 5PG - Didsbury East Ward 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Director of Planning, Building Control 
and Licensing that described that the applicant had applied to install 7 no. external 
air handling units within the roof valley on the west end (unit 3) of the grade II listed 
stable block to provide air conditioning for the office(s) within. The works would 
include a steel deck, attached to the roof trusses below, which would run the length 
of the roof valley and support the air handling equipment, along with 1 no. rooflight to 
provide access for maintenance.  
 
No objections had been received from local residents or businesses. The proposal, 
however, had been assessed against its impact on a listed building and it was 
considered the units, due to their siting and associated works, would be to the 
detriment of the Stables causing less than substantial harm to the designed heritage 
asset.  

Page 156

Item 12



Manchester City Council   Minutes 
Planning and Highways Committee  28 July 2022 

 
Members were advised to note that the City Council had been notified of an appeal 
against non-determination. Members cannot now determine the application, but a 
resolution is required as to what decision the Committee would have made if 
Members were able to make a decision. 
 
The Planning Officer had nothing further to add to the printed published report. 
 
No objectors attended the meeting to address the Committee on the application. 
 
The applicant or agent did not attend the meeting to address the Committee on the 
application. 
 
Councillor Flanagan moved the recommendation to Minded to Refuse the 
application. Councillor Ali seconded the proposal. 
 
Decision 
 
The Committee resolved that it was Minded to Refuse the application for the reasons 
given in the report. 
 
PH/22/43 132489/FO/2021 - Port Street, Manchester, M1 2EQ - Piccadilly 

Ward  
 
The Committee considered the report of the Director of Planning, Building Control 
and Licensing that described that the Planning and Highways Committee were 
‘minded to refuse’ this proposal on 30 June 2022 on the basis that it would be one 
storey taller than set out in the Piccadilly Basin Strategic Regeneration 
Framework (SRF).   
 
The proposal was for 481 homes with two commercial units in a part-33, part-11, part 
9 part 7 storey building with hard and soft landscaping.  211 letters of objection had 
been received from 2 rounds of notification and 34 letters of support. Many did not 
object to the principle of the site being developed, supporting the creation of more 
housing with appropriate facilities and were keen to see it brought back to life but 
objected to the form of development. 
 
The objections related to design and scale, heritage and townscape, affordable 
housing / need and viability, privacy and living conditions of adjacent residents, 
provision of public realm, traffic, highways and parking, climate change / embodied 
carbon, compliance with Planning Policy, precedent and the consultation process. 
 
The Planning and Highways Committee were ‘minded to refuse’ this proposal on 30 
June 2022 on the basis that it would be one storey taller than set out in the Piccadilly 
Basin SRF.  They requested officers to present a further report with a potential 
reason for refusal. 
 
The applicant had subsequently revised the scheme and had reduced the height to 
33 storeys in order to fully comply with the Piccadilly Basin SRF. In light of this, 
officers could not present a potential reason for refusal.  

Page 157

Item 12



Manchester City Council   Minutes 
Planning and Highways Committee  28 July 2022 

 
The scheme would be consistent with the height indicated in the Piccadilly Basin 
SRF. The manner in which it complied with approved planning policies was clearly 
set out and addressed in the report. It was these policies that must form the basis of 
decisions made by the Local Planning Authority, including the Planning and 
Highways Committee. Planning law required that applications for planning 
permission are determined in accordance with the development plan, unless material 
considerations indicated otherwise.  
 
The report concluded that Officers considered that the scheme was acceptable and 
should be approved. 
 
The Planning Officer addressed the Committee by making reference to the late 
representations, one of which had been received at noon on the day of the meeting. 
 
The Chair stated that there were to be no more late representations to be considered 
where they were received with 48 hours of the Planning and Highway Committee 
meeting. 
 
An objector, representing local residents, addressed the Committee on the 
application. She stated that residents had welcomed the Committee’s previous 
decisions to be ‘minded to refuse’ and supported the challenge provided by 
Members to Officer recommendations. She stated that it remained the opinion of 
residents that the proposal was inconsistent with the Piccadilly Strategic 
Regeneration Framework, the Ancoats and New Islington Neighbourhood 
Development Framework and the ambitions for the Northern Quarter. She stated that 
it was her opinion that precedent had been set to refuse this application when other 
applications had been refused in the locality due to the size of the proposed 
development. She stated that the need to develop the site appropriately and 
sympathetically was recognised however the application proposed was contrary and 
incompatible with the Strategic Regeneration Framework. She further referred to the 
detrimental impact the proposal would have on sunlight, particularly on the local 
school, the detrimental impact on the historic nature of the area, parking and 
highways and the inadequate provision of public realm. She concluded by asking the 
Committee to refuse the application. 
 
The applicant addressed the Committee on the application. 
 
The Planning Officer addressed the Committee by acknowledging the comments 
expressed by both the objector and agent. He said that the issues raised by both had 
previously been articulated and discussed at previous meetings when this 
application had been considered by the Committee. He reiterated that the sole 
reason the Committee had given to refuse at the meeting in June was on height, that 
is the higher building was one storey higher than in the SRF, and this had been 
addressed by the applicant. 
 
A member spoke on the application and stated that the scale of the development 
would compromise various schemes and conservation sites in the local area and 
added that the reduction in height by 1 floor did not provide any reason for them to 
approve the application. 

Page 158

Item 12



Manchester City Council   Minutes 
Planning and Highways Committee  28 July 2022 

 
The Planning Officer stated that there was also a requirement to assess the public 
benefits of the scheme and noted that the report addressed this balance. 
 
Councillor Flanagan stated that the previous concern was about exceeding the 
recommended height as set out by the Piccadilly SRF; going by the evidence 
provided and recommendations deemed appropriate in the SRF, he felt that the 
proposal was now suitable and agreed the officer’s recommendation of Minded to 
Approve. 
 
Another member stated that they felt that they could not support this amended 
proposal and expressed that the reduction by 1 storey would not make a huge 
difference. The member felt that there was still an issue with affordable housing at 
the site and noted that the Committee did not feel that the £1m contribution towards 
affordable housing across the city was acceptable at the first application hearing in 
May 2022, stating that the profits made from the scheme could in fact support 
affordable housing on-site. 
 
The Planning Officer stated that there had been 'no minded to refuse' at previous 
meetings based on affordable housing, adding that the profit margin would now be 
lower due to the reduction of the scheme and that it could be difficult to defend a 
reason for refusal on this ground should the matter go to an appeal. 
 
Councillor Andrews stated that he had supported a Minded to Refuse decision in 
June 2022 due to the excessive height under the Piccadilly SRF policy but explained 
that he now supported Councillor Flanagan’s move to Approve the application and 
Councillor Andrews seconded the proposal. 
  
Decision 
 
The Committee resolved that it is Minded to Approve the application, subject to the 
signing of a section 106 agreement in relation to an initial off site affordable housing 
contribution, with a future review of the affordable housing position. 
 
PH/22/44 132574/FO/2021 - Land South of Stables Car Park, Paradise Wharf, 

Ducie Street, Manchester, M1 2JN - Piccadilly Ward  
 
The Committee considered the report of the Director of Planning, Building Control 
and Licensing that described the application was for 4, three-bedroom townhouses 
adjacent to the canal towpath. They would be part 4, part 5 storeys with integral 
garages for cars and bikes. Vehicle and pedestrian access would be via an existing 
vehicle access adjacent to The Stables.  
 
The dwellings would mainly be red brick with the fourth floor set back from the main 
elevations and finished in a glazed ceramic cladding. Roof terraces are formed in the 
remaining area.   
 
The upper levels of the southern elevation have Juliette balconies, recessed 
balconies, and the main roof terrace. At the ground floor, adjacent to the towpath, 

Page 159

Item 12



Manchester City Council   Minutes 
Planning and Highways Committee  28 July 2022 

feature brick work and arched windows would provide interest and create defensible 
space.  
 
One of the 4 trees on site would be removed. Servicing would be from Ducie Street 
and each household would have an internal bin store with space for 4 bins.  
 
The Planning Officer addressed the Committee by making reference to the late 
representation received from Councillor Wheeler. 
 
No objectors to the application attended the meeting or addressed the Committee on 
the application. 
 
A representative from the construction arm of the developer attending on behalf of 
the applicant and addressed the Committee. 
 
A member stated that they were happy to support the proposal but asked if the 
garages were big enough to drive into and then exit/enter the vehicle and if there 
could be internal depictions in the reports. 
 
The Planning Officer responded by advising that the size of the proposed garages 
was appropriate for vehicles and that additional design documents could be 
accessed via the planning portal. 
 
A Member welcomed the inclusion of electric vehicle charging points in the proposal. 
 
Councillor Flanagan proposed a recommendation to approve with an additional 
condition that stipulated that at least one parking space outside of the Stables should 
be designated as a disabled parking space and that this should space be serviced 
with the provision of an electric vehicle charging point. Councillor Andrews seconded 
the proposal. 
 
Decision 
 
The Committee resolved to Approve the application, subject to the inclusion of the 
additional condition proposed by the Committee. 
 
 
 

Page 160

Item 12



Manchester City Council   Minutes 
Planning and Highways Committee  1 September 2022 

Planning and Highways Committee 
 
Minutes of the meeting held on Thursday, 1 September 2022 
 
Present: Councillor Curley - In the Chair 
 
Councillors: Shaukat Ali, Andrews, Baker-Smith, Davies, Flanagan, Hewitson, 
Kamal, Leech, J Lovecy, Riasat, Richards  
 
Apologies: Councillors Y Dar, Lyons and Stogia 
 
PH/22/45  Supplementary Information on Applications Being Considered  
 
A copy of the late representations received had been circulated in advance of the 
meeting regarding application 133858/FO/2022. 
 
Decision 
 
To receive and note the late representations. 
 
PH/22/46  Minutes 
 
Decision 
 
To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 28 July 2022 as a correct record with 
the additional noting of a new Committee protocol for submitting late representations, 
which would now have to be received 48 hours before the meeting to be considered 
for inclusion. This was due to a Councillor having presented late representations on 
two occasions, one during the Committee meeting and another at noon on the day of 
the Committee meeting. 
 
 
PH/22/47 134154/VO/2022 - Land to the West of Rodney Street Manchester 

Item No M4 6JJ - Ancoats & Beswick Ward 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Director of Planning, Building Control 
and Licensing that described that the proposal would create 128 homes in two 
apartment buildings and 10 townhouses. The apartment buildings are 8 and 5 
storeys and the townhouses 3 storey. Parking, public realm and landscaping would 
be provided. The proposal is the first project the City Council’s ‘This City’ housing 
company which seeks to develop high quality, low carbon housing for all Mancunians 
as part of boosting the City’s housing supply which includes providing affordable 
housing. 
 
The Planning Officer had nothing further to add to the printed published report. 
 
The agent addressed the Committee on the application, stating that this 
development represented high quality homes for all with a low carbon impact for 
Manchester residents. This was a new venture looking at building 500 homes per 
year, self-finance with all profits going towards affordable housing. Rates would be 

Page 161

Item 12



Manchester City Council   Minutes 
Planning and Highways Committee  1 September 2022 

capped for the unwaged and low waged and protected in perpetuity. There would be 
a premiere service for all tenures. All dwelling to be adaptable for disabled and older 
people and will meet national space requirements. The development would be of a 
sensitive building design with landscaped public realm and sustainable water, 
carbon, pollution, waste and recycling features. The scheme would be fitted out with 
electric cycle and car charging facilities and create many jobs in the development 
phase with Manchester residents having priority. The scheme would create more 
Council Tax revenue and much needed affordable homes in Manchester. 
 
The Planning Officer had nothing further to add. 
 
A member stated that this was a much needed development in this area but would 
like to discuss issues around parking. The report had mentioned that there would be 
no impact on local parking arising from the scheme. The member felt that this was 
disingenuous and also raised the distribution of disabled parking within the scheme 
whilst noting that the Ancoats Parking Policy could be considered for this site, as the 
scope was extended by The Leader of the Council. The member asked the Planning 
Officer to raise the issue of the 38 rented dwellings being included in the 
aforementioned parking scheme. 
 
The Planning Officer stated that this could be picked up within the scope of the 
residents’ parking scheme to address their needs. 
 
A member asked if the townhouses were part of the affordable housing stock in the 
site and the Planning Officer confirmed this to be the case. 
 
The member went on to say that this was very welcome and atypical for Planning 
applications in general. He added that there may be a design issue with flat rooves, 
stating that this has created problems in his own ward. The member also questioned 
whether residents of the townhouses could receive parking permits, in line with the 
previous member’s request for other residents in affordable housing on the site and 
whether those not in affordable housing have access to parking permits, some 
clarification on the mobility hub charges. 
 
The Planning Officer stated that residents’ parking was a separate process and 
cannot be linked to a Planning application but confirmed that parking issues hadn’t 
yet been fully prepared. The affordable housing stock could be included in the 
parking policy and this would be reported back for consultation. Regarding the 
mobility hub, there was no current operator confirmed and no pricing strategy. For 
parking and travel, the current scheme had 47 spaces linked to 128 homes which is 
consistent with MCC policy and this was how the scheme should be measured for 
making a determination. 
 
A member stated that she was supportive of the scheme but asked if the disabled 
car parking spaces could be spread out instead of being allocated all at the same 
building. 
 
The Planning Officer stated that he would modify/add a condition to address this. 
 

Page 162

Item 12



Manchester City Council   Minutes 
Planning and Highways Committee  1 September 2022 

Councillor S Ali moved the officer’s recommendation of Approve for the application 
with the additional condition to distribute disabled parking bays around the site. 
 
Councillor Flanagan seconded the proposal. 
 
Decision 
 
The Committee resolved to Approve the application subject to the addition of the 
aforementioned condition. 
 
(Councillor Richards declared an interest and took no part in the hearing or decision 
making process). 
 
PH/22/48 132708/FO/2022 Car Park to the Rear of Chorlton Irish Club, Cross 

Road, Manchester, M21 9DJ - Chorlton Ward 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Director of Planning, Building Control 
and Licensing that described that the proposal related to the erection of a part three, 
part four storey development to provide 29 (10 x one and 18 x two bed and 1 x 
studio) residential units with associated vehicular and cycle parking, refuse store and 
landscaping.  
 
The application site currently forms part of the existing Chorlton Irish Club car 
parking area to the south located within the Chorlton Ward, the opposite side of 
Cross Road lies within Chorlton Park Ward. The proposals were subject to 
notification by way of 273 letters to nearby addresses, site notice posted at the site 
and advertisement in the Manchester Evening News.  
 
In response to the revised scheme objections were received from 21 residents at 16 
separate addresses and three neutral comments were made. Amongst other matters 
that are set out within the body of the report it is considered that the principle of 
apartment led residential development in this part of South Manchester is 
appropriate as it will add to the stock of affordable housing. The scheme will also 
bring forward high quality development on a brownfield site in a sustainable location 
that will not give rise to unacceptable impacts on the highway network or cause 
undue harm to the amenity of surrounding property. 
 
The Planning Officer stated that a full tree protection order for the duration of 
construction would be put in place if the Committee approved the application. 
 
An objector, representing local residents, addressed the Committee on the 
application. He stated that he has lived on Cross Road for 50 years and that there 
has never been any previous threat to the character of the road. He stated that 
residents were in support in principle but saw the scheme as overdevelopment, 
being too tall and extensive, with other local groups stating that it is an obtrusion in 
the locality. The objector claimed that these views had been ignored by the Planning 
Team and developer, adding that Council policy had not been adhered to. The 
scheme would present Cross Road with a 264% increase in residents if approved. 
The Victorian era drainage system on Cross Road was already failing and the 
addition of further dwellings would exacerbate this problem. The developer had 

Page 163

Item 12



Manchester City Council   Minutes 
Planning and Highways Committee  1 September 2022 

addressed the issue of overlooking dwellings on Thornbridge Avenue but nothing 
had been considered for Cross Road and was in breach of policies. The objector had 
hoped for a smaller scale development, more in keeping with the area, and asked 
the Committee to consider a site visit to make a more informed decision and 
understand the intrusion to local residents. 
 
The agent addressed the Committee on the application, stating that the site was 
acquired by Southway Housing Trust in early 2021, having beaten competition from 
private developers. They had made an agreement to leave parking spaces to allow 
the Irish Club to have spaces for clients when they re-opened. Prices to buy houses  
in Chorlton had been known to be expensive. The pre-application process had been 
to hold consultations, events and have an online portal and the recommendation for 
approval reflected the consultation process. Realising the impact to the street scene, 
the developers had included textured brickwork to compliment the area and an 
overall high quality design. This was a 100% affordable housing scheme with parking 
and cycle spaces, electric charging facilities, delivery area to minimise the impact to 
local residents with landscaping and additional trees. 
 
The Planning Officer stated that the elevation had been designed to be in scale with 
the top floor, adding that there was a narrow frontage to Cross Road, that the 
scheme was set away from Beech Road park with additional landscaping and traffic 
calming measures. 
 
A member noted that obscured glazing had been added to properties overlooking 
Thornbridge Avenue and asked whether this could be an added condition for 
properties overlooking Cross Road. 
 
The Planning Officer stated that this could be included. 
 
A member stated that he was in agreement with the objector’s proposal of a site visit, 
adding that they were alarmed to read of 48 car parking spaces along Cross Road, 
questioning the accuracy of this information. He noted that the survey may have 
been carried out during a quieter period due to the pandemic, adding that there 
would likely be less places at weekends. The member asked if there was a waste 
disposal strategy to ensure that large bins would not be left on Cross Road. He also 
questioned the use of the Irish Club car park, noting that the capacity of the club was 
around 300 people when fully functioning which would surely have an impact on 
local roads. He concluded by stating that, whilst he was very supportive of affordable 
housing in this area, it was a shame that there were no affordable rental properties 
on the site. 
 
The Planning Officer confirmed that there were 29 parking spaces which equated to 
1 per unit, that there was an associated cycle and travel plan and that this was in a 
sustainable location for other travel options. He added that there was some on-street 
parking, that the Irish Club will open again in the future but not all parking spaces 
could be retained for the club to use, adding that there was no condition there to 
refuse the application on these grounds. However, 13 spaces were to be retained for 
the Irish Club, plus a taxi pick up and drop off point. 
 

Page 164

Item 12



Manchester City Council   Minutes 
Planning and Highways Committee  1 September 2022 

The previous member responded by stating that a similar scheme at a nearby pub 
had shown that taking parking spaces away to built properties had vastly increased 
on-street parking issues and that this did not represent a sustainable approach. 
 
The Planning Officer expressed that the addition of affordable housing at this 
location would outweigh the disruption to the Irish Club, adding that the club did not 
own the car parking area so this could not be considered as a reason for refusal. 
 
A member stated that the scheme was very attractive but required scrutiny. The 
massing and height were concerning and the illustrations may not truly convey the 
full impact of this development. She requested information on the tenure of each 
property, to check if individuals could sell the properties at a market rate for a quick 
profit. The member felt that people may travel from further areas to visit the club and 
not use sustainable methods of transport, adding to parking issues in the area and 
questioned whether a proposal for a club with 13 spaces would be considered for 
approval. 
 
The Director of Planning stated that the application had to be considered on its own 
merits and dismissed any notion of considering an application for the Irish Club. She 
added that condition 24 in the report dealt with the issue of purchases of these 
properties and that Southway Housing Trust would assist on the matter. 
 
A member added that he still had concerns over parking issues whilst noting that the 
report clarified that parking at the Irish Club could not be considered as a reason for 
refusal. He agreed with the previous member’s proposal for a site visit but stated that 
he had a condition to add if no site visit was proposed by the Committee. 
 
A member welcomed affordable housing in Chorlton but felt that a varied approach 
to tenures was necessary. She was pleased to see Southway Housing Trust working 
with the City Council on referrals to the scheme and hoped that social housing could 
be involved to get people onto the property ladder and also free up social housing 
spaces. She asked whether it was only drainage on the site that would be 
maintained or if the roadway and pavement were also included. 
 
The Planning Officer confirmed that the car parking area would be unadopted with a 
long term management plan for landscaping and maintenance. 
 
A member asked what the rationale was for a site visit, with the scheme being 
recommended for approval and with parking not able to be considered. 
 
The member who proposed the site visit stated that the site visit would be to 
consider the overlooking aspect to Cross Road. 
 
Councillor Flanagan moved the officer’s recommendation for approval with an 
additional condition for frosted glazing on the first and second floor, overlooking 
Cross Road. 
 
Councillor Andrews seconded the proposal. 
 
Decision 

Page 165

Item 12



Manchester City Council   Minutes 
Planning and Highways Committee  1 September 2022 

 
The Committee resolved to Approve the application subject to the addition of the 
aforementioned condition. 
 
PH/22/49 133858/FO/2022 - Land Adjacent Newall Green Farm, Manchester, 

M23 2TX - Baguley Ward 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Director of Planning, Building Control 
and Licensing that described that the applicant is proposing to erect a two storey 
building on the site to form eight supported living apartments, complementing the 
existing supported living use that operates out of the other three buildings. One 
resident has objected to the proposal but did not substantiate it with any reasons. 
Another local resident has stated their support for the proposal but has raised 
concerns about potential highway issues, as well as making a number of 
observations about ecology and construction management. 
 
The application was being placed before the Committee as the site is located within 
the Green Belt and adjacent to three Grade II listed farm buildings.  
 
The proposal is considered to be appropriate development within the Green Belt and 
as such would not constitute a departure from the Core Strategy and would not need 
to be referred to the Secretary of State. 
 
The Planning Officer had nothing further to add. 
 
The applicant addressed the Committee on the application and stated that the 
scheme was for accommodation for adults with learning disabilities, with support, 
who could not live in a shared space. 
 
The Planning Officer had nothing further to add. 
 
Councillor Andrews stated that the Baguley Ward Councillors supported the scheme, 
noting some local opposition to the footpaths and moved the officers 
recommendation of approve for the application with an additional condition to include 
e-bike charging on the site. 
 
Councillor S Ali seconded the proposal. 
 
Decision 
 
The Committee resolved to Approve the application subject to the addition of the 
aforementioned condition. 

Page 166

Item 12


	Agenda
	Meeting of the Council – Wednesday, 5th October, 2022

	3 Minutes
	9 Proceedings of the Executive
	11 Scrutiny Committees
	12 Proceedings of Committees

